
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
August 01, 2018 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting July 18, 2018. 
 

AGENDA REVIEW 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Employee Recognition: 

 Ten Year Service Award - Andrew L. Brown – Fire/EMS  
 Fifteen Year Service Award - Phil R. Hardy – Public Services/Fleet Management Equipment Mechanic  
 Fifteen Year Service Award - David L. Whitty – Police/Support Services Code Enforcement Officer 
 Twenty Year Service Award - Brett E. Webster – Police/Field Services Police Officer  
 Thirty Year Service Award - Scott A. Bruehl – Fire/Suppression Firefighter Engineer  

 
Presentations: 

1. FBI presentation referencing Iberia bank attempted robbery. 
 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize funds from Law Enforcement Trust Funds to be donated to Apopka High School Academic Consortium of Scholars. 
2. Authorize funds from Law Enforcement Trust Funds to be donated to Apopka High School to support local youth sports. 
3. Authorize a donation from Law Enforcement Trust Funds to purchase an outdoor cinema system for public outreach programs. 
4. Approve a Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Lakeside Phase I. 
5. Approve emergency repairs to the Bradshaw Rd. Regional Lift Station #77. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Sunday Fun Day event on September 2, 2018.  Lorena Potter 
 
2. Preliminary Development Plan – Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage                                                                                   Jean Sanchez 

Project: Farish Enterprises, LLC 
Location: 1616 East Semoran Boulevard 
 

3. Final Development Plan – Lakeshore at Wekiva (FKA Sandpiper Road Subdivision)                                              Jean Sanchez 
Project:  Beazer Homes, LLC 
Location:  Southeast corner of Ustler Road and Sandpiper Road 
 

4. Final Development Plan – Dollar General Store   Jean Sanchez 
Project: Lloyd Lee, Mobley Mattie Life Estate & Nathan Jerome Shaw, Sr.  
Location: 51 & 57 E. Michael Gladded Blvd. and W. 9th St.  
 

5. Final Development Plan – Greater Faith World Center, Inc., Phase 1                                                                   Bobby Howell 
Project:  Center of Faith Church, Inc.  
Location: 700 Vick Road 

1



  
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2654 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning                                                                                    Phil Martinez 
Project: JTD Land Dev. at Rogers Road, LLC (Carriage Hills Ph. 2)  
Location:  1455 W. Lester Road. 
 

2. Ordinance No. 2660 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning                                                                                      Phil Martinez 
Project:  JEL Land Development, LLC (Legacy Hills)  
Location: 2400 Schopke Road 
 

3. Ordinance No. 2661 – Second Reading - Comp Plan – Small Scale                                                                         Phil Martinez 
Project: 3255 Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical)  
Location: 3307 Clarcona Road 
 

4. Ordinance No. 2662 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning                                                                                    Phil Martinez 
Project: 3255 Clarcona Road LLC (aka Randall Mechanical)  
Location: 3307 Clarcona Road 
 

5. Ordinance No. 2663 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning                                                                                     Phil Martinez 
Project: SunTrust Bank  
Location: 936 East Semoran Boulevard 
 

6. Ordinance No. 2666 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning – Kelly Park Road Publix Center                               Bobby Howell 
Project:  JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust  
Location:  4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road 
 

7. Ordinance No. 2667 – Second Reading – Change of Zoning/PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan     Bobby Howell 
Project: Vista Reserve  
Location: On the east side of Rogers Road, approximately 1/2 mile north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road.   
 

8. Ordinance No. 2668 – Second Reading – Amending Ordinance No. 2345 PUD Master Plan                                   Phil Martinez 
Project: Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort Inc.(KOA), c/o Robert Vesely  
Location: 3800 W. Orange Blossom Trail 
 

9. Ordinance No. 2669 - First Reading - Bear Management Program & Containers            Jay Davoll 
 

10. Resolution 2018-12 - FY17/18 Budget Amendment.        Jamie Roberson 
 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

August 2, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm  Food Truck Round Up 

August 13, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

August 14, 2018 5:30pm – 7:30pm  Planning Commission Meeting 

August 15, 2018 6:00pm – 7:00pm CRA Meeting 

August 15, 2018 7:00pm –  City Council Meeting 

August 18, 2018 11:00am – 12:00pm  Cookies & Milk with a Cop – NW Orange/Apopka Library 

August 27, 2018 10:00am –   Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

September 2, 2018  6:00pm – 9:00pm  Sunday Fun Day Celebration – NW Recreation Complex  

September 3, 2018 - Labor Day - City Offices Closed 

September 5, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting  

September 5, 2018 5:15pm –  Budget Hearing 

September 6, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm  Food Truck Round Up 

September 10, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

September 11, 2018 5:30pm – 7:30pm  Planning Commission Meeting 
2



  
 

September 15, 2018 11:00am – 12:00pm  Cookies & Milk with a Cop – NW Orange/Apopka Library 

September 19, 2018 7:00pm –  Budget Hearing & City Council Meeting 

September 24, 2018 10:00am –   Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

3



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Bryan Nelson 

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Alice Nolan 

Commissioner Alexander Smith 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Edward Bass 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Nelson called on Pastor Harvey Carpenter of Journey Christian 

Church, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Nelson introduced Katherine Mays, Apopka Youth 

Works, and incoming Senior at Apopka High School, who led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Katherine said the design for our current US Flag was designed by a 17 year old boy from the 

City of Saginaw, Michigan, whose name is Robert G. Heft. Heft attended a high school in 

Lancaster, Ohio, where he was tasked with a school project which drove his design for the flag. 

Heft’s teacher, Stanley Pratt, awarded him only a B- for his design, as he described it as 

“mediocre.” However, Heft was dissatisfied with this feedback and offered Mr. Pratt a deal. Heft 

offered up the agreement that if the flag was made the official flag of the United States by 

congress, then he would get a better grade for the project. Just by chance, it happened, out of 

over 1,500 designs reviewed by President Dwight D. Eisenhower himself, Heft’s design was 

chosen to be the official flag of the United States. To this day, Heft’s design remains current, and 

as for Mr. Pratt, he changed Heft’s grade to an A. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop June 6, 2018. 

2. City Council regular meeting June 20, 2018.  

3. City Council budget workshop meeting July 5, 2018.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve 

the minutes of June 6, 2018 workshop, June 20, 2018, and July 5, 2018 workshop.  

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, 

Nolan and Smith voting aye.  

 

AGENDA REVIEW – City Administrator Bass advised there were no changes. 

 

4



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

Commissioner Becker recognized Boy Scouts from Troop 211 and Troop 10. He stated they are 

present to be a part of the process and work on their Citizenship in the Community and 

Communications merit badges. He thanked them for attending.  

 

CONSENT 
1. Approve the disposal of surplus equipment/property.  

2. Accept and update signatories with Iberia Bank.  

3. Accept and update signatories with Florida Community Bank.  

4. Award a contract for road improvements on Vick Road & West Martin Street.  

5. Award a contract for construction of a potable water system extension on Stutzmans Court.  

6. Award a contract to Big Span Structures for the canopy replacement of the Apopka 

Amphitheater. 

7. Authorize the purchase of a new standby generator for the Mt Plymouth Lakes Water Plant 

8. Approve a contract extension for FYE 2018 audit services with Moore Stephens Lovelace, 

P.A. 

9. Accept a Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program grant for the Apopka Athletic 

Complex. 

10. Authorize the presentation of a Service Weapon.  

  

 MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve ten items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Nelson and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Public Comment: 
Steve Harmon said he was here with regards to the FY 18/19 Budget and the possibility of going 

from 6% to 3% employee merit raises. He recognized many from the Police Department were 

present and they would like the ability to make up to a 6% raise. He added there was no 

guarantee of the 6% as this was based on merit through an evaluation process. He expressed 

concerns that if it is reduced to 3% that it will be hard to bring it back up. He stated they were 

trying to get new officers to come to Apopka and if they see there is only a 3% raise, there is a 

better chance of their going to another agency, as well as officers on the force with experience 

leaving to go to another agency with better raises. He also spoke of red light cameras, stating 

they were a good way to bring in income as well as being a safety matter. He advised that red 

light camera tickets were not issued on a right turn on red unless the speed is 13 mph or more. 

He stated the cameras are also utilized to review video of accidents, and robberies have also been 

solved with cameras.  

 

Nathan Tuck said he and his wife recently purchased a home in Apopka, as his wife’s immediate 

family and extended family live here. He stated they recognize the path of growth the city is on 

and want to be a part of that. He applied to the Apopka Police Department and was hired in 

March. He came here from a neighboring jurisdiction where he had worked for six years. He 

wanted to work where he lived and came to the Apopka Police Department because of their 

reputation of taking care of employees as far as raises and retirement. He advised he took an 

$8,000 cut in pay to come here and asked that Council reconsider this matter.  

5



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

Sam Anderson said he was also here to discuss the proposed 50% reduction in employee merit 

increases and the affects it may have on the quality of police service. He said the 3% increase 

may seem generous, but it was not nearly enough to offset all the ways in which the police 

officers are short changed. He declared that the Apopka Police Department does not get overtime 

until they reach 11 hours, there is no call out minimum or court minimum, no shift differential, 

no bilingual incentive, no dry cleaning allowance, no field training officer incentive, no on call 

pay which is a direct violation of city personnel regulations, and stated they have had no change 

in proficiency pay since contract negotiations in the early 1990’s. He said Apopka is the second 

largest city in Orange County and all of these factors combined would all but destroy efforts to 

recruit and retain quality law enforcement officers. He spoke of the dangers they face every day.  

 

Sheriff Kevin Beary spoke against the decrease in the merit raises from 6% to 3% on behalf of 

the Police Department and Fire Department. He spoke of officers being murdered across the 

states and the dangers they face. He declared this is not where they need to cut. He stated the 

Sheriff’s Department lost hundreds of deputies when they did not do pay raises over a couple of 

years. He stated Orange County firefighters will leave to go to places like Apopka and other 

municipalities because they have better benefits. He stated there is a lot of growth coming this 

way and the first responders need to be taken care of.  

 

Derek Ryan said he lives on Petersen Road which is connected to King Street that was recently 

annexed. He inquired if there was any intention of mowing this area. He stated he was in the 

landscape maintenance industry and has been supplementing this area. He said he was appointed 

on Friday by the Orange Soil and Water Conservation District as an associate supervisor. He is 

on the board and said he appreciated letters of recommendation. He is still running for that 

position and will be on the ballot in November. He is Chairman of the Libertarian Party of 

Orange County and will oppose 100% of the time government cameras pointing at people. He 

stated he was sorry there was a budget deficit in the City of Apopka, but he hopes the Board will 

follow suit with campaign promises and not continue the contract with red light cameras in 

Apopka.  

 

Commissioner Nolan said she appreciates the Police Department coming out and voicing their 

opinions. She said Council has spent many hours going over the budget and have met with 

department heads on reductions. She stated it is not their intention for APD to carry this and if 

the millage rate is increased it will also be on the tax payers. She declared it is not the intention 

to keep this at 3% and they are working in every way to bring it up.  

 

Commissioner Becker said what the first responders do for the city is invaluable. He stated the 

budget is not approved yet. The proposed millage rate is on the agenda for this evening. He said 

there was an opportunity to hold another budget workshop.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson inquiring as to the disparity between the 3% cap versus a 

6% cap, City Administrator Bass that overall it was about $250,000 overall for each percent. He 

advised that based on the merit, an employee can receive anywhere from 1% to a 6% increase. 

He advised it tends to be on the higher end of the scale, so they need to be cautious when 

budgeting for this. 

6



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

Commissioner Smith said they value the first responders, but they value all employees and he did 

not want to see employees treated differently.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding a difference on policy and percentage of merit based on hazard of 

first responders.  

 

Mayor Nelson asked Mr. Bass to come back with an average over the last three years for each 

department. He said it is important to have the salary survey done, but it is in next fiscal year 

budget.  

 

Commissioner Bankson suggested a new policy be established that does take into account a 

hazard of first responders as another category that gives room for this consideration. He said this 

did not take away from others, but provides an opportunity for this consideration. He reiterated it 

was no one’s thought that this be a permanent situation. 

 

MILLAGE RATE (Action Item) 

1. Approve and set the FY 2018-2019 proposed millage rate. 

Edward Bass, City Administrator, said the City Council held a Budget workshop on July 5, 

2018, to review the proposed FY 18/19 Budget. He stated no one want to raise the millage 

rates and no one wants to take cuts to the budget. He said the city has great employees that 

work hard every day, stating the budget is a work in progress. He advised he did have some 

good news, in that they had budgeted conservatively with regards to the state funds and they 

have found additional revenues.  He affirmed at the workshop they discussed the budget 

being out of balance by more than $700,000. They discussed setting the proposed millage 

rate at .5 mills above the current rate. He added that the proposed millage rate can always 

come down, but it is very difficult to raise it.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, Seconded by Commissioner Smith to set the 

proposed millage rate at .5 mills above the current rate.  Motion carried unanimously 

with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

Mayor Nelson said in accordance with the Truth and Millage (TRIM) requirements, the City 

must set a proposed millage rate and advise the property appraiser of the proposed millage 

rate, roll back rate, date, time, and place of the tentative budget hearing. The proposed 

millage rate is 4.2876 which represents a 19.02% increase over the roll back millage rate of 

3.6024. The tentative Budget hearing is scheduled for Wednesday, September 5, 2018, at 

5:15 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

 

BUSINESS 

1. Approve the Kit Land Nelson Splash Pad Fee Structure. 

Lorena Potter, Recreation Manager, said the Splash Pad was coming along and they 

anticipate it will be open early August. She surveyed surrounding areas with regards to 

entrance fees and proposed a fee of $2.00 for all ages, and a seasonal pass for $20.00 for 

residents only. She said for a two hour private party after hours, it would be a $200 fee and 

this includes two attendants.  

7



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

Commissioner Becker suggested a nonresident rate of $2.50 and resident rate of $1.50.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to set the 

Splash Pad fee structure at $1.50 resident, $2.50 non-resident, and $20.00 season pass 

for residents only. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners 

Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye. 

 

2. Approve a contract with CH2M Hill for extended assistance with the Alonzo Williams 

Community Center. 

Mr. Bass said in November 2015, CH2M Hill was contracted with to provide design and 

engineering services for the construction of a new community center at Alonzo Williams 

Park. The three bids that were received were well over the cost budgeted for this project. In 

February 2018, the bids were rejected and staff started looking at another course of action. It 

is recommended to contract with CH2M Hill to provide a new estimate and have them work 

through the questions and construction of the community center. He advised this will go out 

to bid again.  He advised the contracted cost will be approximately $35,000 and this amount 

is from Recreation’s current budget. He advised the original estimate was set at $740,000 and 

the bids came in high anywhere from $1.2 to $1.4. He said the request is to approve CH2M 

Hill as an evaluated source based on their previous contracted involvement, and funding for 

them to provide additional engineering services for the Alonzo Williams Park Community 

Center. He advised this is time sensitive due to the CDBG funding.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to approve 

CH2M Hill as an evaluated source, and funding for CH2M Hill to provide additional 

engineering services for the Alonzo Williams Park Community Center.  Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and 

Smith voting aye.  

 

3. Final Development Plan – Dollar General Store  

Project:  Lloyd Lee, Mobley Mattie Life Estate; Nathan Jerome Shaw, Sr.  

Location: 51 & 57 E. Michael Gladden Blvd. and W. 9th St. 

Jean Sanchez, Planner, provided a lead-in for the Final Development Plan, Dollar General 

Store at E. Michael Gladden Boulevard and W 9
th

 Street.  She reviewed the location on a 

map and showed the surrounding land-uses on an aerial map. She reviewed renderings 

showing the elevations. The Planning Commission and DRC recommends approval.  

 

Commissioner Becker said they had received a petition from an affected applicant that was 

already approved by Council in terms of a similar neighborhood market that will be 100 feet 

away from this property. He stated this being quasi-judicial, he knows they cannot consider 

the fact the petitioners operation is already approved in terms of plan and permit. He said he 

can focus on the traffic study that was provided for this project. He said this area is 

problematic and asked if the new neighborhood market going in was factored in to their 

traffic study.  

 

8



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

Jeremy Anderson, representing the applicant, said he can discuss the architecture of the 

building, the use and why it fits the zoning and the CRA area. He stated the concern related 

to Dollar type stores, they are similar to uses like a Walgreen’s, CVS, or a gas station. He 

said this is a smaller store and it is 7,500 square feet. He declared this is considered more of a 

neighborhood type of retail store. He called on the traffic consultant to respond to questions.  

 

Mohammed Abdallah, Traffic and Mobility Consultants, advised they did not study the 

additional new market, nor was it specifically factored in to this study.  

 

Commissioner Becker referred to the paragraph in the Traffic Analysis referencing Table 3 

and stating the proposed Dollar General development will not adversely impact the 

transportation network or add any traffic to the eastbound movement and that the project 

traffic is less than 1% of the total peak hour traffic through the intersection. He stressed that 

he disagreed with this statement in the traffic study.  

 

Mr. Abdallah said with regards to the traffic being added to the eastbound movement, the 

way the access plan on the site, if coming from the west, heading east, the left turn would be 

made going into this site prior to getting to the intersection, so you are not adding delay at 

that stop sign. He said there would be added traffic on Park, but not at the stop sign.  

 

Commissioner Smith asked for clarification on the statement of this not impacting the area or 

canvass the other neighborhood stores and it would be drawing on a smaller market. 

 

Mr. Anderson explained that he was speaking about the comment made on the oversaturation 

of dollar stores in the City of Apopka. He advised he was not referring to a store that might 

be next door. He stated the proposed use is a permitted use and in line with the city’s vision 

both for the future land use as well as the zoning classification. It is below the maximum 

floor area ratio permitted there for this use, and they feel it is in line for the vision of this 

corridor. He affirmed this is an infill development on a vacant, commercially zoned property 

in the City of Apopka. He stated they feel this is a great use for the area.  

 

Mr. Anderson responded in the affirmative to Mayor Nelson inquiring if they carry 

perishables. Mayor Nelson suggested this would take some traffic off the road by not having 

to travel so far to purchase these items. Mr. Anderson said with density such as this, 

buildings are put on the street for the pedestrian customer and these stores cater to the local 

customer.  

 

Commissioner Becker wanted to place in the record that Mr. Jun Kim had presented a 

petition to the Commissioners with regards to this development. He reiterated the traffic in 

this area stating he could not in good conscious vote for a project that in their own words was 

“projected to continue experiencing continued delays” on Michael Gladden and North Park 

Avenue. He said his perspective would be to table this until the City can determine what to 

do with that intersection. 

 

9



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

Commissioner Bankson said his concern was to watch for the legal side of this matter. He 

stated the compassion is there, but if this is tabled, then so is the other project as they cannot 

favor one over the other.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to public comment.  

 

Phyllis Nicholson said she was an Apopka native and she was here on behalf of Mr. Jun Kim, 

stating they have extensively collaborated since his other location’s demise. She said he was 

a credible person to their community. She stated he wanted a chance to contribute and give 

back to the community. She told him she would come and speak on his behalf. She spoke of 

the traffic in this area, especially during peak times.  

 

Laquita Baker said she was an employee of Mr. Kim and he always tried to give back to the 

community. She stated she has been shuffling jobs since the store has been closed. She said 

Mr. Kim just wanted another chance to get his store back.  

 

Glennie Payne said she was a native and Mr. Kim was a very good person and they need 

people like him in their community. She said he gave people a chance to prove themselves. 

She stated he was already approved for another store and another store coming in will hurt 

him and other small businesses.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing.  

 

Mayor Nelson asked City Attorney Shepard to provide input regarding this matter and 

whether traffic should be a delay. 

 

City Attorney Shepard said discretion on whether to delay based on traffic or additional 

information is one Council has the ability to make. In terms of the other store, as he 

understands, that store has already been approved and cannot be brought back in. He stated 

based on the same considerations, it is now a part of the mix that makes traffic an issue. He 

stated city staff seems to support their traffic report, but there may be additional information 

needed.  He advised on that basis Council could table, but he also stated there were only two 

projects mentioned. If there are any others, they would need to receive similar treatment 

unless it was something that clearly produced zero traffic.  

 

Commissioner Becker said he would challenge that, not from a legal perspective, but from 

the uniqueness of what was presented. He stated he was using the combined information 

from the traffic study presented along with his own understanding of that traffic area that he 

personally drives on frequently to render his decision. He said he disagreed with their 

sentiment that they are not going to contribute anything further to the detriment of the area.  

 

City Attorney Shepard stated individual commissioners are not allowed to bring their own 

evidence to a quasi-judicial proceeding, they have to utilize what is presented. However, they 

are allowed to consider other evidence, and if they feel other evidence can be ascertained 

within a reasonable time, then that is legit. In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring if 

10



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

it is within his purview to disagree with what they presented, City Attorney Shepard 

responded in the affirmative.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said this was being considered based upon the traffic issue and he 

agreed that he would like more time to approach it from that aspect.  

 

Richard Earp, City Engineer, said the city has a continuing consultant for traffic engineering 

services. He suggested we have the independent consultant evaluate and provide an opinion.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to table this 

item to August 1, 2018. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

4. Final Development Plan (FDP) – Lake Gem Commerce Park, Lot 10 

Project:  Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael R. Cooper  

Location: 511 and 611 Marshall Lake Road 

Ms. Sanchez said this request is to approve the Lake Gem Commerce Park, Lot 10, Final 

Development Plan. She reviewed the property location on Marshall Lake Road and reviewed 

the surrounding land uses. The Planning Commission found the FDP to be consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, recommending approval. DRC 

recommends approval.  The recommendation is to approve the Lake Gem Commerce Park 

Lot 10 FDP.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve the Final Development Plan for Lake Gem Commerce Park, Lot 10. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, 

and Nolan voting aye. 

 

5. Final Development Plan & Plat – Lakeside, Phase 1 

Project:  Avatar Properties, Inc. and James D. & Deborah Lyda  

Location: South of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451 

Bobby Howell provided a brief lead-in for the Final Development Plan and Plat for Lakeside, 

Phase 1. He reviewed the characteristics of the surrounding area on an aerial map. He 

advised City Council approved the PUD Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan on 

April 4, 2018, for the Lake Marshall Subdivision. The subdivision has been renamed to 

Lakeside. The request is approval of the Final Development Plan and Plat for Phase 1. He 

advised the subdivision will be gated and all interior roads private. Ingress/Egress is by Johns 

Road. The Planning Commission and DRC recommended approval.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring about the emergency access on Tract J, Luke 

Classon, Appian Engineering, advised this will be part of the first completion of the 

subdivision. Also, in response to Mayor Nelson, Mr. Classon advised that Breckenridge was 

not interested in a pedestrian connection between the subdivisions.  

11



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to approve 

the Final Development Plan and Plat for Lakeside, Phase 1. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and 

Nolan voting aye. 

 

6. Final Development Plan\Plat – San Sebastian Reserve 

Project:  A.D Raulerson, Sr. & A.D. Raulerson, Jr.; and Curtis & Karen Pumphrey  

Location:  North of Lester Road and west of Rock Springs Road 

Ms. Sanchez reviewed the San Sebastian Reserve Final Development Plan/Plat, showing the 

location on a map as well as surrounding land-uses. She advised there are overflow parking 

spaces throughout the community. Amenities include a swimming pool, cabana, playground, 

gazebo, and a dog park for the residents. There will be a 6-foot brick, masonry, or precast 

wall within a 30’ landscape buffer abutting Alexander Place subdivision, as well as within a 

20’ wide buffer along Lester Road. There will be perimeter fencing along the east and west 

property lines. The HOA will be responsible for maintaining the landscaping and irrigation 

within the public right-of-way portion, and will maintain the common areas. The Plat is 

consistent with the approved Preliminary Development Plan and the Final proposed 

development. The Planning Commission recommended approval subject to revision to the 

FDP and Plat to reflect consistency with the northeast corner of the Master Plan/PDP, Lots 

101 to 105.  She advised the applicant revised the plan and plat following the Planning 

Commission meeting. The recommendation is to approve the San Sebastian Reserve 

subdivision Final Development Plan and Plat subject to the conditions of approval and staff 

report.  

 

Richard Wohlfarth, applicant, said he was present to answer any questions.  

 

Commissioner Becker said he has not voted in line with this project since it first came to 

Council. He stated he felt this was counter to what our zoning classification calls for, even 

from a PUD zoning classification.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

Motion by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to approve 

the Final Development Plan and Plat for San Sebastian Reserve as presented. Motion 

carried 4-1 with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Nolan, and Smith voting 

aye, and Commissioner Becker voting nay. 

 

7. Final Development Plan\Plat; Development Agreement – Stanton Ridge 

Project:  Central Florida Expressway Authority  

Location: Straddles SR 429, west of the intersection of Belgion Street and Plymouth Sorrento 

Road. 

12



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 10 

David Moon, Planning Manager, reviewed the Stanton Ridge Final Development Plan/Plat 

and Development Agreement. He stated this was for 33 residential lots and showed the area 

on a map of general location, as well as an aerial overlay of the 429.  The Planning 

Commission recommended approval of the FDP and Plat, subject to the findings of the staff 

report and recommended approval of the Development Agreement. DRC recommended 

approval.  

 

Scott Glass, Special Counsel for the Expressway Authority, was present to answer any 

questions. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to 

approve the Final Development Plan and Plat for Stanton Ridge. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and 

Nolan voting aye.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to approve 

the Development Agreement for Stanton Ridge. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

8. Master/Preliminary Dev. Plan; Site & Subdivision Plans; Development Agreement 

Project:  Residences at Emerson Park, LLC - Greystone Skilled Nursing Facility 

Location: 1601 Alston Bay Boulevard 

Mr. Moon reviewed the Master/Preliminary Development Plan for Greystone Skilled nursing 

Facility, explaining the subject property is approximately 24.08 acres in size and is zoned 

Mixed EC, located at the northeast corner of the intersection of Ocoee-Apopka Road and 

Alston Bay Boulevard.  The property is located in Emerson Park on Tract “G” as noted on 

the plat.  Mr. Moon stated with the redesign of 451 and 429, this area no longer meets the 

character for a Town Center. He advised the Development Agreement no longer applied for a 

town center with the change of character of the area, therefore the Development Agreement 

needs to be amended. He stated the underlying zoning of Mixed-use EC allows for a skilled 

nursing facility. The action before Council is related to the Development Agreement and the 

PDP, site plan.  

 

Bobby Howell, Senior Planner, reviewed the site plan and subdivision plan pointing out this 

proposes dividing the property into two, stating the property is noted as Tract G in the plat of 

Emerson Park subdivision. As mentioned, there is an existing Development Agreement the 

property is subject to and one of the actions will be to terminate the Development 

Agreement. He reviewed the detail of the Preliminary Development Plan, Site Plan, and 

Subdivision Plan detailing the two lot commercial subdivision consisting of a 19.77 acre 

parcel with a 108,567 square foot skilled nursing facility and a 14.2 acre vacant parcel that 

will remain vacant to be developed under the Mixed EC guidelines at a future date. The 

skilled nursing facility will have 218 parking spaces with two access points located on Alston 

Bay Boulevard. He reviewed the landscape plan. The architectural elevations for the skilled 

13



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 11 

nursing facility is for a one-story building and he reviewed the proposed architectural design 

elements. DRC and the Planning Commission recommend approval.  

 

Commissioner Nolan said that Greystone becomes involved in the community and give back, 

stating the community would benefit from this development.  

 

In response to Commissioner Becker inquiring if the revocation of the developer’s agreement 

would impact the roadway ownership, Mr. Moon advised there was no effect on the 

ownership of the road. He advised Alston Bay was a private road owned by the HOA and this 

property is part of that HOA. Commissioner Becker asked from a legal perspective what their 

ownership in terms of maintenance cost to help with this roadway was.  

 

Dustin Stevens, Esquire, with Holland and Knight, said this was a tract in the same plat the 

overall residential community was platted. He stated there was a separate existing document 

that gives this property an access easement across Alston Bay Boulevard. He affirmed Alston 

Bay Boulevard was a private road owned by the HOA, but at the time the community was 

originally developed, an access easement was provided to this tract. He advised that up until 

today, nothing has governed cost sharing for Alston Bay Boulevard. The recorded instrument 

required meeting with the HOA before this property could be developed, reviewing the site 

plan and providing approval, which they have done. He advised they do have a signed 

agreement with the HOA to add more clarity to the cost sharing.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Butch Stanley, President of Emerson Park HOA, said they have had discussions with 

Greystone over the past nine months. He stated they presented at their last HOA meeting and 

everyone appeared to accept this development well and look forward to their being a part of 

Emerson Park. 

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith to approve 

the Master Preliminary Development Plan, and Site and subdivision plans for 

Greystone Skilled Nursing Facility. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, 

and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve the termination of the Amended and Restated Developer’s Agreement for 

Emerson Park.  Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners 

Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voting aye. 

 

9. Preliminary Development Plan – Bridlewood Subdivision (fka Equestrian Center 

Subdivision) 

Project:  Laura R. Murphy  

Location:  359 West Lester Road 

14



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 12 

Ms. Sanchez provided a brief lead-n for the Preliminary Development Plan for Bridlewood 

Subdivison. She reviewed the location of the parcel on a map and reviewed the surrounding 

land uses. The subdivision plan shows 52 single-family lots on a 20 +/- acre site, with 

ingress/egress on Lester Road. She advised the typical lot width is 75 feet and minimum 

living area of 1500 square feet. She advised the development is consistent with R1 zoning 

district requirements. The DRC and Planning Commission recommended approval with the 

variance approved on June 12, 2018.  

 

Luke Classon, Appian Engineering, said he was present to answer any questions. He advised 

they did meet with Avian Reconditioning Center and coordinated with them regarding the 

fencing and landscape buffers.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

the Preliminary Development Plan for Bridlewood Subdivision. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Smith, and 

Nolan voting aye. 

 

10. Preliminary Development Plan – Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision 

Project:  TGINF, LLC c/o Alan Goldberg 

Location: 501 Old Dixie Highway 

Mr. Moon reviewed the Preliminary Development Plan for Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision 

for 92 Town Homes, 8 buildings with 4 units, and 10 buildings with 6 units. He reviewed the 

location of the site north of Old Dixie Highway, and east of Apopka Elementary School. He 

reviewed the general layout of the plan. The streets will be privately owned. The amenities 

include a pool house and pool together with a tot lot. Each unit will have one enclosed garage 

and parking within the driveway. There is no overflow parking. He pointed out a pathway 

with sidewalk that leads to the elementary school so students from this community can walk 

to Apopka Elementary School. He reviewed the fence/walls surrounding the development.. 

The Planning Commission approved a variance that waives the wall requirement along the 

wetland area and the upland buffer, but they did require a 6’ brick wall along the eastern 

boundary to the south of the 25’ upland buffer and to the north of the 25’ upland buffer, 

except where there is already a brick wall around a proposed lift station that serves this 

community.  He advised the applicant has filed an appeal to the City Clerk regarding the 

eastern wall requirement. This appeal will appear before City Council at another advertised 

hearing. The recommended motion is to approve the Hidden Lake Preserve Subdivision 

Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of the staff report and the public 

hearing findings for the variance addressing the eastern wall.  

 

Council recessed at 9:39 p.m. and reconvened at 9:45 p.m. 

 

Alan Goldberg, Applicant, provided a presentation stating he was in agreement with staff, 

except for conditions 2 and 3. He reviewed the project and advised he has had conversations 

with each council member. He said they rezoned this property from commercial to R3 

15



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 13 

Multifamily in March 2018.  He stated they are looking forward to having an affordable town 

house community within Apopka. He said their planned amenities will focus on the lake in 

the community with plans to have a walking trail around the lake, as well as a 

fishing/observation dock. They hope to be able to provide a dog park or dog run for the 

residents. They anticipate the buyers will be first time buyers with young children with this 

being next to the Elementary School. There will be a dedicated walkway between their 

community and Apopka Elementary School for their residents, as well as allowing a 

walkway through their community for the residents of Clayton Estates. He stated this was an 

area in transition. To date they have had no community objections to the project. He said they 

had hoped to discuss the east property line variance request this evening, but they have been 

instructed by staff that since they have appealed the decision from the Planning Commission, 

it would be inappropriate to discuss at this time.  

 

Commissioner Bankson inquired if they would be amenable to consider a brick wall along 

the western border for the aesthetics of matching the other brick walls.  

 

Mr. Goldberg said they were instructed by staff that they had to have a swimming pool in this 

community. It was not questioned and put in the plans. He stated with some other issues of 

interpretation, they went back and looked at this. He said the code states for R3 Multifamily, 

swimming pools, tennis courts, playgrounds, and other active recreation uses are to be 

provided with the multifamily projects and such uses located in common ownership areas. He 

stated their contention is that this is a menu of items you could see within a multifamily 

project, making the amenity package strong enough so it is market responsive and also 

responsive to the city’s requirements. He declared the staff is contending that each one of 

those items need to be in a multifamily project in an R3 category. He asked that the Council 

interpret the amenity requirement as a menu of amenities that could be provided within the 

community and not a required swimming pool as part of the package per staff’s 

interpretation.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding interpretation of the code with regards to amenities required.  

 

James Hitt, Community Development Director, said staff looks at this as being consistent 

with what has been approved in the past for different developments, hence they stayed with 

the recommendation to go with the pool.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the western lot line and a vinyl fence and Mr. Goldberg shared 

an email from OCPS that stated they had no issue with a fence if the city is agreeable.  He 

stated the code does not require a residential development to provide a buffer wall between 

residential homes and the public school. He said they proposed a vinyl fence for the privacy 

of their residents. The Planning Commission recommended a wall along this property line.  

 

Mayor Nelson asked Deputy Chief Fernandez to comment on the issue of a wall versus a 

fence along the western property line between the development and Apopka Elementary 

School.  Deputy Chief Fernandez said when this was discussed in DRC the discussion was 

that a wall would be appropriate in this area. He said the wall is sturdier and they generally 

prefer to see walls.  

16



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 14 

 

Commissioner Bankson said he would prefer to move the PDP together with the fence issue 

and discuss them together. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

continue the Hidden Lake Reserve Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan to 

August 15, 2018. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners 

Bankson, Becker, Smith, and Nolan voted aye.  

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 
 

1. Ordinance No. 2664 –Second Reading – Annexation – Cycle 3 - Stormwater Pond - 

Project: City of Apopka – Location: 1680 South Lake Pleasant Road. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2664 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, OWNED BY 

THE CITY OF APOPKA; LOCATED AT 1680 S LAKE PLEASANT 

ROAD, AND COMPRISED OF APPROXIMATELY 4.45 ACRES; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Pam Richmond, Senior Planner, advised there have been no changes since the first reading.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2664. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

2. Ordinance No. 2665 – Second Reading – Annexation – Cycle 3 – Road Right-of-Ways 

Project: Orange County – Locations:  Carnation Court; East Laurel Street; East Myrtle 

Street; West Myrtle Street; North Washington Avenue; North Central Avenue; and North 

Lake Avenue  (North and South of West Myrtle Avenue) 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2665 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY KNOWN AS CARNATION COURT, EAST 

17



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 15 

LAUREL STREET, EAST MYRTLE STREET, WEST MYRTLE STREET, 

NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, NORTH CENTRAL AVENUE, 

NORTH LAKE AVENUE (NORTH AND SOUTH OF WEST MYRTLE 

AVENUE), SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

LOCATED GENERALLY WEST OF NORTH PARK AVENUE, SOUTH 

OF WEST SUMMIT STREET AND NORTH OF WEST OAK STREET, 

AND COMPRISED OF APPROXIMATELY 8.279 ACRES; OWNED BY 

ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Ms. Richmond advised there were no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Nolan, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2665. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2660 – First Reading - Change of Zoning - Project:  JEL Land 

Development, LLC - Location: 2400 Schopke Road. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2660 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-1A (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) TO 

“CITY” PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SCHOPKE LESTER 

ROAD AND SOUTH OF SHOPKE ROAD, COMPRISING 19.67 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JEL LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Phil Martinez, Planner, reviewed the project stating this is a proposed change in zoning from 

R1A to PUD for 19.67 acres at 2400 Schopke Road. He reviewed the location and 

surrounding land-uses. DRC and Planning Commission recommends approval. The 

recommendation is to approve at first reading and hold it over for a second reading.  

 

Tom Sullivan, representing the applicant, said they agreed with the staff recommendation. He 

stated this project would have an increase in the minimum required size of homes. 

 

18



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 16 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2660 at first reading and carry it over for a second reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, 

Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

4. Ordinance No. 2666 – First Reading – Change of Zoning – Kelly Park Road Publix 

Center - Project:  JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust - Location:  4966 Plymouth-Sorrento 

Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (PD/ZIP) TO “CITY” KELLY 

PARK INTERCHANGE MIXED-USE (KPI-MU), AND ASSIGNING A 

KELLY PARK CROSSING INTERCHANGE AND VILLAGE CENTER 

OVERLAY DISTRICTS, FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF STATE ROAD 429 ON THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF WEST KELLY 

PARK ROAD AND PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD, COMPRISING 

18.13 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JD AND KATHLEEN L 

HORNE TRUST; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Bobby Howell, Senior Planner, reviewed the project stating this was a request for a change in 

zoning from County A-1 to City Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-use and assigning a Kelly 

Park Crossing Interchange and Village Center overlay district. The Master Plan/PDP follows 

the Kelly Park Interchange Form-Based Code Requirements. The rezoning is being requested 

to develop a 68,231 sq. ft. commercial development including a 46,031 sq. ft. Publix 

supermarket. He reviewed an aerial photograph to show the surrounding land-uses and 

location of the subject property. DRC and Planning Commission recommend approval. The 

recommendation is to approve at first reading and carry over for a second reading.  

 

Kathy Hattaway, representing the applicant, said they are in agreement with the staff report 

and available for any questions.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2666 at first reading and carry it over for a second reading. 

19



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 17 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, 

Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

5. Ordinance No. 2667 – First Reading – Change of Zoning/PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan - Project:  Vista Reserve - Location: On the east side of Rogers Road, 

approximately ½ mile north of the intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road.  The 

City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2667 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL SINGLE-FAMILY DISTRICT (R-

1AA) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD), FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF ROGERS 

ROAD, APPROXIMATELY ONE-HALF MILE NORTH OF THE 

INTERSECTION OF ROGERS ROAD AND LESTER ROAD, 

COMPRISING 61.1 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 

MIKHAIL WAFAA, ABDELSAYED GEORGE, ABDELSAYED LUCY, 

AND ABDELSAYED WAFEEK; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Howell reviewed the proposed change in zoning to a PUD for Vista Reserve proposing 

163 single family units in one phase. He reviewed the subject property on a map and showed 

the surrounding land-uses on an aerial map. The Planning Commission found the proposed 

amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommended approval, and did 

DRC.  The recommendation is to approve at first reading and carry over for a second reading.  

 

Tom Sullivan, representing the applicant, said this was a strong package with excellent 

amenities. He stated he was present to answer any questions. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Tova Havlykke said she appreciates that they met with the neighborhood and listened to their 

concerns. She did say they were not excited about any development and the added traffic on 

Lester Road.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2667 at first reading and carry it over for a second reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, 

and Smith voting aye.  

 

20



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 18 

6. Ordinance No. 2668 – First Reading – Amending Ordinance No. 2345 - Project: Orange 

Blossom Apopka RV Resort Inc., c/o Robert Vesely - Location: 3800 W. Orange 

Blossom Trail. The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2668 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE 2345, WHICH AMENDS THE ADOPTED “KOA 

CAMPGROUND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER 

PLAN” FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3800 WEST 

ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 10.2 ACRES MORE OR 

LESS; OWNED BY ORANGE BLOSSOM APOPKA RV RESORT INC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Martinez presented the project advising this was a request to amend the PUD to add 11 

additional campsites. Planning Commission and DRC recommended approval.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2668 at first reading and carry it over for a second reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and Commissioners Bankson, Becker, 

Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

7. Resolution 2018-10 - FY17/18 Budget Amendment. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows:  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-10 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018, 

PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET AMENDMENT 

Jamie Roberson, Finance Director, reviewed the budget amendment in detail reviewing each 

line item as presented in the agenda packet. The request is to approve Resolution No. 2018-

10, amending the budget for FY 17/18.  

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

21



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 19 

William Gusler said this reaffirms the budget struggle spending money that was not part of 

the budget. He stated this was the seventh budget amendment based on overspending over 

the last three years.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Smith, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve Resolution No. 2018-10. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

8. Resolution 2018-11 - Public Risk Management (PRM) Notice of Intent to Withdraw. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows:  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO PROVIDE 

PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA WITH NOTICE OF THE 

CITY’S INTENT TO WITHDRAW; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

Tangela Whaley, Human Resource Operations Manager, said one area that has a potential for 

savings is the Property and Casualty. By approving this resolution with an intent to withdraw, 

it allows the City to obtain a competitive bid for the property and casualty side.  If the bids 

come in with a change beneficial to the city, then the findings will be brought to Council for 

discussion and action. 

 

Mayor Nelson opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

David Lodwick, Halafax of Century of Public Risk Insurance, said he was here to support 

staffs recommendation to seek alternatives to save money and seek better value. They will be 

pleased to respond to an RFP and their partner will be the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust. 

He said the resolution they are being required to do tonight would not be required by the 

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust. They look forward to submitting something in the future. 

 

No one wishing to speak, Mayor Nelson closed the public hearing.  

 

Mayor Nelson spoke of PRM and the losses they have had between 2012 and 2016 of their 

reserves.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Nolan, and seconded by Commissioner Smith, to approve 

Resolution No. 2018-11. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Nelson, and 

Commissioners Bankson, Becker, Nolan, and Smith voting aye.  

 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

22



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 20 

Commissioner Bankson said it was good to see the painting and improvements on the corner of 

Park Av and 441.  He reported he has an opportunity to travel to Israel in January, leaving on the 

16
th

 and returning the 25
th

. He requested consideration to shift meeting dates as they get closer to 

this time.  

 

Commissioner Smith said he would not be available the first meeting next month and requested 

any budget items be carried over.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Fireworks update – Mayor Nelson reported the vendor for the fireworks has agreed to pay the 

City back and provide a free show in September.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 11:07 p.m.  

 

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST; 

 

 

____________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

23



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Police Department  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Request Memo 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  $1,500.00 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS  
 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE A $1,500.00 DONATION TO THE APOPKA HIGH SCHOOL 

ACADEMIC CONSORTIUM OF SCHOLARS FROM THE LAW 

ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 

Funds in the amount of $1,500.00 to be donated to Apopka High School (Orange County Public Schools) 

to promote and support the Academic Consortium of Scholars. This program provides incentives for 

student academic success. Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based 

programs. In accordance with trust fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a percentage of 

the total shared monies received for the costs associated with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime 

prevention education, or other nonprofit community-based programs or activities that are formally 

approved by the chief law enforcement officer. The Apopka Police Department supports initiatives that 

promote youth activities which are consistent with a healthy, anti-drug lifestyle. These expenditures are 

supportive of and consistent with the department’s support of local school activities. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Law Enforcement Trust Fund - State    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $1,500.00 from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

24



 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6
th

 Street Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Date:  August 1, 2018 

 

To:  Honorable Bryan Nelson and Commissioners 

 

RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

 

 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 

Funds in the amount of $1,500.00 to be donated to Apopka High School (Orange County Public Schools) to 

promote and support the Academic Consortium of Scholars. This program provides incentives for student 

academic success. Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based programs. In 

accordance with trust fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a percentage of the total shared 

monies received for the costs associated with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime prevention education, or 

other nonprofit community-based programs or activities that are formally approved by the chief law 

enforcement officer. The Apopka Police Department supports initiatives that promote youth activities 

which are consistent with a healthy, anti-drug lifestyle. These expenditures are supportive of and consistent 

with the department’s support of local school activities. 

 

 

Respectfully, 

 
Michael McKinley 

Chief of Police         

25



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Police Department  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Request Memo 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  $1,500.00 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS  
 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE A $1,500.00 DONATION FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST 

FUNDS TO APOPKA HIGH SCHOOL YOUTH SPORTS. 

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 

Fund in the amount of $1,500.00 to be donated to Apopka High School (Orange County Public Schools) 

to support local youth sports. Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based 

programs. In accordance with trust fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a portion of the 

total of shared monies received for the costs associated with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime 

prevention education, or other nonprofit community-based programs or activities that are formally 

approved by the chief law enforcement officer.  

 

The Apopka Police Department supports initiatives that promote youth activities which are consistent 

with a healthy, anti-drug lifestyle. The Apopka Police Department also supports initiatives that protect 

and defend youth within Central Florida. These expenditures are supportive of, and consistent with, the 

department’s support of local activities. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Law Enforcement Trust Fund – State    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $1,500.00 from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

26



 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6
th

 Street Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Memorandum 
 

 

 

Date:  August 1, 2018 

 

To:  Honorable Bryan Nelson and Commissioners 

 

RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

 

 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 

Fund in the amount of $1,500.00 to be donated to Apopka High School (Orange County Public Schools) to 

support local youth sports. Law Enforcement Trust Funds may be used to support community-based 

programs. In accordance with trust fund rules, a local law enforcement agency may use a portion of the total 

of shared monies received for the costs associated with drug abuse treatment, drug and crime prevention 

education, or other nonprofit community-based programs or activities that are formally approved by the 

chief law enforcement officer.  

 

The Apopka Police Department supports initiatives that promote youth activities which are consistent with 

a healthy, anti-drug lifestyle. The Apopka Police Department also supports initiatives that protect and 

defend youth within Central Florida These expenditures are supportive of, and consistent with, the 

department’s support of local activities. 

 

Respectfully, 

 
Michael McKinley 

Chief of Police         

27



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Police Department  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Request Memo 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  $11,799.00 EXPENDITURE FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS  
 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE AN $11,799.00 DONATION FROM LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST 

FUNDS TO PURCHASE AN OUTDOOR CINEMA SYSTEM. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 

Funds in the amount of $11,799.00 to purchase an outdoor cinema system.  

 

The department received three quotes for similar systems.  

 Open Air Cinema:   $12,881.45 

 Price Family Entertainment: $11,799.00 

 Outdoor Movies:  $11,595.00 

 

Selected Vendor   Item     Cost 

Price Family Entertainment  Epic Cinema System   $11,799.00 

The requested system is larger than the other quoted systems and the vendor is including staff training.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Law Enforcement Trust Fund - Federal    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Finance Department to disburse $ 11,799.00 from the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

28



 
 

 

 

 

 

City of Apopka 
Police Department 

112 E. 6
th

 Street Apopka, Florida 32703 

 

Memorandum 
 

Date:  August 1, 2018 

 

To:  Honorable Bryan Nelson and Commissioners 

 

RE:  LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUNDS 

 

 

The Police Department requests City Council approval to expend funds from the Law Enforcement Trust 

Funds in the amount of $11,799.00 to purchase an outdoor cinema system. 

 

The Apopka Police Department engages in many outreach programs. From members participating in 

cookies-and-milk-with-a-cop, summer youth camps, meeting with local faith based and service groups, and 

participating in ‘National Night Out,’ department members continue to promote and foster community 

relationships. One of the most critical components of effective law enforcement is the establishment and 

maintenance of public trust. The department is committed to community policing as a method to ensure 

Apopka’s officers are part of the fabric of the Apopka community.  

 

Knowing one’s neighbors is an easy and cost effective form of crime prevention, and yet getting to know 

one’s neighbors is not always easy. In an effort to bring neighbors together, the department will, in concert 

with its community policing initiatives and in cooperation with Apopka recreation, expand the city’s movie 

nights in the park program.  Creating an environment where the community can gather can be successful in 

building relationships between the Apopka police department and the community. As recent incidents 

across the country have shown, building relationship within the community is essential to maintaining law 

and order. Strengthening the bonds of communication between law enforcement and the community is a 

mission of the Apopka Police Department and this will be a successful method of making positive first 

impressions with the community. 

 

Respectfully, 

 
Michael McKinley 

Chief of Police         

29



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:          Community Development  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Vicinity Map  

       OTHER:                   Agreement 
  

 

SUBJECT: LAKESIDE PHASE I (177 LOTS) 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE A SEWER AND 

WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT FOR LAKESIDE PHASE I (177 LOTS) 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for Lakeside Phase I, 

located south of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Lakeside 

Phase I.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

30



 

 

LAKESIDE PHASE I 
Avatar Properties Inc.; James D. & Deborah M. Lyda 

Parcel ID No’s: 08-21-28-0000-00-005, 08-21-28-0000-00-043 
Total Acres: 114.288 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services   

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: EMERGENCY PIPING REPAIRS FOR BRADSHAW LIFT STATION #77 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE DANUS UTILITIES TO PERFORM THE EMERGENCY PIPING 

REPAIRS IN THE AMOUNT OF $28,521 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Bradshaw Road Regional Lift Station #77 has experienced a failure of the riser piping and base 

elbow on Pump No. 1.  As this station is a regional lift station, serving the north and western areas of the 

City, it is necessary to complete these repairs as soon as possible to insure redundancy in the pumping 

capabilities of the station and prevent the potential for a sewer overflow. 

 

Staff has obtained a proposal from Danus Utilities, through the South Seminole & North Orange County 

Wastewater Transmission Authority Contract No. 2016-002, for the installation of a new pump base 

elbow, high density polyethylene (HDPE) piping, and fittings in the amount of $28,521. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Wastewater Operations Reserve Fund 401    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve Danus Utilities to perform the emergency piping repairs to the Bradshaw Road Regional Lift 

Station #77 in the amount of $28,521. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

62



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Recreation 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Event Budget 

  X  OTHER: BUSINESS 
  

 

SUBJECT:  SUNDAY FUN DAY EVENT 

 

REQUEST: APPORVAL OF EVENT AND FIREWORKS VENDOR 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City of Apopka has planned a free fireworks event for the Labor Day weekend. Sunday Fun Day is in 

response to the cancelled fireworks by Creative Pyrotechnics at the July 4
th 

event.  Staff is requesting 

approval of Zambelli as the fireworks vendor via evaluated source.  The selection is based on their history 

as a reputable pyrotechnic company and past performed experience with the City of Apopka. Activities 

will replicate those at the July 4
th

 event, but on a smaller scale, with live entertainment, inflatables, face 

painting and balloon artist as well as food vendors. Anticipated revenue is $1,350 and the total cost is 

$23,543.12, funding is available in the current recreation budget for this event. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Recreation Budget Activities & Civic Events FY17-18    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approval of the Sunday Fun Day event and Zambelli as the preferred fireworks vendor. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

63



September Event
Proposed Revenue Expenses

Food Vendors (8 vendors) 1,200.00$   Entertainment w/ production 4,350.00$       

Non profit (3 vendors) 150.00$       Fireworks 12,000.00$     

Portalets 385.00$           

Banners/signage 200.00$           

Advertising 2,000.00$       

Sams- staff food/water 300.00$           

Nelsons Tents 714.12$           

Security 594.00$           

Inflatables 2,200.00$       

Balloon Artist & Face Painter 600.00$           

Marketing 200.00$           

Total Revenue 1,350.00$   Total Expenses 23,543.12$     

Total Revenue -$                 

Total Expenses 23,543.12$     

Net Profit/Loss (23,543.12)$    

64



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan  Aerial Map 

   Preliminary Development Plan 

   Building Elevations 

    Special Exception Site Plan 
  
PROJECT:    PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – SITE PLAN AND 

SUBDIVISION PLAN – FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE  

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   Farish Enterprises, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:                         Stuart Anderson, P.E., Interplan, LLC 
 
LOCATION: 1616 East Semoran Boulevard 

 
PARCEL ID #:   11-21-28-5600-03-000 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-2 (General Commercial District) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant  
 
PROPOSED USES: Hotel, Self-Storage Facility and RV Parking 
 
TRACT SIZE:   12.12 +/- Acres (527,937 square feet) 
   
BUILDING SIZE: 112,320 square feet; 91 Rooms/51,588 SF - Hotel; 60,732 SF - Storage 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT: 53 feet (Hotel) and 35 feet (Self-Storage) 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO: 0.2499 (0.25 Maximum allowed) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2018\Fairfield Inn & Self Storage - FKA Farish Enterprises\3 City Council Hearing

65



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-2 Aldi’s and RaceTrac Convenience 

Store 

East (City and 

County) 

City Commercial/County Low 

Medium Density  Residential 

C-2 and R-2 Single Family Residences and 

Commercial 

South (City and 

County) 

City Medium Density Residential 

and County Low Medium Density 

Residential  

R-2 Single Family Residences 

West (County) County Commercial C-2 Vacant 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY:   Farish Enterprises proposes to replat the McVilla Commerce Park Plat from 

three lots to four lots. Lot 3 of the McVilla Commerce Center Plat will be subdivided into Lots 3A and 3B.  

Lot 3B, is the proposed location of a hotel and a storage facility.  Lot 3A will function as an outparcel and 

is situated along Semoran Blvd.   A site plan for Lot 3B is included in this Preliminary Development Plan.  

At a future date, a site plan will be submitted for the vacant outparcel, Lot 3A.  The site plans for the self-

storage facility and the hotel are designed so that the parcel can be further subdivided into separate lots at 

some time in the future. 

 

The site plan for Lot 3B includes the hotel and self-storage facility.  A service driveway/road connects 

McVilla Avenue to the western end of Lot 3B and to an outparcel in Lot 3A.  A multi-tenant monument 

sign will be placed in a sign easement at the northeast corner of Lot 3A, and dedicated to the Lot 3B owner.  

 

At four stories, the hotel includes 91-lodging units and an outdoor pool.  At three stories, the 60,732 square 

feet self-storage facility will include outdoor storage for recreational vehicles, trucks and other equipment.  

Located behind the Aldi Grocery Store and the RaceTrac on East Semoran Boulevard, the hotel and self-

storage facility have a proposed connection to Semoran from the private driveway, McVilla Avenue. 

 

BUILDING HEIGHT:  Section 2.02.01(A) of the City’s Land Development Code, mandates a maximum 

building height of 35’ for all districts. On December 13, 2016, the Planning Commission approved a special 

exception to allow a maximum building height of fifty-five (55) feet for the hotel. The self-storage facility 

is in accordance with the previously mentioned building height rule of 35’.  The hotel is proposed to have 

a height of 53 feet.  

 

PARKING:  The hotel site contains 106 parking spaces of which five are handicapped spaces.   And the 

self-storage facility contains 67 parking spaces of which two are handicapped spaces. In total, the applicant 

proposes 64 more parking spaces than what is required by the Land Development Code.  The applicant has 

not declared whether joint parking will be allowed between the hotel and self-storage sites, but that 

capability exists as Lot 3B will occur under one ownership. 
 
ACCESS/TRANSPORTATION:  Access to the site is via a single full access points on US 441/Semoran 
Boulevard at McVilla Avenue, a signalized intersection. McVilla Avenue dead ends into this project and 
provides access to US 441/Semoran Boulevard for Aldi on the west and RaceTrac on the right. 

A. Road Jurisdiction. 

1. US 441/Semoran Boulevard – State Road. 
66



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

2. McVilla Avenue – Private. 

3. A cross-access easement provides connection between Lot 3A and the Aldi lot, connecting 

to Semoran Blvd.  

B. The project is anticipated to generate 71 PM Peak Hour trips. All project generated traffic is 

anticipated to exit the site to US 441/Semoran Boulevard, half heading east and half heading west. 

Sufficient capacity exists to accommodate the addition of trips generated by this project. 

C. Road/Intersection Improvements. No roadway or intersection improvements are required. 

 

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site retention pond 

located on the south portion of the project site abutting residential uses/districts and surrounded by a 6-foot 

tall aluminum fence.  The on-site stormwater management system is designed according to standards set 

forth in the Land Development Code.   

  

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The site plan shows that parking lots and buildings are proposed to be 

lined with predominantly Live Oaks and Slash Pines.  Live oaks are shown, in addition to a 6-foot tall 

masonry, concrete or brick wall on the southern boundary and portion of the eastern boundary line abutting 

residential zoning districts.  At its meeting on July 10, 2018, the Planning Commission discussed the Speical 

Exception buffer conditions and asked that the landscape buffer along the east property line occur consistent 

with the Special Exception site plan.  The applicant agreed and amended the plan to increase the proposed 

30-foot wide eastern landscape buffer to a width of 35 feet, where it abuts residential zoning districts and 

uses.    The planting materials are consistent with the standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

 

SIGNAGE:   Four hundred (400) square feet of area at the northeastern corner of the  outparcel, abutting 

Semoran Boulevard, is designated as an area for multitenant monument signage.  The Lot 3A outparcel will 

be created by plat at the time of Final Development Plan.  Signage for this development will be permitted 

separately and must comply with Article VIII of the City’s Land Development Code.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 10, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

August 1, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Fairfield Inn & Self Storage – 

Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 10, 2018, found the Fairfield Inn and Self-Storage 

Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan; and 

unanimously recommended approval of Preliminary Development Plan Subdivision Plan and Site Plan, 

subject to the findings of this staff report, for the property owned by Farish Enterprises, LLC, and located 

at 1616 East Semoran Boulevard. 

 

City Council:  Approve the Fairfield Inn & Self Storage – Preliminary Development Plan 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
67



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Project Name: Fairfield Inn & Self-Storage 

Owner:   Farish Enterprises, LLC 

Engineer:  Stuart Anderson, P.E., Interplan 
Parcel I.D. No:    11-21-28-5600-03-000 
Location:  1616 East Semoran Boulevard 

Total Acres:   12.12 +/- Acres 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

 68



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
FAIRFIELD INN & SELF-STORAGE – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

Subject Property 

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



07/10/2017

A211
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

HSJAM C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
  c

RE
SE

RV
ES

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
&

 O
TH

ER
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TIN

G
 T

H
ES

E 
D

O
C

UM
EN

TS
 T

O
 T

H
E 

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

ITE
 O

R 
PU

RP
O

SE
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

EY
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

AR
ED

. R
EP

RO
D

UC
TIO

N
S,

 C
H

AN
G

ES
 O

R 
AS

SI
G

N
M

EN
TS

 A
RE

 P
RO

H
IB

ITE
D

.
IN

TE
RP

LA
N

 L
LC

AA 003420
CA 8660

20
17

604 COURTLAND STREET
SUITE 100

ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32804
PH 407.645.5008
FX 407.629.9124

ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING

INTERIOR DESIGN
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

CHECKED:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS

NO DATE REMARKS

DRAWN:

SEAL:
THIS DOCUMENT IS "NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION"
UNLESS THE ARCHITECT OR ENGINEER'S
SIGNATURE AND SEAL APPEAR BELOW.

SR 436 & McVilla Ave
Apopka, FL

2017.0023

3 LEFT SIDE EXTERIOR ELEVATION 3/32" = 1'-0"

1 FRONT EXTERIOR ELEVATION 3/32" = 1'-0"

2 RIGHT SIDE EXTERIOR ELEVATION 3/32" = 1'-0"

PORTE COCHERE
CANOPY NOT SHOWN
FOR CLARITY

Z37C

Z37C

Z37C

Z37C

Z37C

Z37A

Z36AZ36BZ36AZ36BZ36AZ36BZ36AZ36BZ36A

A213
2

Z36B

Z28

Z-38

Z36B

Z-38 Z28

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR - TEXTURED

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR

PEARLESCENT ACCENT EIFS FINISH

ACCENT EIFS COLOR

MAIN BUILDING EIFS COLOR

CULTURED STONE

EXTERIOR ACCENT FINISH AT RAINSCREEN
- SOLID PHENOLIC BOARD SIDING
- CEMENT BOARD SIDING (OPTION)

ACCENT EIFS COLOR

STAIR TOWER EIFS COLOR

PAINT COLOR - ALUM. ROOF SHADE
CANOPY & OTHER METAL COPINGS,
FASCIAS, ETC.

COPING

EXTERIOR FINISH KEY

KEY NOTES
1. TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW @ GROUND FLOOR

2. TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW FOR UPPER FLOOR

3. CHANNEL LETTER SIGNAGE ON SIDES OF BUILDING.

4. ALIGN AND COORDINATE REVEALS ALONG FACADE OF BUILDING. SEE ENLARGED DETAILS
FOR DIMENSIONS.

5. CONTINUE REVEALS ALONG EXTENDED EDGE OF BUILDING.

6. SIDE ENTRY CANOPY. SEE ENLARGED ELEVATIONS FOR DETAILS.

7. ROOF SHADE CANOPY, SEE SHEET A202 FOR DETAILS.

8. WINDOW TO BE "FROSTED" TO CREATED VISUAL SCREEN TO LAUNDRY ROOM. SEE WINDOW
SCHEDULE.

9. CHANNEL LETTER SIGNAGE AT FRONT OF BUILDING. SEE SIGNAGE MANUAL - EXTERIOR
SIGNAGE PACKAGE FOR REQUIREMENTS.

10. PTAC LOUVER INTEGRAL WITH WINDOW FRAME. FINISH TO MATCH WINDOW FRAME.

11. RAINLEADER OVERFLOW LOCATION.

GENERAL NOTES
1. G.C. TO CONTINUE FINISH TO INSIDE CORNER VERSUS FINISH

TRANSITIONS AT OUTSIDE CORNER.

LEGEND
WINDOW TAG

FINISH TAG

KEY NOTE

94



07/10/2017

A212
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

HSJAM C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
  c

RE
SE

RV
ES

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
&

 O
TH

ER
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TIN

G
 T

H
ES

E 
D

O
C

UM
EN

TS
 T

O
 T

H
E 

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

ITE
 O

R 
PU

RP
O

SE
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

EY
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

AR
ED

. R
EP

RO
D

UC
TIO

N
S,

 C
H

AN
G

ES
 O

R 
AS

SI
G

N
M

EN
TS

 A
RE

 P
RO

H
IB

ITE
D

.
IN

TE
RP

LA
N

 L
LC

AA 003420
CA 8660

20
17

604 COURTLAND STREET
SUITE 100

ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32804
PH 407.645.5008
FX 407.629.9124

ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING

INTERIOR DESIGN
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

CHECKED:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS

NO DATE REMARKS

DRAWN:

SEAL:
THIS DOCUMENT IS "NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION"
UNLESS THE ARCHITECT OR ENGINEER'S
SIGNATURE AND SEAL APPEAR BELOW.

SR 436 & McVilla Ave
Apopka, FL

2017.0023

1 REAR EXTERIOR ELEVATION 3/32" = 1'-0"

2 REAR EXTERIOR 3D VIEW 3/32" = 1'-0"

1. TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW @ GROUND FLOOR

2. TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW FOR UPPER FLOOR.

3. LOUVERED SUNSHADE; MAPES CANTILEVERED LUMISHADE.

4. ALIGN AND COORDINATE REVEALS ALONG FACADE OF
BUILDING. SEE ENLARGED DETAILS FOR DIMENSIONS.

5. CONTINUE REVEALS ALONG EXTENDED EDGE OF BUILDING.

6. PTAC LOUVER INTEGRAL WITH WINDOW FRAME. FINISH TO
MATCH WINDOW FRAME.

Z-38

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR - TEXTURED

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR

PEARLESCENT ACCENT EIFS FINISH

ACCENT EIFS COLOR

MAIN BUILDING EIFS COLOR

CULTURED STONE

EXTERIOR ACCENT FINISH AT RAINSCREEN
- SOLID PHENOLIC BOARD SIDING
- CEMENT BOARD SIDING (OPTION)

ACCENT EIFS COLOR

STAIR TOWER EIFS COLOR

PAINT COLOR - ALUM. ROOF SHADE
CANOPY & OTHER METAL COPINGS,
FASCIAS, ETC.

COPING

EXTERIOR FINISH KEY

KEY NOTES

GENERAL NOTES
1. G.C. TO CONTINUE FINISH TO INSIDE CORNER VERSUS FINISH

TRANSITIONS AT OUTSIDE CORNER.

LEGEND
WINDOW TAG

FINISH TAG

KEY NOTE

95



EAST ELEVATION
3/32"=1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATION
3/32"=1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION
3/32"=1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION
3/32"=1'-0"

MATV
RM.

STAIR 1

STAIR 2

W
ATER

FOOD
PREP

LOBBY

VESTIBULE

CORRIDOR

THE
CORNER
MARKET

ICE
DISPENSERELEV.

EQUIP.

LAUNDRY EMPLOYEE
BREAK
ROOM

WORK

OFFICE

ELEV AELEV B

POOL
MECH. STOR.

ELEC.

MECHANICAL

VESTIBULE

MEN

WOMEN

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

* KINGKINGKINGKING

KINGKING

FOUR BAY MEETING ROOM

ACCESSIBLE
KING

ROLL-IN

T

ACCESSIBLE
KING

ROLL-IN

PTAC

TV

GFI

J
PB

D233/X-410

T06

R77

D235/X-407/X-407B*

*

*

BREAKFAST

CONNECT
& PRINT

LOUNGE

STORAGE CLOSET STORAGE CLOSET

Z01Z01Z01Z01Z01

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

T

GFI

TV

PTAC

T06

D235/X-407/X-407B

R77

D231/X-506

*

*

*

KING KING KING

SELF STORAGE BUILDING
THREE STORIES
20,244 SF PER FLOOR
60,732 GSF

STIE PLAN

FINISH MATERIAL SCHEDULE

4-13-18

A0.1
PRELIMINARY

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

CHECKED:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS

NO DATE REMARKS

DRAWN:

SEAL:
THIS DOCUMENT IS "NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION"
UNLESS THE ARCHITECT OR ENGINEER'S
SIGNATURE AND SEAL APPEAR BELOW.

FARISH
ENTERPRISES

1616 
East Semoran Blvd
Apopka, Florida

2017.0253

C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
  c

AA 003420
CA 8660

20
18

  I
N

TE
RP

LA
N

 L
LC

  R
ES

ER
VE

S 
C

O
PY

RI
G

H
T 

&
 O

TH
ER

 R
IG

H
TS

 R
ES

TR
IC

TIN
G

 T
H

ES
E 

D
O

C
UM

EN
TS

 T
O

 T
H

E 
O

RI
G

IN
AL

 S
ITE

 O
R 

PU
RP

O
SE

 F
O

R 
W

H
IC

H
 T

H
EY

 W
ER

E 
PR

EP
AR

ED
. R

EP
RO

D
UC

TIO
N

S,
 C

H
AN

G
ES

 O
R 

AS
SI

G
N

M
EN

TS
 A

RE
 P

RO
H

IB
ITE

D
.

604 COURTLAND STREET
SUITE 100

ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32804
PH 407.645.5008
FX 407.629.9124

ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING

INTERIOR DESIGN
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

P:
\F

\F
ar

is
hE

nt
er

pr
is

es
\2

01
7.

02
53

 -
 S

R 
43

6 
Se

lf 
St

or
ag

e,
 A

po
pk

a,
 F

L\
3 

CA
D

 &
 D

ra
w

in
gs

\1
 P

re
lim

in
ar

ie
s\

17
02

53
 D

RC
 E

le
va

tio
ns

 A
0.

1-
Re

v-
1.

dw
g,

 E
XT

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S 
A0

.1
, 5

/1
0/

20
18

 1
1:

39
:5

4 
AM

, A
N

D
W

IL
, D

W
G

 T
o 

PD
F.

pc
3,

 A
RC

H
 fu

ll 
bl

ee
d 

D
 (3

6.
00

 x
 2

4.
00

 In
ch

es
), 

1:
1

96



SP-CS
COVER SHEET

HMCDB

11-30-16

CHECKED:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS

NO DATE REMARKS

DRAWN:

SEAL:

2016.0341

C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
  c

RE
SE

RV
ES

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
&

 O
TH

ER
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TIN

G
 T

H
ES

E 
D

O
C

UM
EN

TS
 T

O
 T

H
E 

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

ITE
 O

R 
PU

RP
O

SE
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

EY
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

AR
ED

. R
EP

RO
D

UC
TIO

N
S,

 C
H

AN
G

ES
 O

R 
AS

SI
G

N
M

EN
TS

 A
RE

 P
RO

H
IB

ITE
D

.
IN

TE
RP

LA
N

 L
LC

AA 003420
CA 8660

20
16

604 COURTLAND STREET
SUITE 100

ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32804
PH 407.645.5008
FX 407.629.9124

ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING

INTERIOR DESIGN
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

OWNER

CIVIL ENGINEER

ARCHITECT

OWNER & CONSULTANTS

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

1616 EAST SEMORAN BOULEVARD
APOPKA, FLORIDA

FARISH ENTERPRISES

VICINITY MAP

LOCATION MAP

SHEET INDEXREVISION ISSUE LOG

N.T.S.

N.T.S.

SITE

SITE

SURVYER

SPECIAL EXCEPTION FOR 55' HEIGHT REQUEST
FOR

97



SP-EX
SPECIAL EXCEPTION

HMCDB

11-11-16

CHECKED:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS

NO DATE REMARKS

DRAWN:

SEAL:

2016.0341

C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
  c

RE
SE

RV
ES

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
&

 O
TH

ER
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TIN

G
 T

H
ES

E 
D

O
C

UM
EN

TS
 T

O
 T

H
E 

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

ITE
 O

R 
PU

RP
O

SE
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

EY
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

AR
ED

. R
EP

RO
D

UC
TIO

N
S,

 C
H

AN
G

ES
 O

R 
AS

SI
G

N
M

EN
TS

 A
RE

 P
RO

H
IB

ITE
D

.
IN

TE
RP

LA
N

 L
LC

AA 003420
CA 8660

20
16

604 COURTLAND STREET
SUITE 100

ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32804
PH 407.645.5008
FX 407.629.9124

ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING

INTERIOR DESIGN
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

FOR HEIGHT REQUEST

LOT 1
PARCEL NO : 11-21-28-5600-01-000

ALDI (FLORIDA) LLC

STATE ROAD 436 (200.0' R/W)

( SEMORAN BOULEVARD )

LOT 2
PARCEL NO : 11-21-28-5600-02-000

RACETRAC PETROLEUM INC.

SPECIAL EXCEPTION PLAN
1"=50'

GENERAL NOTES

SITE DATA TABLE

FOR HEIGHT REQUEST

SPECIAL EXCEPTION NOTES

LEGEND

LINE OF SIGHT EXHIBIT

98



EX1
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

MRSCDB

10-31-16

CHECKED:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS

NO DATE REMARKS

DRAWN:

SEAL:

2016.0341

C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
  c

RE
SE

RV
ES

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
&

 O
TH

ER
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TIN

G
 T

H
ES

E 
D

O
C

UM
EN

TS
 T

O
 T

H
E 

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

ITE
 O

R 
PU

RP
O

SE
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

EY
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

AR
ED

. R
EP

RO
D

UC
TIO

N
S,

 C
H

AN
G

ES
 O

R 
AS

SI
G

N
M

EN
TS

 A
RE

 P
RO

H
IB

ITE
D

.
IN

TE
RP

LA
N

 L
LC

AA 003420
CA 8660

20
16

604 COURTLAND STREET
SUITE 100

ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32804
PH 407.645.5008
FX 407.629.9124

ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING

INTERIOR DESIGN
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

EF3

ST1

SP1 EF1

EF2b

EF4

EF4a

EF4a

EF4

EF2
EF4

EF4a

A

B

A

A

A

B

E.1

A.1 A.1 A.1

A.1A.1A.1

A.1 A.1 A.1

S2 S1D

E

PORTE COCHERE
CANOPY NOT SHOWN
FOR CLARITY

BB B B B B B B

Z37C

Z37C

Z37C

Z37C

Z37C

213
1

3
221

C

C

C
TYP.

A
TYP.

EF2b

EF2
PT1

PT1

2
221

Z37A

5
220

1
220

1
221

Z36AZ36BZ36AZ36BZ36AZ36BZ36AZ36BZ36A

SP1

EF4

EF4a

EF2

EF2b

SP1

EF2

ST1

F

F

F

4
220

213
2

EF3

EF4

EF4a

EF2a

EF2b

ST2

ST2

PT1

PT1

S9

EF2b

EF2

Z36B

Z28

Z-38ST1

ST2EF3

ST1 EF3

EF2a

EF2b ST1

F

F

F

2
220

EF2b

EF2

EF4

EF4a

PT1

PT1

Z36B

Z-38 Z28

ST2

6
221

ST1

EF4

EF4

EF4a

REFERENCE NOTES

CRITERIA NOTES

TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW @ GROUND FLOOR

TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW FOR UPPER FLOOR

OPT 1 - PREFERRED LOCATION FOR OPTIONAL CHANNEL
LETTER SIGNAGE ON SIDES OR ENDS OF BUILDING.
LOCATE AS APPROPRIATE BASED ON BUILDING
ORIENTATION. VERIFY PARAPET HEIGHT OR WALL
CONSTRUCTION IN THE AREA SIGN TO BE INSTALLED
WILL ALLOW FOR REAR ACCESS REQUIRED FOR
CHANNEL LETTER INSTALLATION AND OPERATION.

OPT 2 - SECONDARY LOCATION FOR OPTIONAL SIGNAGE
ON SIDES OR ENDS OF BUILDING. LOCATE AS
APPROPRIATE AND SEE NOTE A3 ABOVE FOR WALL
REQUIREMENTS FOR CHANNEL LETTER INSTALLATION.

ALIGN AND COORDINATE REVEALS ALONG FACADE OF
BUILDING. SEE ENLARGED DETAILS FOR DIMENSIONS.

CONTINUE REVEALS ALONG EXTENDED EDGE OF
BUILDING.

SIDE ENTRY CANOPY. SEE ENLARGED ELEVATIONS FOR
DETAILS.

ROOF SHADE CANOPY, SEE SHEET 202 FOR DETAILS.

WINDOW TO BE "FROSTED" TO CREATED VISUAL SCREEN
TO LAUNDRY ROOM.

CHANNEL LETTER SIGNAGE AT FRONT OF BUILDING. SEE
SIGNAGE MANUAL - EXTERIOR SIGNAGE PACKAGE FOR
REQUIREMENTS.

REFER TO DESIGN STANDARDS "SITE & BUILDING EXTERIOR"
CHAPTER FOR MAIN REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THIS SHEET.
ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DESIGNING PROJECT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE ENTIRE DESIGN STANDARDS.

REFER TO EXTERIOR FINISH INDEX FOR MATERIALS AND
COLORS; AND ALSO FOR TYPICAL FINISHES FOR EXTERIOR
ELEMENTS SUCH AS TYPICAL LOUVER COLOR, DOOR
FRAMES, PORTE COCHERE AND CANOPY STRUCTURE
FINISHES, ETC.

REFER TO THE SIGNAGE MANUAL - EXTERIOR GRAPHICS
PACKAGE FOR REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO SIGNAGE SHOWN
ON THIS SHEET.

A.

B.

C.

GENERAL NOTES
BUILDING ELEVATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND WILL VARY
BASED ON STRUCTURAL SYSTEM.

PROVIDE CONTRACTOR WITH COLOR PRINTS OF
ELEVATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL CLARITY.

CONTINUE FINISH TO INSIDE CORNER VERSUS FINISH
TRANSITIONS AT OUTSIDE CORNER.

ALL DOWNSPOUTS MUST HAVE CLEANOUTS.

1.

2.

3.

4.

CRITERIA NOTES ARE SHOWN CATEGORIZED BY DISCIPLINE
AND COULD BE INTERPRETED TO APPLY TO MORE THAN ONE
DISCIPLINE. FOR EFFICIENCY, NOTES ARE ONLY SHOWN UNDER
ONE PREDOMINANT DISCIPLINE. CONSULTANTS SHOULD
FAMILIARIZE THEMSELVES WITH ALL CRITERIA NOTES.

ENGINEERING:

ARCHITECTURE:

PTAC LOUVER INTEGRAL WITH WINDOW FRAME. FINISH
TO MATCH WINDOW FRAME.

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR - TEXTURED

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR

PEARLESCENT ACCENT EIFS FINISH

ACCENT EIFS COLOR

MAIN BUILDING EIFS COLOR

CULTURED STONE

EXTERIOR ACCENT FINISH AT RAINSCREEN
- SOLID PHENOLIC BOARD SIDING
- CEMENT BOARD SIDING (OPTION)

EF1

EF2

EF2b

EF2a

EF4

ST1

SP1

ACCENT EIFS COLOREF4a

STAIR TOWER EIFS COLOREF3

PT1 PAINT COLOR - ALUM. ROOF SHADE
CANOPY & OTHER METAL COPINGS,
FASCIAS, ETC.

COPINGST2

EXTERIOR FINISH KEY

NOTE: ALL ROOF MOUNTED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SCREENED.

99



EX2
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

MRSCDB

10-31-16

CHECKED:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

REVISIONS

NO DATE REMARKS

DRAWN:

SEAL:

2016.0341

C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
  c

RE
SE

RV
ES

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
&

 O
TH

ER
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

ES
TR

IC
TIN

G
 T

H
ES

E 
D

O
C

UM
EN

TS
 T

O
 T

H
E 

O
RI

G
IN

AL
 S

ITE
 O

R 
PU

RP
O

SE
 F

O
R 

W
H

IC
H

 T
H

EY
 W

ER
E 

PR
EP

AR
ED

. R
EP

RO
D

UC
TIO

N
S,

 C
H

AN
G

ES
 O

R 
AS

SI
G

N
M

EN
TS

 A
RE

 P
RO

H
IB

ITE
D

.
IN

TE
RP

LA
N

 L
LC

AA 003420
CA 8660

20
16

604 COURTLAND STREET
SUITE 100

ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32804
PH 407.645.5008
FX 407.629.9124

ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING

INTERIOR DESIGN
PROJECT MANAGEMENT

EF3

EF4

EF4a

ST1

SP1

EF2

EF4EF4aEF2

A A A

AAA

A A A

S3 H S4

A A A A
TYP. TYP. TYP. TYP.

B

EF2b

S8S5
B BB B BBBBB

C

C

C

EF2EF2bEF2b

3
220

5
221

Z-38

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR - TEXTURED

DARK EIFS FINISH COLOR

PEARLESCENT ACCENT EIFS FINISH

ACCENT EIFS COLOR

MAIN BUILDING EIFS COLOR

CULTURED STONE

EXTERIOR ACCENT FINISH AT RAINSCREEN
- SOLID PHENOLIC BOARD SIDING
- CEMENT BOARD SIDING (OPTION)

EF1

EF2

EF2b

EF2a

EF4

ST1

SP1

ACCENT EIFS COLOREF4a

STAIR TOWER EIFS COLOREF3

PT1 PAINT COLOR - ALUM. ROOF SHADE
CANOPY & OTHER METAL COPINGS,
FASCIAS, ETC.

COPINGST2

EXTERIOR FINISH KEY

REFERENCE NOTES

CRITERIA NOTES

TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW @ GROUND FLOOR

TYPICAL GUESTROOM WINDOW FOR UPPER FLOOR.

OPTIONAL BUILDING CHANNEL LETTER SIGNAGE AT
REAR OF BUILDING.

LOUVERED SUNSHADE.

ALIGN AND COORDINATE REVEALS ALONG FACADE OF
BUILDING. SEE ENLARGED DETAILS FOR DIMENSIONS.

CONTINUE REVEALS ALONG EXTENDED EDGE OF
BUILDING.

GENERAL NOTES
BUILDING ELEVATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE AND WILL VARY
BASED ON STRUCTURAL SYSTEM.

PROVIDE CONTRACTOR WITH COLOR PRINTS OF
ELEVATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL CLARITY.

CONTINUE FINISH TO INSIDE CORNER VERSUS FINISH
TRANSITIONS AT OUTSIDE CORNER.

ALL DOWNSPOUTS MUST HAVE CLEANOUTS.

1.

2.

3.

4.

CRITERIA NOTES ARE SHOWN CATEGORIZED BY DISCIPLINE
AND COULD BE INTERPRETED TO APPLY TO MORE THAN ONE
DISCIPLINE. FOR EFFICIENCY, NOTES ARE ONLY SHOWN UNDER
ONE PREDOMINANT DISCIPLINE. CONSULTANTS SHOULD
FAMILIARIZE THEMSELVES WITH ALL CRITERIA NOTES.

ENGINEERING:

ARCHITECTURE:

PTAC LOUVER INTEGRAL WITH WINDOW FRAME. FINISH
TO MATCH WINDOW FRAME.

REFER TO DESIGN STANDARDS "SITE & BUILDING EXTERIOR"
CHAPTER FOR MAIN REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THIS
SHEET. ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DESIGNING
PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ENTIRE DESIGN
STANDARDS.

REFER TO EXTERIOR FINISH INDEX FOR MATERIALS AND
COLORS; AND ALSO FOR TYPICAL FINISHES FOR EXTERIOR
ELEMENTS SUCH AS TYPICAL LOUVER COLOR, DOOR
FRAMES, PORTE COCHERE AND CANOPY STRUCTURE
FINISHES, ETC.

REFER TO THE SIGNAGE MANUAL - EXTERIOR GRAPHICS
PACKAGE FOR REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO SIGNAGE
SHOWN ON THIS SHEET.

A.

B.

C.

NOTE: ALL ROOF MOUNTED EQUIPMENT SHALL BE SCREENED.

100



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Revised Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

   Revised Final Dev. Plan 
  
SUBJECT:    LAKESHORE OF WEKIVA SUBDIVISION (FKA SANDPIPER ROAD 

SUBDIVSION) – REVISED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE THE  LAKESHORE OF WEKIVA (FKA SANDPIPER 

ROAD) SUBDIVISION – REVISED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
  
SUMMARY:   
   
OWNER:   Beazer Homes, LLC 

APPLICANT:   David A. Stokes, P.E., Madden, Moorhead & Stokes, Inc. 

LOCATION: Southeast corner of Ustler Road and Sandpiper Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 03-21-28-0000-00-023; 03-21-28-0000-00-119; 03-21-28-0000-00-015; 

03-21-28-0000-00-046; 03-21-28-0000-00-073; 03-21-28-0000-00-072; 

03-21-28-0000-00-022; 03-21-28-0000-00-047; 03-21-28-0000-00-131; 

03-21-28-0000-00-106 

EXISTING USE:  Vacant 

FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 

ZONING DISTRICT:  PUD/R-1A (Residential) 

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH:      75 feet typical lot width 

MINIMUM LOT SIZE:           12,800 square feet; Minimum living area:  2,200 square feet 

TRACT SIZE:   58.23 +/- acres (48.4 developable area) 

PROPOSED  

DEVELOPMENT:  49 Single Family Residential Lots 
 

PROPOSED DENSITY: 1.01 DU/AC 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\2018\Lakeshore of Wekiva (fka Sandpiper Subd.)\5 City Council Hearings 

101



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
LAKESHORE OF WEKIVA SUBDIVISION – REVISED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Low Density Residential (4 du/ac) 
A-1, A-2 Single Family 

Residences and Vacant 

East (County) Low Density Residential (4 du/ac) 
A-1, RCE Single Family 

Residences 

South (County 
and City) 

County Low Density Residential (4 
du/ac) and City Residential Very Low 
Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 

A-2, RCE, R-1AAAA 
Single Family 

Residences 

West (City and 
County) 

City Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 
du/ac) and County Low Density 
Residential (4 du/ac) 

RCE-1, R-1AAAA, 
A-2 

Single Family 
Residences 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting to revise the previously approved Sandpiper Road 
Subdivision Final Development Plan to accommodate a larger compensating storage area for stormwater 
runoff.  The area of the Subdivision Plan affected by this revision occurs the open space/tree 
preservation/recreation/ within Tract A at the west of Lot 37.    The tree preservation/open space/recreation 
area/Tract A was approved at an area of 18.33 acres.  The compensating storage is approximately 1.4 acres 
in size.    
 
Expansion of the stormwater compensating storage area has already been completed by the developer.  Field 
inspections by City staff identified site construction activity that is inconsistent with the approved 
Subdivision Plan.    
 
The previously approved Sandpiper Road Subdivision Final Development Plan includes 49 single family 
residential units.  The Sandpiper Road Subdivision is located within a Planned Unit Development District 
which will consist of a minimum 85 feet wide lots with a minimum lot size of 11,500 S.F. and a minimum 
living area of 2,200 S.F for homes.  Development standards for the subdivision are based on the approved 
Sandpiper Road Subdivision Master Plan and the Land Development Code.   

 
ACCESS:  Ingress/egress for the development will occur from internal private roads connecting at one 
location – Sandpiper Street.  All subdivision roads are owned and maintained by the homeowners 
association. 
 
RECREATION:  The applicant is requesting to revise the previously approved Sandpiper Road 
Subdivision Final Development Plan by reducing the area of the open space/tree preservation/recreation/ 
Tract A on the western portion of the project site to accommodate for a compensating storage area.  The 
tree preservation/open space/recreation area/Tract A was approved at an area of 18.33 acres.  The 
compensating storage is approximately 1.4 acres in size.  The purpose of the compensatory area is to offset 
flood storage.  Other passive and active recreational areas that includes a tot lot shall remain.  
 
BUFFER(S)/LANDSCAPING:   The applicant has calculated that additional 159 inches of specimen tree 

inches and 40 inches of non-specimen tree inches were removed to accommodate the compensating storage.  

Larger oak trees within the 0.24 acre Tract “J”, a passive park, will be preserved.  A mitigation fee of $1,990 

in addition to the previous amount of $17,550.00 calculated at a previously approved FDP Plan, is required.  

Additional trees are protected within the 30 foot wide conservation easement along the southern and eastern 

project lines as well as designated tree preservation\open space areas within Tract “G” and.  Other buffers 

and open spaces approved in the PUD Master Plan/PDP shall remain. 

 102



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
LAKESHORE OF WEKIVA SUBDIVISION – REVISED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the revised final 

development plan application through the DRC agenda distribution. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

August 1, 2018 – City Council, 1:30 p.m.  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Lakeshore of Wekiva Subdivision – 

Revised Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on May 7, 2017, recommended approval of the Lakeshore of Wekiva 

Subdivision (FKA Sandpiper Road Subdivision) – Final Development Plan subject to Ordinance No. 2506 

(PUD Ordinance), Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan and the findings of this staff report. 

 

City Council:  Approve the Lakeshore of Wekiva Subdivision – Revised Final Development Plan subject 

to Ordinance No. 2506 (PUD Ordinance), Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan and findings of this 

staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

 
  

103



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
LAKESHORE OF WEKIVA SUBDIVISION – REVISED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

Project Name: Lakeshore of Wekiva - Revised Final Development Plan 

Property Owner: Beazer Homes 

Applicant:    David A. Stokes, P.E., Madden, Moorhead & Stokes, Inc. 

Total Site Area: 58.23 +/- acres (48.4 acres developable area) 

Parcel ID #S:  03-21-28-0000-00-023, 03-21-28-0000-00-119, 03-21-28-0000-00-015,  

03-21-28-0000-00-046, 03-21-28-0000-00-073, 03-21-28-0000-00-072, 

03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-131,  

03-21-28-0000-00-106 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 

  

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

104



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
LAKESHORE OF WEKIVA SUBDIVISION – REVISED FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
 

 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



 

PROPOSED PLAN REVISION: LAKESHORE AT WEKIVA 

(Compensating storage area that has already been expended by the developer.) 

161



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Zoning Map 
    Aerial Map 
    Final Development Plan 
    Architectural Renderings 
    Traffic Impact Analysis 
    Traffic Technical Memo 

  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – SITE PLAN – DOLLAR GENERAL STORE 

(CONTINUATION FROM THE JULY 18, 2018, CITY COUNCIL MEETING) 
    
REQUEST:  APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR DOLLAR GENERAL 

STORE 
  
SUMMARY:   

OWNERS/APPLICANTS: Lloyd Lee, Mobley Mattie Life Estate and Nathan Jerome Shaw, Sr. 
 
ENGINEERS:   Z Development Services, LLC c/o Bob Ziegenfuss, P.E. 
    Hanlex Group, LLC c/o Jeremy Anderson, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 51 and 57 East Michael Gladded Boulevard and West 9th Street 

 
PARCEL ID #s:  09-21-28-0196-80-520; 09-21-28-0196-80-512; 09-21-28-0196-80-514 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-1 (Retail Commercial) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
PROPOSED USE: General Business Establishment 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.97 +/- acres  
 
BUILDING SIZE: 7,600 square feet 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.179 (0.25 Maximum) 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SITE PLANS\2018\Dollar General 9th & Park Final Dev\4 City Council Hearings 162



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
DOLLAR GENERAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-1 Automobile Service Station 

East (City) Commercial Public Right-of-Way 

(ROW) and I-1 
Park Avenue/ Multi-Tenant Shopping 

Center 

South (City) Commercial Public Right-of-Way 

(ROW) and C-1 

Michael Gladden Boulevard/Multi-

family/Single Family Residential 

West (City) Commercial C-1 Single Family Residential 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  This is a request to approve the Dollar General Store Final Development 

Plan that includes a building size of 7,600 square feet and height of 21 feet.  A preliminary development 

plan is not required for development proposing less than 10,000 sq. ft. of building floor area. 

       

PARKING:  Per Land Development Code parking requirements, a total of 25 parking spaces will be 

provided, two of which are reserved as a handicapped parking spaces.   

 

ACCESS/TRANSPORTATION:  Access to the site is via two full access points on Park Avenue and 

Michael Gladden Boulevard.  The main entrance is on Michael Gladden Boulevard. 

 

A.  Road Jurisdiction. 

 

1. Park Avenue – Orange County.  Any new access to Park Avenue requires authorization from 

Orange County government. 

 

2. Michael Gladden Boulevard – City of Apopka.  

 

B.  Traffic Study Findings.  A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was submitted for this project that assessed 

its impacts on the transportation facilities adjacent to the site. The project is anticipated to generate 34 

PM Peak Hour net new trips. The roadway segments of Park Avenue from US 441 to Michael Gladden 

Boulevard and Michael Gladden Boulevard from Bradshaw Road to Park Avenue were analyzed for 

both existing and projected conditions. The roadway segment analysis demonstrates sufficient capacity 

exists on both roadways to accommodate the addition of trips generated by this project.  

 

 The intersection of Park Avenue and Michael Gladden Boulevard was analyzed for existing and future 

conditions for the PM Peak Hour. Under existing conditions, the eastbound left turn movement from 

Michael Gladden Boulevard to Park Avenue is experiencing significant delays. The westbound, 

northbound and southbound movements are operating at an acceptable level of service. For the future 

conditions analysis which includes existing, committed and project traffic, the eastbound left turn 

movement delay is slightly increased. This increase is primarily due to overall background traffic 

growth in and around the area. The westbound, northbound and southbound movements continue to 

operate at acceptable levels of service.  

 

C.  Road/Intersection Improvements.  None proposed or warranted, unless Orange County finds a need for 

road or intersection improvement as part of its review of the right of way permit on to Park Avenue. 

 

 163



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
DOLLAR GENERAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The height of the proposed building is 21 feet, well below the maximum 

allowable height of 35'.  Staff has found the proposed building elevations meet the intent of the City’s 

Development Design Standards\Guidelines. 

   
STORMWATER:   The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area, on the western 
portion of the project site.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements. 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONDITONS:  Prior to issuance of a building permit, the property owner shall 

consolidate the three parcels comprising the final development plan into a single parcel.  

 

BUFFER/SCREENING/LANDSCAPING/TREE PROGRAM:   As part of the development plan 

approval, bald cypress, sweet gum trees, and viburnum hedges line the buffer wall placed within the 10-

foot wide landscape buffer at western perimeter of the project site, adjacent to the retention pond.  The 10-

foot wide landscape buffers on the southern and eastern boundaries, abutting Michael Gladden Boulevard 

and Park Avenue, consist of live oaks, sweet gum, yaupon holly and southern magnolias.  

 

 Arbor Assessment 

Total inches on-site: 396 

Total inches removed 396 

Total inches retained: 0 

Total inches added:         97 

Total inches post development:                       97 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 26, 2018 - Planning Commission, 5:30 pm 

July 18, 2018 - City Council, 7:00 pm 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Dollar General Final Development 

Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 26, 2018, found the Dollar General Final Development 

Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and unanimously 

recommended approval of the Dollar General Final Development Plan subject to the Conditions of 

Approval and the findings of the staff report for the property owned by Lloyd Lee; Mobley Mattie Life 

Estate; and Nathan Jerome Shaw, Sr. and located at 51 & 57 East Michael Gladden Boulevard and West 9th 

Street.   

   

The City Council, at its meeting on July 18, 2018, continued this agenda item to its August 1, 2018, 

meeting. 

 

Approve the Dollar General – Final Development Plan. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

164



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
DOLLAR GENERAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Dollar General Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:  Lloyd Lee, Mobley Mattie Life Estate, Nathan Jerome Shaw, Sr. 

Engineer:  Z Development Services, LLC c/o Bob Ziegenfuss, P.E./Hanlex Group, LLC  

   c/o Jeremy Anderson, P.E. 
Location:  51 and 57 East Michael Gladded Boulevard and West 9th Street  
Parcel I.D. #s:    09-21-28-0196-80-520, 09-21-28-0196-80-512 and 09-21-28-0196-80-514 
Total Site Area:  0.97 acres +/- 

 
   

  VICINITY MAP 

 
  

 

  

Subject 

Property 

165



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
DOLLAR GENERAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

166



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
DOLLAR GENERAL – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

  
 
 

Subject Property 

167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



 

3101 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 265, Orlando, Florida 32803   ■   P: (407) 531-5332   ■   F: (407) 531-5331   ■   www.trafficmobility.com 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
December 11, 2017 
 
 
Re: Dollar General – Apopka 
 Traffic Analysis 
 TMC Project No. 17127 
 

 
 
The following analysis was conducted to assess the impact of the proposed development on the 

adjacent transportation facilities.  The proposed 7,500 square foot Dollar General will be located 

the northwest corner of the intersection of Michael Gladden Boulevard and Park Avenue in the 

City of Apopka, Florida, as illustrated in Figure 1.   

 

  

Figure 1 – Site Location 

187



Dollar General – Apopka 
Traffic Study  
Project № 17121 
December 11, 2017 
Page 2 of 4 
  
 

The site’s projected trip generation was calculated based on data published by the Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE) in the Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition. The proposed building 

is a 7,500 square-foot Variety Store (ITE Land Use Code 814).   

 

Table 1 
Trip Generation Analysis 

 

 

Based on this calculation, the proposed development is projected to generate a total of 314 new 

daily trips, of which 34 trips occur during the evening peak period.  The project’s impact on the 

roadway system is anticipated to be negligible during the day and during the peak hour. 

 

Project trips were distributed to the study segments, intersection and driveways based on existing 

and projected traffic patterns.  Generally, the project trip distribution is as follows: 

 

To/From North on Park Avenue  40% 
To/From South on Park Avenue  35% 
To/From West on Michael Gladden Blvd 25% 

 

The proposed development is anticipated to be constructed and open in the year 2018.  Therefore, 

the analysis of conditions at buildout was performed using existing traffic data and project trips at 

the intersection.  The analysis of roadway segment included the existing and committed trips, 

where available, as obtained from the City of Apopka’s latest Trip Allocation Tables of the 

Concurrency Management System. 

  

Daily PM Peak Hour Trips 
Rate Trips Rate Enter Exit Total

Variety Store 814 7.5 KSF 63.47 476 6.84 27 24 51

Pass By Trips 162 9 8 17

Net Trip Generation 314 18 16 34

ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition

 Description
LU 

Code
Size

188



Dollar General – Apopka 
Traffic Study  
Project № 17121 
December 11, 2017 
Page 3 of 4 
  
The results of the projected roadway segment capacity analysis are summarized in Table 2, which 

indicates that the roadway segments have sufficient capacity to accommodate the proposed 

development. 

 

Table 2 
Projected Roadway Segment Analysis 

 

 

The projected intersection operations were analyzed using the methods of the Highway Capacity 

Manual (HCM) and the Synchro software tool.  Existing intersection volumes were obtained during 

the PM peak period at Park Avenue and Michael Gladden Boulevard.  Project trips were assigned 

to the intersection based on the project’s trip distribution.  The projected volumes at buildout of 

the development are illustrated in Figure 2. 

 

Capacity Proj Daily Trips PM Peak Meets Std
Roadway Segment Daily Peak Distr  Traffic Com Proj Total Traffic Com Proj Total Daily PK

Park Avenue

US 441 to Michael Gladden Blvd 15,600 800 40% 13,011 0 126 13,137 591 0 6 597 Y Y

Michael Gladden Boulevard

Bradshaw Rd to Park Ave 15,600 800 25% 4,827 0 79 4,906 279 0 5 284 Y Y

Figure 2 – Projected Intersection Volumes

189



Dollar General – Apopka 
Traffic Study  
Project № 17121 
December 11, 2017 
Page 4 of 4 
  
 

The results of the intersection analysis, summarized in Table 3, reveal that the project access 

points are projected to operate adequately at buildout.  As for the intersection of Park Avenue and 

Michael Gladden Boulevard, it is projected to continue experiencing extended delays on the 

eastbound left turn movement during the evening peak period.  This condition existing currently 

due to the lack of sufficient gaps on Park Avenue to allow an efficient left turn movement from the 

stop sign.  The condition will continue to prevail unless alternative traffic control (i.e. four-way 

stop, traffic signal, roundabout, etc.) is implemented at this intersection.  The proposed 

development is not projected to add any traffic to the deficient eastbound movement, and project 

traffic is less than 1% of the total peak hour traffic through the intersection.  

 

Table 3 
Projected Intersection Analysis 

 

 
Therefore, based on the results of this analysis, the proposed Dollar General development will 

not adversely impact the transportation network and is adequately supported by existing 

transportation facilities. 

 

 
 

Regards,  
 
 

Mohammed Abdallah, PE, PTOE 
Florida PE No. 56169 
December 11, 2017 

 

 

Intersection Control Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS

Park Ave & 
Michael Gladden Blvd

TWSC 161.7 F 21.5 C 8.7 A 8.6 A

Access 1 & 
Park Ave

TWSC 19.4 C -- -- 8.7 A -- --

Access 2 & 
Michael Gladden Blvd

TWSC 7.6 A -- -- -- -- 9.4 A

Delay is expressed in seconds/vehicle

EB WB NB SB

190



 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

191



192



193



194



195



TURNING MOVEMENT COUNT ANALYSIS
AUTOS & TRUCKS

Intersection (N/S): Park Ave
Intersection (E/W): Micheal Gladdin Blvd

Date: 11/30/2017
Park Ave Park Ave Micheal Gladdin Blvd Micheal Gladdin Blvd

NB SB EB WB
Start End L T R L T R L T R L T R TOTAL

4:00 PM 4:15 PM 3 111 5 2 114 33 43 2 9 3 1 1 327

4:15 PM 4:30 PM 7 122 1 3 91 20 35 0 12 1 0 0 292

4:30 PM 4:45 PM 5 141 3 2 93 30 36 5 9 4 2 0 330

4:45 PM 5:00 PM 3 123 2 3 89 31 43 3 9 1 1 3 311

5:00 PM 5:15 PM 4 127 4 0 105 36 42 2 6 5 0 4 335

5:15 PM 5:30 PM 3 129 2 2 91 32 41 2 9 2 0 0 313

5:30 PM 5:45 PM 10 127 5 2 107 29 31 5 4 2 2 7 331

5:45 PM 6:00 PM 9 115 3 3 100 26 29 2 3 4 3 5 302

Total for: 4:00 PM 5:00 PM 18 497 11 10 387 114 157 10 39 9 4 4 1260

Total for: 5:00 PM 6:00 PM 26 498 14 7 403 123 143 11 22 13 5 16 1281

Tota Peak Hour: 4:45 PM 5:45 PM 20 506 13 7 392 128 157 12 28 10 3 14 1290

Overall PHF: 0.96

Southbound
     Peak Hour Volumes

128 392 7

Park Ave

157 14

12 3

28 10

Park Ave

20 506 13

Northbound

M
ic

he
al

 G
la

dd
in

 B M
icheal G

laddin B

E
as

tb
ou

nd

W
es

tb
ou

nd

196



197



8/15/2016 

Encumbered 

BaseTrafficVolume: 201,; 

Roadway 
Section 

Minor Arterials 
_IB_4l?4.fAfabama Avenue/,4,p_o_pka Boulevard) 

US 441 to 8th St 

City of Apopka CMS 
Daily and PM Peak Hour/Peak Direction (PH/PD) Encumbered Traffic Allocation Worksheets 

FINAL REPORT 

Adonted Standard 
# of Roadwav Canacitv 

Lanes LOS Dollv 1-'Hl-'I : A nnlicant lnventorv 

2L E 1.s.600 800 

·-·---~ll1~11tName 
Annlicant Inventorv Total 

Encumbered Trius 
PM 

Doilv PH/PD 

Dail, Traffic 
Base Available 

Vo 

Revision Date: 2/o/2016 

PM PH/PD Traffic 
Base Available Peak 

on 

----·-------· -·1-----1-----+--·· _,,_ -------l-----+-----11 
_________ _±,351~~-~1~L1~.2=47-i,-=1s~10~-+-- 65o __ r-SB/WB 

---+-- __ Q~i---~0~1 _____ 1_~84'..2.~% __ __1_8=1=.2=•s~%~o-+----...jl 
0 0 

2L E 17,700 880 
Develoument Name 

ic---8t_h_S_t_t_o_Sh_e_e_le_r_R_d __________ ..,.. __ ,__.,._r-~-.,...---1--~-----------------i-· ___ . _____ 4,g13,_, __ n~6=87~~--2_1_2_+-r-6~6_8.. _ __Hll/_EB__ 
-----· ________ _Q ___ ----~o'-+---+--7~7 .. o=o%_,o __ 

Aoolicant Inventory Total 0 0 

0 

2L E .. 17.700 880 
Development Name 
Annlicant Inventorv Total 

Sheeler Rd to_Lak_e_vi_'ll_e_R_d _____ . ------+----+----··· ~5- .. --9~0=7"'-+--'4"·8,.,6._+---'= 
---1---~----------· _____________ Q ___ , ___ ~o--+----+--s~2_.~q7~'%_ 

0 

~L E 18/_§.Qg~ ___2-"2__ 
~·--

__ Development N ~~e 
----+----+-----1··1b..Q.91__ __ z,5()2__~_t;_60~-r-~~-1--~~-11 Lakeville Rd to Hi:l_wa~,s=s.e~e=R=d _____ _ 

Aoolicant Inventory Total 
------+--~o"'-+-----~o .... 4L10_.~~7'%_0-+----+-----i-----ll 

0 0 

HiawasseeRdto.QverlandRd ·---~_E __ 15,§.QCJ__~---------·-- _..L.WL_ ___ 1_QJ!5.2__ .'! .. ~" =1-+-~=~-i-~=='--li 
-·--------·-----.---- ____________________ Q~yelopment Nam~---------·------1----o-+-----~o~. _§9_._56% 

Aoolicant Inventory Total o o 

11 ___ 0_v_er_l_an_d_R_d_t_o_U_S_4,~41 _________ -i __ 2L __ 1 __ E_1 __ ~s.~6_o_o-i __ 8_o_o _ _,__~----------------- _______ ---+-4,z.48 
Develonment=N=am=e __ _ 
Aoolicant i;;ventorv Total 

10 8s2 -~ ___ 5_4"__ .. JillLWB 
_ ______ ---r--------- _Q~i---~ll.~,_ ____ ,__6~q ___ :5.ti% _____ 1_~6~7 .. 7~s'%~,_ ___ _,, 

0 0 

~.5_lR.<>_<:k Spring Road/!'.'!':.!< Avenue/Clarcona_R0 0,=a=d'i'---+----· ·-+----
Kellv Park Rd to Ponkan Rd 4LD E 10.400 1.<;80 ~ 16.7"1 10,3z_!l__ ....9'17. _ 1 __ 6_o_.o_· ··_,__N_Bf~E_B-i1 

·------ !:@side at Wekiva(flz.'l Ponkan Reserye-North)-- ... 08 10 ____ . _4=0.8=4%~,_---+~o=7 .. 0a7~%, 
Ponkan Reserve ·South ... ___ . 6_3._1 _____ 7,__, ___ -+--

.. ··-____ Rock Springs Rid!<".. 160 16 ----+----<--·------ -------
Annlicant lnventorv Total 021 11 

______ 1 __ 51'-+~E'-+_~oo .. ~8~oo _ __'!,QQQ__ . ···--~--+----+-----··-~5... 1q,628 122q 711 .... ~B. 
------·- -··-----····· Hillside at We]dva (fka Ponkan Reserve· North) __!25_~ .. __ -"1_ __ .. ___ 1 __ 4~9-.3~2_%_0_~----r--~~s .. 559{; ___ _ 

Ponkan Rd to Welch Rd 

ll---------------------+----i---~---~1-----<l"P~o=n=ka=n=R=es=e=rv_e~-=So=u=t=h'-+---------·-- _____ l_~Q_. 1 ___ ~10.,_, ___ -+----··--ll--·· 
__ .R_o_c_k_S_p.!:!rigs Ridg_e____ 266 26. 

Aoolicant Inventorv Total <;87 60 
SL E 2 000 

Lad'-·b'1'rd·A-cadem··· ··-____ --·-__ -__ ---+----+-----1-~-17"274_~1,_234-<·--~7:11~-<-~N=B~:/=E=B-i, 
rn " --+-- . _362 44 4~.40_'&_ ~- 1s.6s% 

Welch Rd to Sandoioer Rd 

Sandpiper Road Subdivision ... --135.... ____!L -·---+----i----i-
Aoolicant Inventorv Total ~m so 

Sandpiper R_dt_o_Yotaw Rd ------+~s~L~ __ 1 __ E __ :11~.8~0=0-+_1,700 
ic---------------·------r---+---i----·i·-----rL_a_dybrrdAcademy 

Sandvloer Road Subdi~sion 

. ·---·· ·l-----+-=2=1.s~6=oc...+~'=1,8.§5 __ ...Ll9.9 .. -~'l""'-'='6_+-~N=B=:/~E=B.__,, 
------+-~1~4l8-+---- 'f.3 ________ _.3S.10% 26.82% 

--------------t---t--1------r-----r--~~-----~--··----

Annlicant InventorvTotal 
· ·- - ·· -~~r---~2-1----i-·····--· 

070 4S 
-----·- ... _5_],_ _!L __ 33,.=8=0=0-<_=1 Z..QQ__1 ___________________ ,_ ---r---·---+-21,8.ss 11 800 _1,Q2z__ ...... 5.9..Q__ __ lillL.fill._ 

ll---------------------+---...j---+-----1-----<l"P=a=rk=A~ve=P=ro=f=es=s=io=n=a=l=C=en=t=e=r _________ ---+---•J'15c..j----~10~1 ____ a.4~91% __ ~4.71% 
Votaw Rd_ to Orange St 

Aoolicant Inventorv Total 14<; 

11 __ ~0~r~a_ng~e~S~t~t~o_U~S-~441 ___________ ,__~sL_,,__E_+-~11~.8~o~o'-+1 __ 1~,7·0~0_,,_P_a-rk-AveProfessionalCent;;r---- .. ·-----+---10_8-+---· --~4.0.1 __ 8~·=q22~-+-~1~2="'~8~+-~"·30 ___ __fill/E.B_ 

ll---------------------+----r---r----i-··--- Annli~;~t InventorvT~t-;1·------ l:i8 i~ 26.40% 2~~_9_?i_ _______ _ 

US 441 to Michael Gladden Blvd 2L-+~E~,__=15,_6()Q ____ _Jl_()Q_ _____ _ __ _13,01 __ 1 __ 1 __ 2~,5~8~9~.,--s~Ql~-+-- 2.()9_~ J\113/fill_ 
-------------+---i---+----t----l"D=e=v=el=o=n:m=e=n=t=N~a=m=e~--- _______________ --~ll.~,_ ______ o_1 _____ 1_ 1tj.60% 26.I:i% 

Aoolicantlnventorv Total o o 
NB/EB Michael Gladden Blvd to Cleveland St 2L E l<;.600 800 ---+----l----· --~ __ 4.Jl5.1__,__4_ .. 6_)4~-r--~~·2_!4~ 

Circle K Retail ______________ , ___3fil_ .. ___ 1~2'-+·---+-~0~1=.1=0=%~0___ 40.so% 
Aoolicant In~~ntorvTotal 107 12 

-------------1~---

3of11 

City of Apopka 

198



8/15/2016 

Encumbered 

Base Traffic Volume: 201' 

City of Apopka CMS 
Daily and PM Peak Hour/Peak Direction (PH/PD) Encumbered Traffic Allocation Worksheets 

FINAL REPORT 

Adonted Standard Encumbered Trins 
# of Roadway Canacitv PM 

Revision Date: 2/q/2016 

Daih Traffic PM PH/PD Traffic 
Base Available Base Available Peak 

Section T T Aeo Dailv PH/PD V itv Volume ~' 

Minor Arterials (Continued) ______ -+-__ -+-_-+I ____ +-___ ~-------------------+----+--------- ____ _ 
-CR~:;-;:,A(Ocoee-AnonkaRoad/Mlcli""LGladdenBoulevard/Ce_!ItI:aJ.!\.venue) (Continued)_________ _ ___________ _ 

Br_a_ds]iaw Rd to Central Ave 2L E 1,.600 800 ~~5,6_g3__ _247_ __ 1_~2=F~;f-_=N=B~li=E=B'----' 1 
Coover Oak (flra Bradshaw Commerce Park) --~q~-o-+---- _ _6_ __ _ _ 1 __ =q6=.0~4%~1--------+~2=6=.8=8~% _______ _ 
Coooer Palms 101 14 i------+--
Emerson Point,.____ 1_,,_2_6=io"--+---~7~7, ___ --+---- ____ _ _ ____ _ 

--!-----+------- F]C>_rida Hospital Replace_111".._n=t_____ 3,132_1 ___ 1_8~s1--------+-----_____ _ 
Johns Road Commerce Center 4".!: 4_ _ _____ _ 

-i----FM=ar=d=e_n,,,=Ridge Apartments _________ _______n§_1 ______ 6'--' ____ 1 _____ 1f----+--
Oakmont Industrial ____________ -------+----~~6~i----~416-+----+----
Aoolicant Inventorv Total " "" 7 qq8 

~-----,-~~r--1-~~~+--8_0~0~-+--------------------+----+-----i -~--10,zZl_ __ 279 __ 1_~s~:2=1~-+-~N=B=/E=B_,1 Michael Gladden Blvd t()_lJ§_'f41 2L E 1,,600 

Lakeville Road 
Anonka Blvd to Wildwood St 2L 

Plymouth-Sorr"-nto Road (CR43'Zl___ __ 

---i------+-----i-D_e_ye]opment Name _______________ -~o~i----~o-r----+--6~;q~·=o=6'=%__ §5._i_:ili__ 
Annlicant Inventorv Total o o 

E 17.700 880 
-------+=D~e~ve=l=orn=m=e=nt~N~am~e~----

Annlicant Inventorv Total 

-------+-----1-----<-'4=.2=2~1qt-t-=1:13zz__::_ ~il_ _ ---~ NB/EB 
0 0 76.ld.% _JJ._~_??% ----."'-
0 0 

___ County Line to Kelly Park ]l,d ____ 2L E 01.soo ---------1--~-+---r~~~-r--1~6~4,of-t--------------------1-----+---- ____ .-!hl!!5___ 22 240 667 o6o; NB/EB 

--------·- Orchid Estates (tkaJ.B. Nurseries) 1oc; 8 _____ 70,_60% ______ 1_~s:8=·=8~4'%~,__ ___ _,1 
Annlicant Inventorv Total 1 oc; 8 

._______Ke_ll_y_P_ar]{Rd to Ponkan Rd 2L E 17.700 -~-i-~==_,_,8§o ___ 1________ 10 200 6 Soc; 746 22 NB_,/EB 
Oak Ridge Subd_ivi,,·,sc1=·;,=;~-_____ ------+---=""""'-l----'2"--''7'--l----+--c3.El,62Y,_ __ _ io.~ - - --
Orchid Estates (tka J.B. Nurseries) ___________ 231__ ___ lS__ ____ ,_ ___ ___, ___ ___,_ ___ _ 

Aoolicantlnventorv Total 66s 42 
__ l'_o11ka11_Bd to Lester Rd/Yothers Rd 2L E 18 600 ----~---------t---1------1--~----t--9_20 -------+-----1------j-1_2~1_0_8t-t--6~10_1_ - - ___Jl,5§__ - ____3_1__ __ J:-!llLE:ll_ 

___ 1 ____ -+"C=h=an=d~,l,"er_ Es~t,=at=e~s ____ _ ___ ___AQ__ __ _______±__ _ q2.8o% ~-~7o/o _ 
_L_iOster Ridge Subdivisig11_______ _ -~ ___ .59~i----=6-+----+----- _____ _ 

---------- Oak Ridge Subdivi~i()_n ___________ ,1,08~6_1 ____ =12=--+----+-------
Schooke Road Subdivision 106 _ll__ ____ I-----+- --f-----~----f-I 
AoolicantlnventorvTotal qq1 qq 

Lester Rd/Y()thers Rd to SR429 Connector_Rd_ 2L E 16 200 ·--------;;;;-~- ____ U:JL348_1 __ 2.~q1s~;--q~iq~-+--~-'=2 __ 1_~N_B~/E~B~1 
----------i--------t---+-----j----j-C_h_an_d_l_e_r_E_st_a_te~s~--------------t---~ ,~__,_ _____ 8__ _ __ l<f-"'2% ~--- __ 1 __ S~-~1=0'=%_1 ____ --f1 

---!-----+----- I,~~t_er Ridge Subdivi_s_ign_______ _ __ __,_ __ __78_1 ____ 8___,_ ___ -t--------i-----t--

-----t----+-~--- _,. 1 020 

-l----FO=a=k=Ri,~·, qge_Subdivision ______ 18_6_ 
Schopke Road Su]J_diyi§i=on~---

_ ____ 1_2_,_ -----j-----1-----+-----1------11 

----+-· _ 19d_l---~2~1+-----f-----1-----+---
Aovlicant Inventorv Total >;07 40 

SR42o Connector Rd to US 441 2L __ 1 _____ 11-=6,,006 10 3,7 _ ____3_1_L_ _ 5!2__.______liB/E_B_ 
Chandler Estates 70 8 _ 6L_s5% s8.o8% 

-------- -----------

--f----l--i----- _________ J,e,qter_Jli_clge Subdivision ---+--78_ 1 ____ 8--+----+-----it-----+-- _______ _ 
-i;-----+------ _ Qak Ridge Subdivision_______ ----+-- __ 18_6--f ____ 1_2c;-----t--- __________ -~ 

--------i-----i--t----~------t"S~ch=o~JD~kl=e~R~o~a=d~S=u~b=d~ivi~·~si~o~n __________ 1 __ ~=~~~-t------'.:-
Annlicant InventorvTotal ".,.' il~ 

-- -·-------1-----t-----11 

Sheeler Road -----+------+------1----1------ ----
0 ""8 6 8c2 _ ___fiQL_ ___ 3_3_§____l-IJ3/_~_Il__ 

i+-----------------------+---+---+-----+----+=====•==-------------+---~o"-+----~o _ _____ 4~~z8% _______ 1_~4L'o=·=24i'%='--+----__,1 
0 0 

it---U~S~4o.·±Lt_oA~o·o~m~:ka~B~lv~d~---------+-~~-i---t-~~~__,_~~-•--------------------j-----t----- _1__M_4_6__ __ §&5_4__ _ 39=0~_,__4~0·0~_,_=SB=:/~WB=_,1 
~~- - ____ ____Q _____ "--1--~''0='=0_2~%'--ft----+-~"~·6=8~%~,-------;1 

0 0 

-~4_ _ 8_,5ziL_ __ 4_04___1 __ ~4~:8 _ ___,__S_B_:,/'_WB_-11 
-+----1-----i- ----+S=i=lv=e=r~O=a=ks~----------------- ---~---- -----~ ____ 48.46% 40.77% 

Anonka Blvd to Cleveland St 

Aoolicant InventorvTotal 178 q8 

11 ___ C_le_v_e_la=n_d_S~t_t_o_K_e_en_e_R_d _________ --+_2_L_1 ___ E _ _fl,zQ_(l__ ___Jl_§Q_ __ __________ _ 
____________ Alica!,lte Subdivision 

______ ------+------+---=i~S~.l~SS-i_l~l~655 __ __33_3 _____ 43_3___ __ :t!_Iilllll_ 
6s.8s% 40.20_'.Yo_____ __ ------- - ____ 70! 74 

11 _________ -----------i----+--l-----j-----i-S_i_lv~e~r_O_a_ks _____ ~----------i -~- ___ ___ilQ__ ____ 1 __ 6~is~,·=8~s''=%--+----+--~40~-·2=0~%~,--=--ll 
ApplicantlnventoryTotal 890 114 

5 of11 

City of Apopka 

199



HCM 2010 TWSC
3: Park Ave & Michael Gladden Blvd

17121 DG Apopka  12/11/2013 Synchro 9 Report
Buildout

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 25.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 157 12 28 10 3 14 20 512 13 7 398 128
Future Vol, veh/h 157 12 28 10 3 14 20 512 13 7 398 128
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - - - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 171 13 30 11 3 15 22 557 14 8 433 139
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1133 1131 502 1146 1194 564 572 0 0 571 0 0
          Stage 1 517 517 - 607 607 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 616 614 - 539 587 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 7.12 6.52 6.22 7.12 6.52 6.22 4.12 - - 4.12 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.12 5.52 - 6.12 5.52 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 4.018 3.318 3.518 4.018 3.318 2.218 - - 2.218 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 180 203 569 176 187 525 1001 - - 1002 - -
          Stage 1 541 534 - 483 486 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 478 483 - 527 497 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver ~ 167 194 569 153 179 525 1001 - - 1002 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver ~ 167 194 - 153 179 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 524 528 - 468 470 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 446 468 - 481 491 - - - - - - -
 

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 161.7 21.5 0.3 0.1
HCM LOS F C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1001 - - 187 248 1002 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.022 - - 1.145 0.118 0.008 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.7 0 - 161.7 21.5 8.6 0 -
HCM Lane LOS A A - F C A A -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - 10.8 0.4 0 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon

200



HCM 2010 TWSC
6: Park Ave & Access 1

17121 DG Apopka  12/11/2013 Synchro 9 Report
Buildout

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.3

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 8 10 8 675 523 11
Future Vol, veh/h 8 10 8 675 523 11
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - - - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 11 9 734 568 12
 

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 1325 574 580 0 - 0
          Stage 1 574 - - - - -
          Stage 2 751 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.22 4.12 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.318 2.218 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 172 518 994 - - -
          Stage 1 563 - - - - -
          Stage 2 466 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 169 518 994 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 169 - - - - -
          Stage 1 563 - - - - -
          Stage 2 459 - - - - -
 

Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 19.4 0.1 0
HCM LOS C
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 994 - 270 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.009 - 0.072 - -
HCM Control Delay (s) 8.7 0 19.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS A A C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - 0.2 - -

201



HCM 2010 TWSC
8: Michael Gladden Blvd & Access 2

17121 DG Apopka  12/11/2013 Synchro 9 Report
Buildout

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.3

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 6 196 149 2 1 5
Future Vol, veh/h 6 196 149 2 1 5
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - - 0 -
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 7 213 162 2 1 5
 

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 164 0 - 0 389 163
          Stage 1 - - - - 163 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 226 -
Critical Hdwy 4.12 - - - 6.42 6.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 5.42 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 5.42 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.218 - - - 3.518 3.318
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1414 - - - 615 882
          Stage 1 - - - - 866 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 812 -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1414 - - - 611 882
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 611 -
          Stage 1 - - - - 866 -
          Stage 2 - - - - 807 -
 

Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, s 0.2 0 9.4
HCM LOS A
 

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBL EBT WBT WBR SBLn1
Capacity (veh/h) 1414 - - - 821
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.005 - - - 0.008
HCM Control Delay (s) 7.6 0 - - 9.4
HCM Lane LOS A A - - A
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - - 0

202



 

120 E. Main St. · APOPKA, FLORIDA 32703-5346 
PHONE (407) 703-1700 

 

Mayor:  BRYAN NELSON         Commissioners:   ALEXANDER SMITH ALICE NOLAN  DOUG BANKSON        KYLE BECKER         

 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: July 25, 2018 

Subject: Dollar General Traffic Impacts Review and Potential Improvements for the intersection of 

South Park Avenue and Michael Gladden Boulevard 

REVIEW OF TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS: 

 

The Traffic Impact Analysis submitted by the applicant was reviewed by the City’s consultant under 

contract for Continuing Transportation Planning and Engineering Services. The specific findings and 

comments are as follow: 

 

Project Description: 

 

The proposed development will consist of a 7,500 square foot Dollar General (a small discount retail store 

providing health and beauty aids, cleaning supplies, snack food, household items and some apparel) on a 

±0.975-acre parcel.  The study parcel is currently vacant.  Proposed access to the study parcel will be via 

two (2) driveway connections; a full access connection onto South Park Avenue and a full access 

connection onto Michael Gladden Boulevard.  

 

Trip Generation, Project Trip Distribution and Background Traffic: 

 

The trip generation calculation was based on the current ITE Trip Generation Report, 10th Edition, 

September 2017 and is correct and acceptable.   

 

Project trip distribution was based on existing travel patterns modified to favor the residential developments 

to the west.  The resulting distribution is acceptable.   

 

Based on the date (December 2017) when the study was first completed and the construction completion 

date being late 2018, the use of existing traffic as background traffic was acceptable, especially since the 

City’s concurrency tables do not have encumbered trips assigned on South Park Avenue north of Michael 

Gladden Boulevard or on Michael Gladden Boulevard west of South Park Avenue. 

203



 

Mayor:  BRYAN NELSON         Commissioners:   ALEXANDER SMITH ALICE NOLAN  DOUG BANKSON        KYLE BECKER         

Technical Memorandum 

July 25, 2018 

Page 2 of 3 

 

Projected Conditions: 

 

The projected roadway assignments are correct and acceptable.   

 

The projected intersection assignments for the study intersections, indicate that the existing South Park 

Avenue and Michael Gladden Boulevard intersection will experience long delays for the eastbound minor 

street movement.  This is due to the existing heavy eastbound left turn movement.  Adding a left turn lane 

would lessen the delay; however, the minor street would still operate at a level of service (LOS) F 

condition.   

  

As discussed above, the proposed site plan will have two access connections to the adjacent roadway 

network.  Both are projected to operate at acceptable levels of service.  However, a review of the 

unsignalized intersection results of the South Park Avenue and Michael Gladden Boulevard intersection 

indicate that the estimated queue length for the eastbound movement traffic would block the proposed 

Dollar General Michael Gladden Boulevard access connection.  Therefore, it is recommended that this 

access connection be configured to be a right-in/right-out/left-in driveway connection intersection. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The intersection of South Park Avenue and Michael Gladden Boulevard is currently experiencing delay in 

the eastbound movement that is below the City’s adopted level of service standard. The delay is due to the 

heavy left turn movements, which represent about 75% of all eastbound traffic on Michael Gladden 

Boulevard. Data collection from November 30, 2017, counted 157 left turns occurring between 4:30 P.M. 

and 5:30 P.M. The turns were fairly evenly distributed across the hour for an average of 2.6 turns per 

minute.  

 

The segment of Michael Gladden Boulevard west of South Park Avenue is a City road. The City has all 

rights regarding maintenance, capacity enhancement and traffic control. Per Ch. 316.006, F.S., the City has 

jurisdiction over South Park Avenue, a functionally classified County road (CR 435), because it is located 

within the City’s boundary. As long as the roadway geometry remains the same, the City may place and 

maintain traffic control devices that meet FDOT specifications on South Park Avenue.  

 

Planning staff coordinated with the Apopka Police Department to review crash data at the intersection. Over 

the past five years, there have been eleven (11) crashes at this intersection. Officer Samuel Anderson 

reviewed each crash report and summarized the causation as follows: 

 

(5) Fail to yield right-of-way / fail to yield from a stop sign 

(3) Following too closely / careless driving (rear-end crash) 

(2) Ran stop sign 

(1) Improper backing 

 

No crashes involved fatalities and only one serious injury. 

 

Orange County was contacted to discuss improvements to the intersection. At this time, the County has no 

plan to make improvements to the intersection or roadway. 

 

 

 

 
204



 

Mayor:  BRYAN NELSON         Commissioners:   ALEXANDER SMITH ALICE NOLAN  DOUG BANKSON        KYLE BECKER         

Technical Memorandum 

July 25, 2018 

Page 3 of 3 

 

POTENTIAL REMEDIES FOR THE INTERSECTION OF SOUTH PARK AVENUE AND 

MICHAEL GLADDEN BOULEVARD: 

 

“No Build” and Monitor: 

 

The TIA indicates the delay at the intersection is only slightly increased with the addition of project traffic; 

therefore, monitoring the traffic until such time as a more significant delay occurs is an option before 

improvements are made.  

 

Non-traditional Option: 

 

Way-finding signage is an option to divert traffic safely via an alternate route to US 441 or South Park 

Avenue. Signs could be strategically place to inform drivers using Michael Gladden Boulevard to go north 

on South Park Avenue that Central Avenue is an alternate route to their destination. 

 

All-Way Stop Control: 

 

An operational analysis of the intersection as a four-way stop using existing data was conducted to 

determine if converting the intersection to an all-way stop would improve the overall operation. Based on 

the analysis, the intersection would operate at level of service D. The eastbound movement would be 

improved from level of service F to level of service B; however, the heavier northbound and southbound 

movements would fall from level of service A to level of service E. 

 

Roundabout: 

 

A roundabout is an option for the intersection, but would require acquisition of right-of way and permission 

from Orange County. A roundabout analysis is needed to determine whether it is an option at this 

intersection and if improvements to operation of the intersection and safety are sufficient to incur the costs. 

 

Signal Installation: 

 

An operational analysis of the intersection as a signalized intersection using existing data was conducted to 

determine whether installing a signal would improve the overall operation. This high level analysis 

indicated significant improvement, with all movements operating at level of service A. 

 

For the City to consider signalizing the intersection, a signal warrant study would need to demonstrate that a 

signal was appropriate for this location. The cost of a signal would be the responsibility of the City so the 

overall benefits of designing, installing and maintaining a signal should be compared to the overall 

improvements to the intersection, e.g., time savings to drivers, safety improvements. 

 

If turn lanes were required along with the signal, permission from Orange County would be required. 

 

205



 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan 

    Architectural Elevations 
  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – GREATER FAITH WORLD CENTER, 

INC., PHASE 1 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN-SITE PLAN- FOR 

GREATER FAITH WORLD CENTER, INC., PHASE 1 LOCATED AT 700 

VICK ROAD 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:   Center of Faith Church, Inc.   
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER: Kenneth H. Ehlers, P.E.  
 
LOCATION: 700 Vick Road 

 
PARCEL ID #:  04-21-28-0000-00-027 
 
FLUM DESIG.: Institutional/Public Use   
 
ZONING: PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional District) 
 
EXISTING USE: Church  
 
PROPOSED USE: Church 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.25 +/- acres  
 
BUILDING SIZE: 10,669 square foot church building and house 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  
   

206



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
GREATER FAITH WORLD CENTER, PHASE 1 - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant has submitted a Final Development Plan for a 10,669 square 

foot church. The subject property is located at 700 Vick Road, at the southeast corner of the intersection of 

Martin Street and Vick Road, south of Apopka High School. The subject property is approximately 3.25 

acres in size and is zoned PO/I (Professional Office/Institutional District). The Final Development Plan is 

for Phase 1 of the Greater Faith World Center church. Phases II and III appear on the development plan for 

information and planning purposes only, and will require a Final Development Plan approval from the City 

Council at such time each phase moves forward. There is an existing two-story residence on the property 

that will be used as a parsonage.  This house is currently used as the worship center. 

     

PARKING:  A total of 106 parking spaces will be provided for the church building. Five parking spaces 

are reserved as a handicapped parking spaces.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided via a full access point located on Martin Street which lines up with 

the high school entrance, and a right-in/right-out on Martin Street, approximately 120-feet west of the right-

in/right-out. An additional entrance consisting of a right-in/right-out is proposed on Vick Road.    

 

TRANSPORTATION:  

 

A.  Road Jurisdiction. 

 

1. Martin Street – City of Apopka 

2. Vick Road – City of Apopka 

 

B. A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was not required for this project because it is expected to generate less 

than 400 daily trips. The trip generation is anticipated to generate 97 daily trips and 6 PM Peak Hour 

trips.  

 

C. Road/Intersection Improvements. A signal at the intersection of Vick Road and Martin Street has been 

warranted and will be installed by the City. The Church has conveyed right-of-way to the City along 

Martin Street to accommodate a slight realignment of the intersection at the time of the signal 

installation. 

 

ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS: The architectural elevations provided for the church building propose 

a one story building with architectural design elements including a porte-cochere, an architectural grade 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North  Institutional/Public Use PO/I (Professional 

Office/Institutional District) 

Martin Street/Apopka High 

School  

East  Low Density Residential  R-1A (Residential Single-

Family District)  

Church  

South Medium Density Residential  R-3 (Residential Multiple-

Family District) 

Martin Place subdivision  

West Low Density Residential  PUD (Planned Unit 

Development)  

Vick Road/Parkside at Errol 

Estates, Phase 3 

207



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
GREATER FAITH WORLD CENTER, PHASE 1 - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

composition asphalt shingle roof, eifs, and stone veneer provided around the perimeter of the building. The 

building exhibits high quality architectural elements that are required in the Development Design 

Guidelines.   

   

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated onsite with a dry stormwater 

retention pond that is located in the southwestern corner of the site along Vick Road.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM: The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan that 

complies with the requirements of the City’s Land Development Code. The planting materials and irrigation 

system design are consistent with the water-efficient, Florida-friendly landscape standards set forth in 

Ordinance No. 2069.  

 

Located on land assigned a Professional Office\Institutional zoning category, a six-foot high brick or 

masonry wall within a ten foot landscape buffer is required next to the Martin Place residential community 

abutting to the south.  This landscape buffer and wall will be addressed during phase 2 of the site 

development.  Until phase 2 develops, a 25-foot wide area of existing trees and landscaping will be 

preserved at the southern parcel line to provide a buffer and screening for the adjacent residential 

neighborhood to the south. A standard five-foot wide buffer is provided along the eastern property line. A 

standard ten-foot wide buffer will be provided along Vick Road and Martin Street.   

 

TREES: A tree mitigation payment will be assessed to mitigate existing trees that are proposed to be 

removed.  

 

Total inches on-site: 1,440 

Total inches removed 540 

Total inches retained: 900 

Total inches added: 178 

Total inches post development:                       1,078 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 10, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

August 1, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Greater Faith World Center, Phase 1 

Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 10, 2018, found the Greater Faith World Center, Phase 

1 Final Development Plan consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan; and 

unanimously recommended approval of the Greater Faith World Center, Phase 1 Final Development Plan, 

subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

City Council: Approve the Greater Faith World Center, Phase 1 Final Development Plan.  

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

208



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
GREATER FAITH WORLD CENTER, PHASE 1 - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Center of Faith, Inc.  

Applicant/Engineer: Kenneth H. Ehlers, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    04-21-28-0000-00-027 
Location:  700 Vick Road  
Acres:  3.25 acres 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

  

209



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
GREATER FAITH WORLD CENTER, PHASE 1 - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
 
 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



 
 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Aerial Map 

    Ordinance No. 2654 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE 2654 - CHANGE OF ZONING – CARRIAGE HILL PHASE 2 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 2654 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

CARRIAGE HILL PHASE 2 – FROM R-1AA TO R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    Dewberry c/o Sarah Maier 
 
LOCATION:  1455 W. Lester Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  29-20-28-0000-00-005 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant, Woodlands and Grasslands 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  R-1AA 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: 20 Single Family Homes 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1 (Single Family Residential District)  
     Min. lot width—75; min. lot area:  8,000 sq.ft. 
TRACT SIZE:    5.75 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: up to 20 single family homes 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: up to 15 single family homes 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Carriage Hill 2 
 

258



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject parcel is assigned a zoning category of R-1AA.  The 
applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of R-1 (Single Family Residential) to the 
property to add as a second phase to Carriage Hills residential subdivision on Rogers Road. 
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the city on August 22, 1990 by Ordinance Number 624. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with 
the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. Carriage Hill Phase 1, is the west adjacent 
property, also zoned R-1. The subject property is intended to incorporate into Carriage Hill Phase 1 with 
the same R-1 zoning. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed zoning of the property is 
consistent with the proposed Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac) Future Land Use designation. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
Public Notice - June 1, 2018 (Apopka Chief, Letters, Posting) 

Public Notice – July 20, 2018 (Apopka Chief) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC, and 
located at 1455 West Lester Road. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 12, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed change of zoning from R-1AA to R-1 for the property owned by 
JTD Land at Rogers Road, LLC, and located at 1455 West Lester Road.  
 
The City Council, at its meeting on June 20, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance 2654 and held 
it over for second reading and adoption on August 1, 2018.  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2654. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

  
259



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North Residential Low Suburban R-1AA Vacant Property 

East Residential Low Suburban PUD Oak Hill Reserve Subdivision 

South Residential Low Suburban PUD Future Phase 2 Open Space and stormwater pond 

West Residential Low Suburban R-1 Carriage Hill Phase 1 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The proposed access point for this property is from Carriage Pointe 

Loop, a street in Carriage Hill Phase 1.   

 

 The subject parcel will become part of the Carriage Hills residential 

development, which is zoned R-1 and has similar lot size and width.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Residential Low Suburban” (0-3.5 du / ac) and with 

the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 

development. Development Plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed in the adopted Future Land Use designation.   
      
ALLOWABLE USES:   
 

1. Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

2. Supporting infrastructure and public facilities of less than five 

acres as defined in this code and in accordance with Section 

2.02.01, LDC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
260



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 

JTD Land at Rogers Rd, LLC 

5.75 +/- acres  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: R-1AA 
To: R-1 

Parcel ID #: 29-20-28-0000-00-005 
 

VICINITY MAP 
  

261



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
262



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 

 

 

 

263



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2654 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-1AA TO R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF 

ROGERS ROAD AND SOUTH OF WEST PONKAN ROAD, COMPRISING 

5.75 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JTD LAND AT ROGERS 

ROAD LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Single Family Residential (R-1) zoning has been found to be 

consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as Residential R-1, as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

264



ORDINANCE NO. 2654 

PAGE 3 

  

Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

           Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  June 1, 2018; July 20, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  June 20, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
August 1, 2018 

 
 
 
 

 

265



ORDINANCE NO. 2654 

PAGE 3 

 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD LLC 

5.75 +/- acres  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: R-1AA  
To: R-1 

Parcel ID #: 29-20-28-0000-00-005 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

 

 

266



 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  PUD Master Plan  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2660 

    PUD  Master Plan 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2660 - CHANGE OF ZONING AND PUD MASTER PLAN 

– LEGACY HILLS 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2660 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 
JEL LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC – FROM R-1A TO PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD/RESIDENTIAL). 

  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    JEL Land Development LLC  
 
APPLICANT:    Thomas R. Sullivan, c/o Gray Robinson P.A. 
 
LOCATION: 2400 Schopke Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 06-21-28-7172-19-030 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Low Density Residential (up to 5 units per acre) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-1A (Residential Single Family District)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 48 single family homes; developed in one phase 
 
TRACT SIZE:    19.67 +/- acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

267



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

LEGACY HILLS PUD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:  The subject property is approximately 19.67 acres in size and is 

currently zoned R-1A (Residential Single Family District) and has a future land use designation of Low 

Density Residential (up to 5 units per acre). The subject property is located on the south side of Schopke 

Road and west of the Partnership Hills subdivision. The proposed change of zoning to PUD (Planned Unit 

Development) is being requested to construct 48 single-family units in one phase on the property. The 

subdivision, Legacy Hills, is proposed to be developed at a density of 2.78 dwelling units per acre. The Low 

Density Residential future land use designation allows up to 5 dwelling units per acre.  

 

The Planned Unit Development zoning was supported by planning staff to support a transition of larger lots 

adjacent to the existing neighborhood to the east – Partnership Hills – and smaller lots within the interior.  

See the Lot Size Mix table below. 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   The Master Plan proposes 48 lots with a mix of lot widths ranging from 60 

to 85 feet wide.  The majority of lots are 60-foot wide. The largest lots (lots 3-9) are located at the northeast 

corner of the project and   typically have 85-foot width and an area of 12,900 sq. ft. and abut Partnership 

Hills subdivision, which has lot sizes typically at 14,500 sq. ft.  

 

A 10 feet landscape/wall buffer is proposed on the western and northern boundary lines of Legacy Hills, 

while a 5.37 acre retention/conservation area is proposed at the southern end of the subdivision. In addition, 

tracts for a playground and a picnic area are provided on the Master Plan. The surrounding properties consist 

primarily of single-family, residential, subdivisions, including Partnership Hills and Ariane Hills to the East, 

Fisher Plantation to the North, vacant woodlands to the south, and single family homes to the west.  

 

A.  Lot Size Mix. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B.  Lot Size and Zoning Compatibility 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Typical Lot 

Width 
Number of units 

Percentage of 

development 

Typical lot area 

(minimum size) 

60-feet 32 66.7% 7,500 square feet 

70-feet 10 20.8% 9,100 square feet 

85-feet 6 12.5% 12,933 square feet 

Total             100%  

Residential 

Community 

Typical Lot 

Width 

Typical 

Lot Depth 

Typical Lot 

Area (sq.ft.) 
Proximity 

Legacy Hills, 60-feet 60 125 7,500  

Legacy Hills, 70-feet 70 130 - 152 9,100–10,640  

Legacy Hills, 85-feet 85 152 12,933  

Fisher Plantation 75 115 8,625 North  

Palmetto Ridge 17 134 10,050 
Northwest of Fisher 

Plantation 

Partnership Hills 97 150 14,550 
East-North 

(abutting) 

Ariane Hills 72 105 7,200 
East-South 

(abutting) 

268



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

LEGACY HILLS PUD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

C. Deviations. The applicant is requesting one deviation to the City’s required development standards.  For 

a PUD Master Plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a variance, 

but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned Unit 

Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land Development Code, 

unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development 

guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  Any deviations must be 

consistent with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. Typical Lot Width Standard, Land Development Code Section 2.02.18.D.11 requires a minimum 

lot size within a PUD to be 70-feet in width, and to have a minimum site area of 7,500 square feet. 

The developer is proposing 32, 60-feet wide lots with minimum lot sizes of 7,500 square feet. 

These lot sizes are proposed to be located in the interior and western boundary areas of the 

subdivision. The average lot size is much larger than 7,500 sq. ft, as shown on Sheet 2 of the 

Master Plan. 

 

D. Justification for Deviations/Development Standard.  The following justifications are provided for the 

previously mentioned deviation. 

1. Reduced Density. The future land use designation of the property is Low Density Residential 

which allows up to 5 dwelling units per acre. The PUD Master Plan proposes a density of 2.78 

dwelling units per acre, which is 0.72 dwelling units per acre less than the maximum density 

permitted in the Low Density Residential future land use category. 

2. 5.87 acres is required for open space, the applicant has provided 6.37 acres. 

3. Increased minimum living area size. The applicant is proposing a minimum living area of 1,700 

square feet. The R-1A zoning district requires a minimum living area of 1,600 square feet.   

4. The Master Plan places the largest lots adjacent to Partnership Hills, which as a typical lot width 

of approximately 100 feet and a typical lot size of approximately 14,500 sq. ft. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 

with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 
A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses, and the R-1A zoning 

requirements and standards shall apply if a development standard or criteria is not provided within the 
PUD Master Plan or adopting ordinance. 
 

B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 

 If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of these 

Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, the City 

Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 
269



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

LEGACY HILLS PUD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Low Density Residential Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Land Development Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County 

Public Schools will be required prior to adoption of the rezoning. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 26, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

July 18, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 8, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

July 20, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development (PUD), 

and the PUD Master Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code and 

recommends approval of the Legacy Hills Planned Unit Development Master Plan. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 26, 2018, found the proposed rezoning consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; recommend approval of the rezoning of the subject 

parcel from R-1A (Residential Single Family District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development);  and 

unanimously recommended approval of the PUD Master Plan based on the PUD Recommendations, and 

the findings and facts presented in the staff report for the property owned by JEL Land Development LLC 

and located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection of Rogers 

Road and Lester Road. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on July 18, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2660 and 

the Legacy Hills PUD Master Plan, and held it over for second reading and adoption on August 1, 2018.  

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2660; and approve the Legacy Hills PUD Master Plan. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

270



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

LEGACY HILLS PUD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Future Land Use – In Progress PD (ZIP) Fisher Plantation Subdivision 

East (City) Residential Low R-1A Partnership Hills and Ariane  Hills 

Residential Subdivisions 

South (City) Residential Low R-1A Lake Standish & Woodlands 

West (County) Low Density Residential A-1 Large Parcel Single Family Homes 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Schopke Road. Internal streets are public 

and will be owned and maintained by the City of Apopka. Future land 
use designations and zoning categories assigned to properties to the 
north, south, east, and west are predominantly residential.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan. 
  

271



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

LEGACY HILLS PUD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

Project: Legacy Hills PUD 

Owned by:  JEL Land Development LLC 
Located:         South of Schopke Road 
Parcel ID#: 06-21-28-7172-19-030 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

272



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

LEGACY HILLS PUD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

273



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

LEGACY HILLS PUD – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 
 

274



ORDINANCE NO. 2660 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM R-1A (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) TO 

“CITY” PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF SCHOPKE LESTER 

ROAD AND SOUTH OF SHOPKE ROAD, COMPRISING 19.67 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JEL LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/Residential) zoning has been 

found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 

the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated 

accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and development standards in the 

Legacy Hills Master Plan, and the R-1A zoning requirements and standards shall apply if 

a development standard or criteria is not provided within the PUD Master Plan or adopting 

ordinance. 

 

B. Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  Where any development standard conflicts between the Legacy Hills Master 

Site Plan and the Land Development Code, the Master Site Plan shall preside. If a 

development standard is not addressed within the Master Plan, the provision of the R-1A 

zoning district shall apply to development within the boundaries of the Master Plan.  Any 

proposed revision to the Master Plan shall be evaluated and processed pursuant to Section 

2.02.18.N. (Master plan revision), LDC. 

275



ORDINANCE NO. 2660 

PAGE 2 

 

 

C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the 

City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the 

Master Site Plan provisions will expire.   At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final 

Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal 

of new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being 

situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in 

the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 Legal Description: 

 

MAP OF PLYMOUTH B/17 LOTS 3 THROUGH 6 BLK S & VAC ST LYING ON S OF 

LOTS 5 & 6 BLK S IN SEC 31-20-28-SE & THAT PART OF OCCUPIED PLATTED 

LAKE STANDISH LYING BETWEEN THE SW COR OF SAID LOT 5 BLK S TH 

NWLY 23.7 FT M/L TH S TO THE N LINE OF LOT 8 BLK G & SE COR OF LOT 6 

BLK S S TO THE N LINE OF LOT 6 BLK G 

  

Parcel ID No.:  06-21-28-7172-19-030 

Contains:   19.67 +/- Acres 

 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 

the City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not record a plat 

for the Legacy Hills Master Plan such time the property owner addresses school capacity 

mitigation review with Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

276



ORDINANCE NO. 2660 

PAGE 3 

 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 

 
 

           Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: June 8, 2018; July 20, 2018 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

READ FIRST TIME:  July 18, 2018 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     

 

 

August 1, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

277



ORDINANCE NO. 2660 

PAGE 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legacy Hills Master Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

278



GENERAL NOTES

DEVELOPMENT DESIGN STANDARDS

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION

4
/1

8
/2

0
1
8

1
:2

1
:5

5
 P

M
H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\J

E
L
0
8
 S

c
h
o
p
k
e
 E

s
ta
te
s
\D

G
N
\M

a
s
te
r 
P
la

n
\J
e
l0

8
 M

a
s
te
r 
P
la

n
 C

o
v
e
r.
d
g
n

SITE LOCATION
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

PREPARED FOR

DEVELOPER SURVEYOR

MASTER PLANLEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS FURNISHED)

JEL Land Development, LLC

SHEET NO. DESCRIPTION

1 COVER SHEET

SHEET INDEX

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN2

12' 12'

2'

50'

6'5' 6' 5'

407-542-4967

Oviedo, FL 32765

2100 Alafaya Trail, Suite 203

Surveying and Mapping, LLC

PEC

407-808-1244

Orlando, FL 32817

2649 Stanmore Court

JEL Land Development, LLC

REPRESENTS THE ORANGE COUNTY ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER 06-21-28-7172-19-030.

THE ABOVE DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND LIES IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA AND 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 638.40 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

OF-WAY LINE OF SCHOPKE ROAD; THENCE RUN NORTH 89� 07’ 24”EAST, ALONG SAID SOUTH 
WEST LINE OF LOTS 5 AND 4 AND THE EXTENSION THEREOF; 1338.14 FEET, TO THE SOUTH RIGHT-

FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00� 01’ 32”EAST, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID BLOCK S AND THE 
BLOCK S; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89�22’ 57”WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID BLOCK S, 635.21 
QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF THE AFORESAID 

OF SAID PUBLIC RECORDS  1,341.07 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 

LINE OF ARIANE HILLS SUBDIVISION, PER THE RECORD PLAT RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 8 PAGE 13 

RECORD PLAT RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 8 PAGE 13 OF SAID PUBLICE RECORDS, AND THE WEST 

6 AND THE EXTENSION THEREOF, ALSO BEING THE WEST LINE OF PARTNERSHIP HILLS, PER THE 

BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00�09’ 37” WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 3 AND LOT 
COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED LOT 3 AS THE POINT OF 

BLOCK S, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PART OF THE OCCUPIED PLATTED LAKE STANDISH LYING SOUTH OF SAID LOTS 5 AND 6 WITHIN 

TOGETHER WITH THE 40 FOOT VACATED RIGHT-OF-WAY LYING SOUTH OF LOTS 5 AND 6 AND THAT 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK B, PAGE 17 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

THROUGH 6, BLOCK S, OF THE MAP OF PLYMOUTH, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, AS 

A TRACT OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 31, TOWENSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, BEING LOTS 3 

0.02
0.04 0.02

R/W LINE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

TYPE F CURB

1.5" TYPE SP STRUCTURAL COURSE (TRAFFIC A)

6" LIMEROCK BASE (LBR 100)

12" TYPE B STABILIZATION (LBR 40)

2'

R/W LINE

0.02
0.040.02

GTC Engineering Corporation

407-380-0402

98 South Semoran Blvd, Orlando, FL  32807

Number 6758

Certificate of Authorization

P.E. Number 35490

Claude L. Cassagnol, P.E.

N

N.T.S.

SITE

PROJECT

3 BOUNDARY & TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

AGENT

407-244-5664

Orlando, FL 32801

301 E. Pine Street

c/o Gray Robinson, PA

Thomas R. Sullivan

19.  Roadway connections will require an Orange County permit and will have to meet Orange County requirements.

         is 66.9 ft NAVD88. 

18.  The property is in FEMA Zones X and AE.  According to FEMA FIRM maps, the base flood elevation for the property

17.  The ownership and maintenance of the buffer PVC fencing shall be by the HOA.

16. The Final Development Plan will require a Plat document at the time of submittal.

15. Details of finishes, colors of all walls within the project will be provided in the Final Development Plan.

14. Street signage, stop bars, speed limit signs, road striping will be provided in the Final Development Plan.

13. All common areas including, recreation parks, buffers and landscape tracts will be owned and maintained by the HOA.

      caliper at time of planting.

      Easement is to be a minimum 5' in width and placed behind the front utility easement. Street trees will be a min. of 2.5" 

12. Street trees (canopy type), 30' on center will be placed on each lot at the front lot line within a dedicated easement. 

  

11. Min. of 3 canopy type trees at 3" DBH will be provided per lot.   

      will be utilized where applicable.

10. All utility boxes must be fully screened from view from right-of-way (when permitted by the utility provider.)  Landscaping

      be designed with "Pop-Up" type heads only, rain sensor devices will be required.  No Risers Allowed. 

9.   A landscape and irrigation plan is required to be submitted with the Final Development Plan. The irrigation system will

      the light will be executed. Details will be provided in the Final Development Plans.

8.   Street light pole and fixtures will be decorative type. A developer's agreement for maintenance and operation of

      standard by 40% at the front lot line only.

7.   Min. lot width is 60' at both the front lot line and building line. Lots on curves and cul-de-sacs may reduce the minimum

      on the premises.  Min. size water main for fire protection shall be 8", or 6" in an approved looped arrangement.

6.   Approved fire hydrants shall be located at intervals not to exceed 500' from any portion of any dwelling located 

5.   Project infrastructure will be developed in one phase.

4.   The project will be designed in conformance with the City of Apopka Design Standards.

      shown on the development plans. 

3.   Water & sewer will be owned & operated by City of Apopka. Utilities will tie into existing utility locations

2.   Retention areas will be privately owned & maintained by the Homeowners Association (HOA) and will be unfenced.

1    Streets will be dedicated to the City of Apopka.

ENVIRONMENTAL LANDSCAPING

407-380-0402

Orlando, FL 32807

98 S. Semoran Boulevard

GTC Engineering Corporation

ENGINEER

407-894-5969

Orlando, FL 32803

3025 East South Street

Bio-Tech Consulting Inc.

407-418-1338

Orlando, FL 32804

720 Vassar Street

Borrelli + Partners

standards within the Apopka Development Design Standards.

All residential homes shall comply with the architectural design

LEGACY HILLS

GEOTECHNICAL

407-379-9510

Longwood, FL 32750

250 S. Ronald Reagan Blvd., Suite 114

GEO Engineering & Sciences

C-100

K-100

T-100 TREE MITIGATION PLAN

MASTER KEY PLAN 

LANDSCAPE/IRRIGATION/HARDSCAPE PLANS

COVER SHEET

L-100 - L-102

L-100 - L-102

H-100 - H-102

LANDSCAPE PLANS/DETAILS

IRRIGATION PLANS/DETAILS

HARDSCAPE PLANS/ELEVATIONS

Setback

(25' Corner)

7.5' Side7
5
'

Min 7.5'

TYPICAL LOT LAYOUT

125' Min.

Setback

25' Rear

Setback

25' Front

60'

45'

Garage Setback

30' Front Entry

30'

25'

25'

7.5'

25'

 
Minimum Building Setbacks on Lots 

     Front Entry Garage

     Corner

     Rear

     Side

     Front

 

279



RECREATION
OPEN SPACE/

TRACT  E

AREA
CONSERVATION

TRACT  G

STORAGE
COMPENSATING

RETENTION/

TRACT  F

TRACT  B

OPEN SPACE
LANDSCAPE/

PEC SURVEYING AND MAPPING, LLC (407) 542-4967

BOUNDARY & TOPOGRAPHY SURVEY PROVIDED BY

"U" END WALL

2
  
o
f 
 3

10'

(TYP.)

 

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

RIGHT-OF WAY

PROPOSED

10' LANDSCAPE / WALL BUFFER

TRACT  C

10' LANDSCAPE / WALL BUFFER

TRACT  A

10' BUFFER

LOCATED WITHIN

6' PRECAST WALL

J
E

L
-0

8

City of Apopka

City of Apopka

City of Apopka

A-1
Agricultural

R-1A

Residential Low Intensity

PUD

R-1A

City of Apopka

Residential Low

Residential Low

EASEMENT

20' UTILITY

10' LANDSCAPE / WALL BUFFER

TRACT C

UTILITY EASEMENT

5' LIFT STATION

  

EASEMENT

20' UTILITY

EASEMENT

20' DRAINAGE

1

2

3

4567

14

15

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

28

29

30
3132333435

4443424140

39 38

891011

12

13

3637

7
3

7
2

7
1

7
0

6
9

6
8

6
7

6
6

6
5

7
3

7
2

7
1

7
0

6
9

6
8

6
7

6
6

6
5

7
2

7
1

7
0

6
9

6
8

6
7

6
6

6
5

6
4

6
3

6
1

6
2

6
0
.5

6
0
.5

16

26 27

45 46 47 48

10+00

11+00

2
0
+
0
0

2
1
+
0
0

22+0023+0024+0025+0026+0027+00

2
8
+
0
0

2
9
+
0
0

3
0
+
0
0

31+00 32+00 33+00 34+00 35+00 36+00

3
7
+
0
0

3
8
+
0
0

T

F
O

U
N

D
 

N
A
IL

N
O
 
ID
 
(
0
.2

6
'N
.)

S
E

T
 
5
/

8
"
 

R
E

B
A

R
 

&
 

C
A

P
 

L
B
 
7
8
0
8

N
E
. 

C
O

R
N

E
R
 

L
O

T
 
3G
A

T
E

4
' 

C
L
F

CONCRETE D
RIVEWAY

4
' 

C
L
F

4
' 

C
L
F

5
.5
' 

W
B

F

V
L

V
S

18"

24"

12"

13"

20",20"

11"

8",15"7"7"8"8"
8"

8"
9",10'

21"

26"

17"20"

36"

17"

20"

27"

16"

14"

18"

8",13"
18"7"6"10",16"

22"

13"10",16"

10"

13"

8"

10"

16"

7"

12"

11"

31"

24"

6",9",24"16"

42"

7"

15"

15",20"

12"

8"

14"

14",14"

10",11",19"

11"

24"

14" 16"

20"

7",14",17"

14"

7"

12"

11"

11",14"
8"

20"

16"

19"

24"

8",8",12",16",17"

4
' 

C
L
F

(
F

E
N

C
E
 
0
.2
'S
.,0
.6
'E
.)

&
 

C
A

P
 
3
8
9
8

F
O

U
N

D
 
1
/

2
"
 

R
E

B
A

R
 

(
F

E
N

C
E
 

C
O

R
N

E
R
 
0
.0

8
'N
,0
.6
'E
.)

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T
 

P
R

M
 
9
2
6

F
O

U
N

D
 
4
"
x
4
"
 

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E
 

4
' 

C
L
F

(
F

E
N

C
E
 

C
O

R
N

E
R
 
0
.0

8
'N
,.
0
.6
'E
.)

C
A

P
 

L
S
 
4
2
4
3

F
O

U
N

D
 
1
"
 

P
IP

E
 

A
N

D
 

5' CLF

5
' 

A
L

U
M
IN

U
M
 
F
E

N
C

E

(
F

E
N

C
E
 

C
O

R
N

E
R
 
0
.2
'S
,.
1
.1
'E
.)

F
O

U
N

D
 
1
/

2
"
 

R
E

B
A

R
, 

N
O
 
ID

12",19"

6"
7"

12"

16"

8",8"

10"

7"

6",7"

11"

8"

7",10"
9"

6"

G
A

T
E

FENCE

5' ALUMINUM 

T.O.B.

24" RCP

8
5
.4

0

MONUMENT NO ID

FOUND 4"x4" CONCRETE 

(FENCE CORNER 0.40'S., 0.25'W)

MONUMENT NO ID

FOUND 4"x4" CONCRETE 

GATE

G
A

T
E

E

WATER FAUCET

F
L

A
G
 

P
O

L
E

K
E

Y
 

B
O

X

DIRT ROAD

36"

12"

30"

8",10",26"

18"11"

ASPHALT ROAD

(
O
.R
.B
. 

4
2
3
2
, 

P
G
. 

1
4
1
6
)

4
0
' 

V
A

C
A

T
E

D
 

D
R
IV

E

LOT 3

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

(P.B. "B", PG. 17)

BLOCK "S"

MAP OF PLYMOUTH

LOT 6

LOT 7

LOT 8
LOT 9

LOT 10

LOT 11
(P.B. 8, PG. 13)

PARTNERSHIP HILLS

N
8
9
°0

7
'2

4
"
E

6
3
8
.4

0
'

S00°09'37"W 1341.07'

N00°01'32"E 1338.14'

S
C

H
O

P
K

E
 

R
O

A
D

(
R
/

W
 

W
ID

T
H
 

V
A

R
IE

S
)

LINE OF LOT 3

MONUMENT EAST 

LINE OF LOT 3

PLATTED  EAST 
LINE OF LOT 6

MONUMENT EAST 

LINE OF LOT 6

PLATTED  EAST 

WEST LINE OF LOT 5 WEST LINE OF LOT 4

PER PLAT

LAKE STANDISH

(1
0
-

0
6
-

1
7
)

E
D

G
E
 

O
F
 

W
A

T
E

R

ELECTRIC OUTLET

LOT 15

LOT 16LOT 17

LOT 18

R
E

T
E

N
T
IO

N
 

A
R

E
A (P.B. 13, PG. 5)

ARIANE HILLS SUBDIVISION

(P.B. "B", PG. 17)

BLOCK "S"

MAP OF PLYMOUTH

LOT 7

H

Y

DW

T
9
7
.7

8 M
A
IL
 

B
O

X

9
7
.7

7 M
A
IL
 

B
O

X

9
7
.7

5 M
A
IL
 

B
O

X

9
7
.6

2 M
A
IL
 

B
O

X

GATE

PICKET FENCE

4' WHITE 

19"

21"

27"

4' SWF
4' SWF

6' BWF

14"

16"11"

14"

12"

10"

(O.R.B. ????, PG. ????)

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

& CAP LB 7808

SET 5/8" REBAR 

& CAP LB 7808

SET 5/8" REBAR 

&
 

C
A

P
 

L
B
 
7
8
0
8

S
E

T
 
5
/

8
"
 

R
E

B
A

R
 

LB 7808 

& CAP TRAV PT 

SET 5/8" REBAR 

ELEV. 68.43'

TBM 108

LB 7808 

& CAP TRAV PT 

SET 5/8" REBAR 

ELEV. 98.72'

TBM 103

LB 7808 

& CAP TRAV PT 

SET 5/8" REBAR 

ELEV. 102.02'

TBM 102

S
8
9
°2

2
'5

7
"

W
6
3
5
.2

1
'

P
.O
.B
.

1200.00'SECTION 31

CORNER, SE 1/4, 

SE. CORNER, NW. 

S
. 

L
IN

E
 

B
L

O
C

K
 
"
S
"

W. LINE BLOCK "S"

N
 
1
5
8
9
6
8
2
.1

4
1
5

E
 
4
8
0
3
5
0
.9

0
3
3

N 1588334.237

E 479711.9781

N 1588341.0815

E 480347.1491

SCALE:

4
/1

8
/2

0
1
8

        

        

1
:2

2
:0

1
 P

M

REVISIONS

D
A

T
E

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

F
IE

L
D
:
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

C
A

D
D
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
 B

Y
:

  
  
  
 

G
T

C
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
rp

o
ra
ti
o
n

4
0
7
-3

8
0
-0

4
0
2

9
8
 S
o
u
th
 S
e
m
o
ra

n
 B
lv
d
, 
O
rl
a
n
d
o
, 
F
L
  
3
2
8
0
7

D
A

T
E

J
O

B
 N

U
M

B
E

R
S

H
E

E
T

H
:\
J
o
b
s
1
\J

E
L
0
8
 S

c
h
o
p
k
e
 E

s
ta
te
s
\D

G
N
\M

a
s
te
r 
P
la

n
\J
e
l0

8
 M

a
s
te
r 
P
la

n
.d

g
n

C
it
y
 o
f 

A
p
o
p
k
a

F
lo
ri
d
a
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 

  
  
  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
  
 o
f 
  
  
 

N
u

m
b
e
r 
6
7
5
8

C
e
rt
if
ic
a
te
 o
f 
A
u
th

o
ri
za
ti
o
n

C
la

u
d
e
 L
. 
C
a
ss
a
g
n
o
l,
 P
.E
.

P
.E
. 
N
u

m
b
e
r 
3
5
4
9
0

55'

5
5
'

5
5
'

56'

5
6
'

5
6
'

57'

5
7
'

5
7
'

5
8
'

5
8
'

5
8
'

5
9
'

5
9
'

5
9
'

6
0
'

6
0
'

6
0
'

6
1
'

6
1'

6
2
'

6
2
'

6
2
'

6
3
'

6
3
'

6
3
'

6
4
'

6
4
'

6
4
'

6
4
'

65'

6
5
'

6
5
'

65'

6
6
'

6
6
'

6
6
'

66'

67'

6
7
'

6
7
'

67'

68'

6
8
'

68'

6
8
'

69'

6
9
'

6
9
'

6
9
'

70'

7
0
'

7
0
'

7
0
'

71'

7
1
'

7
1'

7
1
'

72'

7
2
'

7
2
'

7
2
'

73'

7
3
'

7
3
'

7
3
'

7
4
'

7
4
'

74'

7
4
'

7
5
'

7
5
'

7
5
'

7
5
'

7
6
'

7
6
'

7
6
'

7
6
'

7
7
'

7
7
'

7
7
'

7
7
'

7
8
'

7
8
'

7
8
'

7
8
'

7
9
'

7
9
'

7
9
'

7
9
'

8
0
'

8
0
'

8
0
'

8
0
'

8
1
'

8
1'

8
1
'

8
1
'

8
2
'

8
2
'

8
2
'

82'

8
3
'

8
3
'

8
3
'

83'

8
4
'

84'

8
4
'

84'

8
5
'

8
5
'

8
5
'

85'

8
6
'

8
6
'

8
6
'

86'

8
7
'

8
7
'

8
7
'

87'

8
8
'

8
8
'

8
8
'

88'

8
9
'

8
9
'

8
9
'

89'

9
0
'

9
0
'

9
0
'

90'

9
1'

9
1
'

9
1'

9
2
'

9
2
'

92'

93'

9
3
'

9
3
'

94'

9
4
'

9
4
'

9
4
'

9
4
'

9
4
'

9
5
'

9
5
'

9
5
'

9
6
'

96'

9
6
'

9
6
'

9
6
'

9
7
'

9
7
'

9
7
'

9
7
'

9
7
'

9
7
'

9
7
'

98'

9
8
'

9
8
'

9
8
'

9
9
'

9
9
'

9
9
'

9
9
'

9
9
'

9
9
'

1
0
0
'

100'

100'

10
0
'

1
0
0
'

1
0
0
'

1
0
0
'

1
0
0
'

100'

N 1589672.374

E 479712.5782

1
0
1
'

1
0
1
'

1
0
1
'

1
0
1
'

1
0
2
'

1
0
2
'

1
0
2
'

1
0
2
'

102'

1
0
3
'

10
3
'

103'

103'

1
0
3
'

1
0
3
'

1
0
4
'

10
4
'

10'

7
0
'

7
0
'

60'

1
2
5
'

1
2
5
'

77.5' 60'

1
2
5
'

1
2
5
'

130'

130'

130'

15
6'

1
8
6
.6
'

1
5
1
.5
'

1
5
1
.9
'

1
5
2
.1
'

1
5
2
.3
'

1
5
2
.5
'

1
5
2
.7
'

1
5
2
.9
'

1
5
9
.2
'

200.6'

127.3'

125'

16
0.
9'

1
5
2
.3
'1
2
5
'

1
2
5
'

60' 60'

7
0
'

7
0
'

7
0
'

1
2
7
'

70' 85' 85' 85'85' 85'

60'60'60'60'60'60'60'60'

60'60'60'60'60'60'

115.4' 149.8'

1
5
9
'

9
7
.8
'

7
4
.8
'

1
2
3
.2
'

7
1
.8
'

88.8'115.1'

1
5
9
'

44
.7
'

4
5
.5
'

79'

44.1'

37.6'

4
1
.2
'

5
4
.3
'

41.2'

42.3'

134.2'

6
2
'

44.2'

5
2
.3
'

5
9
.8
'

101' 32.5'

4
0
'

9
9
.7
'

4
6
.4
'

1
2
4
.6
'

26.8'

69.7'

3
5
'

35'

2
0
'

5
0
'

3
5
.4
'

6
6
.9
'

3
9
'

23'

3
5
'

35'

12'

5
1
.7
'

52.5'

52.5'

51.9'

48.8'

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

1
0
-2

6
-2

0
1
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

  
- 
 -
  

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

M
A
S

T
E

R
 P

L
A

N

GENERAL LEGEND

Proposed 6' Precast Wall

Proposed Storm with Inlet

Proposed Sanitary Forcemain

 

Proposed Sewer with Manhole

Proposed Reclaimed Watermain

 

Proposed Water with Fire Hydrant

Existing Sanitary Forcemain

Existing Reclaimed Watermain

Existing Watermain

N

1" = 50'

PROPERTY LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

RIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTINGRIGHT-OF-WAY

EXISTING

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

SYSTEM (TYP.)

STORM SEWER

PROPOSED

SYSTEM (TYP.)

STORM SEWER

PROPOSED

WATERMAIN

RECLAIMED

EXISTING 12"

WATERMAIN

12" RECLAIMED

EXISTING

8" WATERMAIN

EXISTING

8" WATERMAIN

EXISTING

6" FORCEMAIN

EXISTING

6" FORCEMAIN

EXISTING

6" FORCEMAIN

EXISTING

WET TAP TO

8" WATERMAIN

EXISTING

WET TAP TO

WATERMAIN

RECLAIMED

EXISTING 12"

WET TAP TO

D
R

Y
 R

E
T

E
N

T
IO

N
 P

O
N

D

(TYP.)

STORAGE AREA

COMPENSATING

SWALE

SPREADER

WEIR

CRESTED

BROAD

BERM

STABILIZED

(TYP.)

FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED

SYSTEM (TYP.)

STORM SEWER

PROPOSED

4" PVC FORCEMAIN

PROPOSED

SANITARY SEWER (TYP.)

PROPOSED 8" PVC

SANITARY SEWER (TYP.)

PROPOSED 8" PVC

SETBACK (TYP.)

25' BUILDING

SETBACK (TYP.)

25' BUILDING

SETBACK (TYP.)

25' BUILDING

SETBACK (TYP.)

25' BUILDING

SETBACK (TYP.)

7.5' SIDE

SETBACK (TYP.)

7.5' SIDE

LIFT STATION SITE

PROPOSED TRACT D

TOP OF BANK

PROPOSED

TOP OF BANK

PROPOSED

SETBACK (TYP.)

25' BUILDING

SETBACK (TYP.)

25' BUILDING

BY OTHERS)

(AS FLAGGED 

WETLAND LINE

P
E

C

A
M

C
L

C

A
M
 /
 C

L
C

L
e
g
a
c
y
 H
il
ls

(TYP.)

FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

HYDRANT (TYP.)

PROPOSED FIRE

WATERMAIN

PVC RECLAIMED

PROPOSED 8"

PVC WATERMAIN

PROPOSED 8"

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED

EASEMENT

5' UTILITY

EASEMENT

5' UTILITY

PVC WATERMAIN

PROPOSED 6"

WATERMAIN

PVC RECLAIMED

PROPOSED 6"

WATERMAIN

PVC RECLAIMED

PROPOSED 6"

PVC WATERMAIN

PROPOSED 6" 

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 

66.9 FT NAVD88

100 YEAR FLOOD LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPOSED

TRACT TABLE

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

Tract

HOA

HOA

HOA

City of Apopka

HOA

HOA

HOA

Ownership

HOA

HOA

HOA

City of Apopka

HOA

HOA

HOA

Maintenance

2.36 Ac.

3.01 Ac.

0.45 Ac.

0.06 Ac.

0.27 Ac.

0.28 Ac.

0.07 Ac.

Acreage

Conservation

Retention/Compensating Storage

Recreation/Open Space

Lift Station

Landscape/Wall Buffer

Landscape/Open Space

Landscape/Wall Buffer

Use

Road B

Road B

Road A

S
c
h
o
p
k
e
 R

o
a
d

SITE DATA

     Total Open Space Provided (Allowable)

     Conservation Area

     Landscape

     Active Recreation

     Retention Area

Open Space Calculations  

Minimum Building Area   

Minimum Lot Size

School Age Population

Maximum Building Height

Required Open Space / Recreation

Proposed Density

Net Buildable Area

Total Units

Proposed Use

Proposed Zoning

Current Zoning

Future Land Use

Parcel ID

Section/Township/Range

Total Land Area

6.37 Ac.

2.36 Ac.

0.62 Ac

0.45 Ac.

3.01 Ac. (2.94 Ac. Allowable)

 

1,700 Sq. Ft.

60' X 125'  (7,500 Sq. Ft.) 

20 (48 x 0.404)

35' (2-story)

5.87 Ac./0.45 Ac.

2.78 Units/Ac

17.24 Ac

48 Units

Single Family

PUD

R-1A

Residential Low

06-21-28-7172-19-030

31/20S/28E

19.6 Ac.

280



281



LEGACY HILLS 
SCHOPKE ESTATES
CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA

FOR: LUCAS LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC

SHEET INDEX

K-100               MASTER KEY PLAN

L-100               LANDSCAPE  PLAN
L-101               LANDSCAPE PLAN

LANDSCAPE, IRRIGATION, AND HARDSCAPE PLANS

C-100               COVER SHEET

H-102                HARDSCAPE ELEVATIONS

H-100                HARDSCAPE PLAN
H-101                HARDSCAPE PLAN

 L-102               LANDSCAPE DETAILS

 I-100                 IRRIGATION PLAN
 I-101                 IRRIGATION PLAN
 I-102                 IRRIGATION DETAILS

F.K.A.

T-100               TREE MITIGATION PLAN

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

C-100

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T

NO
 S

CA
LE

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

282



1
6

2
6

2
7

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

1

2

3

4
5

6
7

1
4

1
5

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
4

3
5

4
4

4
3

4
2

4
1

4
0

3
9

3
8

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

3
6

3
7

MATCHLINE

P.O.B.

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

K-100

MA
ST

ER
 K

EY
 P

LA
N

1"
=6

0'-
0"

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

283



1
6

2
6

2
7

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

1

2

3

4
5

6
7

1
4

1
5

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
4

3
5

4
4

4
3

4
2

4
1

4
0

3
9

3
8

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

3
6

3
7

P.O.B.

EXISTING TREES

EXISITNG TREE TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN

THE MAXIMUM REQUIRED UNDISTURBED AREA SHALL NOT EXCEED 24' FROM CENTER  OF TREE.

MIN.

NOTES: FENCING SHALL BE AT LEAST 3' ABOVE GROUND AND MIN. OF 3' BELOW GRADE.

PROHIBITED WITHIN FENCED AREAS.

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

ALL DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES ARE 

MIN. 2" X 4" POSTS

FENCING SHALL BE SET IN PLACE

CALIPER IS MEASURED 

HEIGHT AND MEASRED AT 
AT DIAMETER AT BREAST 

4.5' ABOVE GRADE.

NOTE:

1.  CONTRACTOR SHALL USE EXTREME CAUTION

    WHEN WORKING AROUND SAVED TREES.

2.  ALL UTILITY WORK SHALL BE DONE BY HAND
    WITHIN TREE ROOT IMPACT ZONE.

3.  ALL EARTHWORK WITHIN A TEN (10) FOOT RADIUS

    ZONE AROUND SAVED TREES SHALL BE NON-COMPACTED.

3'

0.75' PER CAL. INCH0.75' PER CAL. INCH

6' MAX.

EXISTING TREE TO BE
RETAINED.

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

T-100

TR
EE

 M
IT

IG
AT

IO
N 

PL
AN

1"
=6

0'-
0"

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

284



2
6

2
7

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

1

2

3

4
5

6
7

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
4

3
5

4
4

4
3

8

3
6

3
7

MATCHLINE

P.O.B.

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

FLORATAM SOD

FLORATAM SOD

ROOT BARRIERS
ROOT BARRIERS

SIGHT DISTANCE 
TRIANGLE

NOTE:

LANDSCAPE PLANS ARE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S 
"WATER WISE ORDINANCE 2069".

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

L-100

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN
AS

 N
OT

ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

* EACH LOT TO PLANT TWO, 3" DBH SHADE 
TREES AT TIME OF INDIVIDUAL 
LOT CONSTRUCTION

285



1
6

1
4

1
5

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

4
3

4
2

4
1

4
0

3
9

3
8

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

3
6

3
7

MATCHLINE MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

BAHIA SOD

BAHIA SOD

BAHIA SOD

BAHIA SOD

BAHIA SOD

ROOT BARRIERS

ROOT BARRIERS

BAHIA SOD

BAHIA SOD

BAHIA SOD

NOTE:

LANDSCAPE PLANS ARE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S 
"WATER WISE ORDINANCE 2069".

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

L-101

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN
AS

 N
OT

ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

* EACH LOT TO PLANT TWO, 3" DBH SHADE 
TREES AT TIME OF INDIVIDUAL 
LOT CONSTRUCTION

286



O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

L-102

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
DE

TA
IL

S 
AN

D 
PL

AN
T 

LI
ST

AS
 N

OT
ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

JA
B

·

·

·

·

·

287



2
6

2
7

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

1

2

3

4
5

6
7

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
4

3
5

4
4

4
3

8

3
6

3
7

MATCHLINE

1/2"

3/4"

3/4"

1"

1"

1/2"3/4"

IRRIGATION
CONTROLLER

SOLAR
SYNC

2" REUSE
IRRIGATION METER

2-1/2" GATE VALVE

2" SLEEVE

1/2"

2-1/2" MAINLINE

2-1/2" MAINLINE

2-
1/

2"
 M

AI
N

LI
N

E
2-

1/
2"

 M
AI

N
LI

N
E

2-
1/

2"
 M

AI
N

LI
N

E
2-

1/
2"

 M
AI

N
LI

N
E

2-1/2" MAINLINE

P.O.B.

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

2" SLEEVE

1/2"

3/4"

1-1/4"

1-1/2"

2"
1-1/2"
3/4"

QSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS
S

S

S

S

S

SBBBBBBB

B

B

A
B

B

B

B B

B

B A

C
E

C C

B

A

B

S
S

S

B

B

B
A

BB

S

S

S

S

S
SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

B

B

B

B

B

B

AB
B B B B S S B B B B

A B B

B B

S

B

A

E

C

A

C

B

S

S
S

S
S

B

B

B

S

S

S

S

S
S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

S

S

S

S

BB

B

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

1"

1"

1"

3/4"

1-1/4"

2" 2"

1/2"
3/4" 1/2"

1/2"

1/2"

3/4"

3/4"
3/4"

3/4"

1"

3/4"

1"

1"

3/4"

1/2"

1/2"

1/2"

1/2"

1/2"

1" 3/4"

3/4"

1/2"

1/2"

1/2"3/4"

3/4"
3/4"

3/4"

1"

1-1/4"
1/2"

1-1/4"

1-1/4"

1"

1"

3/4"1/2" 1/2"3/4"

1/2"1/2"

1-1/4"
3/4"

1/2"

2"

1/2"

3/4"

1/2"

1/2" 3/4"
1-1/2"

3/4"

1-1/4"

2"

2"

2"

2"

1-1/4"
2" 2"

2"

3/4"3/4"1/2"

1/2"
1/2"

1/2"
1/2"

3/4" 3/4"
3/4"

2" SLEEVE
2" SLEEVE

1/2"

1/2"

1/2"

1-1/4"

1-1/4"

STREET TREES TO BE IRRIGATED 
AS PART OF INDIVIDUAL LOT 
CONSTRUCTION

NOTE:

IRRIGATION PLANS ARE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S 
"WATER WISE ORDINANCE 2069".

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

I-100

IR
RI

GA
TI

ON
 P

LA
N

AS
 N

OT
ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

288



1
6

1
4

1
5

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

4
3

4
2

4
1

4
0

3
9

3
8

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

3
6

3
7

MATCHLINE

1/2"

3/4"

3/4"
1"

1"
1-1/4"

1-1/4"
1-1/2"

1-1/2"

2"

1/2"3/4"

3/4"
1"1"

1-1/4"

1-1/4"1-1/2"

2"

3/4"

3/4"

1/2"

3/4"
1"

1"

1-1/4"

1-1/4"

1-1/2"
1-1/2"

2"

2"

1"

1-1/4"

1-1/4"

1/2"

3/4"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2-
1/

2"
 M

AI
N

LI
N

E
2-

1/
2"

 M
AI

N
LI

N
E

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

1"

1"

1-1/4"

1/2"
3/4"

Q

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

Q

S

B

B

B

A

1/2"

1/2"

1/2"

B B
A

B

B

C

B

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

QSSR

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

1"
1-1/2"
1-1/4"

2"

1-1/4"

1-1/4"

1"

1"

3/4"

1/2"

1/2"

1/2"

3/4"
2"

2"

STREET TREES TO BE IRRIGATED 
AS PART OF INDIVIDUAL LOT 
CONSTRUCTION

NOTE:

IRRIGATION PLANS ARE IN COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CITY OF APOPKA'S 
"WATER WISE ORDINANCE 2069"

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

I-101

IR
RI

GA
TI

ON
 P

LA
N

AS
 N

OT
ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

289



PVC SCH 40 TEE OR ELL

PVC LATERAL PIPE

STREET ELL

FLEX PIPE, 12-INCH LENGTH:

USE 1/2'' ON SPRAY HEADS

PVC STREET ELL

SEE NOZZLE CHART

FINISH GRADE/TOP OF MULCH

SPRINKLER BODY ASSEMBLY

LOCATE HEADS 6'' FROM WALKS

OR CURBS

4"

8"

4"

24"

12"/16"

4"

4"

4"

4"

24"

4"

4"

24"

 1. BEDDING SHALL BE PLACED AND LEVELED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF BURY ITEM.

 2. BACKFILL SHALL BE PLACED IN MAXIMUM 6" LIFTS.

 3. SLEEVE ALL PIPE AND WIRE SEPARATELY.  SLEEVE 2 X DIA. OF PIPE (MIN 2"). ONE PIPE PER SLEEVE. SLEEVES TO BE

PRIMED AND SOLVENT WELDED.

 4. ALL PIPE TO BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURES SPECIFICATIONS WITH PIPE LABELING FACING UP FOR INSPECTION

PURPOSES. PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 2" CLEARANCE TO SIDE OF TRENCH AND BETWEEN PIPES.

 5. ALL 120 V. WIRING SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL CODE REQUIREMENTS.

 6. TAPE AND BUNDLE IRRIGATION CONTROL WIRES EVERY 10'. PROVIDE LOOSE 20" LOOP AT ALL CHANGES OF DIRECTION

OVER 30°.

 7. ALL REMOTE CONTROL VALVE WIRING NOT INSTALLED WITH MAINLINE PIPE SHALL BE INSTALLED IN A MINIMUM 2"

SCHEDULE 40 GREY ELECTRICAL CONDUIT OR AS APPROVED.

 8. "NON-POTABLE" WARNING TAPE TO BE INSTALLED ON ALL PRESSURIZED MAINLINES 12" ABOVE THE PIPE.

 9. INSTALL ONE ADDITIONAL SLEEVE SIZED TO MATCH THE LARGEST REQUIRED SLEEVE WITH ENDS TAPED FOR FUTURE USE.

10. SLEEVES TO EXTEND A MINIMUM OF 12" PAST HARDSCAPE PLANTERS, CURBS, SIDEWALKS, ETC. SLEEVES TO BE

STAGGERED/OFFSET SO THAT SLEEVE USE IS NOT OBSTRUCTED BY OTHER PIPES.

11. WHERE PRESSURE SUPPLY PIPING IS INSTALLED WITHOUT CONTROL WIRING, A 14 GA. TRACKING WIRE SHALL BE

INSTALLED.

THRUST BLOCKS ARE TO BE

CONSTRUCTED WITH 3,000 PSI

CONCRETE AT 48 HRS.  STEEL

REINFORCING RODS WILL BE REQ'D IF

SURROUNDING SOIL HAS A BEARING

VALUE OF LESS THAN 2,000 PSF.

THRUST BLOCKS REQUIRED  AT ALL

FITTINGS AND DIRECTION CHANGES ON

MAIN LINES.  NOTE THRUST BLOCK

LOCATIONS ON AS-BUILT DRAWINGS.

PLAN VIEWS

FITTING

TYPICAL SECTION

THRUST

H

M
A

X
.

H
/
2

NOTE:

MOUNT ON ANY SURFACE

WHERE IT WILL BE EXPOSED

TO UNOBSTRUCTED RAINFALL,

BUT NOT IN PATH OF

SPRINKLER SPRAY.

RUN LEAD WIRES

TO CONTROLLER

EXTERIOR WALL (SEE NOTE)

MODEL MINI-CLIK

WITH SENSOR GUARD

18-24" COILED WIRE

WATERPROOF CONNECTORS (2)

STANDARD VALVE BOX

SCH 80 T.O.E. NIPPLE

MAIN LINE PIPE & FITTINGS

BRICK SUPPORTS (4)

3/4" MINUS WASHED GRAVEL

FINISH GRADE

REMOTE CONTROL VALVE

MODEL "PGV-201-R"

WITH OUT FLOW CONTROL

SCH 80 T.O.E. NIPPLE

OFFSET AS

REQUIRED

EDGE OF

CROSSCUT

CONC.

THRUST

BLOCK

THRUST

BLOCK

AREA (Sq.

Ft.)

UNDISTURBED SOIL

(TYPICAL)

18"

MIN.

FINISH

GRADE

WIRE

SLEEVE

24 V.

WIRE

LATERAL

MAINLINE

FINAL

BACKFILL

COVER

BEDDING

BURY

ITEM

FINISH

GRADE

EXCAVATED MATERIAL

SHALL BE FINELY SCREENED

WITH NO ROCKS LARGER

THAN 1".

BEDDING AND COVER

MATERIAL SHALL BE

TOPSOIL WITH NO

ROCKS.

PIPE

SLEEVE

CONCRETE

SLAB

24V WIRE

PIPE & WIRE SLEEVING

PVC LATERAL

MAINLINE, LATERAL & 24V WIRE

NOTES:

SWING JOINT:

HUNTER 'PRO-FLEX' TUBING,

HSBE-050 ELBOWS (2), &

MARLEX STREET ELBOW (1)

MODEL CV-50F-50M

CHECK VALVE

MODEL CV-50F-50M

CHECK VALVE

MODEL CV-50F-50M

CHECK VALVE

LATERAL PIPE

LATERAL TEE OR ELL

SCH 40 THREADED COUPLER

FINISH GRADE

SCH 80 NIPPLE

MODEL CV-50F-50M

CHECK VALVE

MODEL PROS-00 SPRAY HEAD

MAROON

5'x15' LEFT STRIP

5'x15' RIGHT STRIP

5'x30' SIDE STRIP

SYM NOZZLE PATTERN GPMNOZZLE
A 90°  ADJUSTABLE ARC .21

LT. BLUE

B 180°  ADJUSTABLE ARC .42

OLIVE

C

360°  ARC

.49

MAROON

LT. BLUE 210°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

270°  ADJUSTABLE ARC .63

.84

MP1000
8'-15' radius

MP2000
13'-21'
radius

MP3000
22'-30'
radius

STRIPS &
CORNERS

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

M

N

O

P

Q

R

S

BLACK

BLACK

GREEN

GREEN

RED

BLUE

BLUE

YELLOW

YELLOW

GRAY

TURQOUISE

IVORY

COPPER

BROWN

.22

.22

.44

45°-105°  ADJUSTABLE ARC .45

90°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

180°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

360°  ARC

210°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

270°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

90°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

180°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

360°  ARC

210°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

270°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

.43

.77

.86

1.10

1.48

.86

1.82

2.12

2.73

3.64

0.50 GPM FLOOD BUBBLERT

U

PCN10 .50
BUBBLERS

AND MICRO-
SPRAYS SR-4Q

SR-4H

.22

.44

V

W

90°  4' RADIUS

180°  4' RADIUS

SPRAY NOZZLE CHART 

MP800
6'-12'

 radius

AA

BB

CC

DD

ORANGE

GREEN

90°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

180°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

210°  ADJUSTABLE ARC

360°  ARC

.23

.42

.43

.78

ORANGE

ORANGE

1.00 GPM FLOOD BUBBLERPCN50 1.00

TYPE

CONTROL WIRE CONDUIT,
UP TO 2 1/2" SIZE.

MINIMUM CLEARANCE
FOR DOOR OPENING

INTERIOR OR
EXTERIOR WALL

15 1/2"

MODEL ACC-XX00

3/4" POWER SUPPLY CONDUIT
J BOX INSIDE CONTROLLER
CONNECT PER LOCAL CODE

ADDITIONAL CONTROL WIRE
CONDUIT, UP TO 2" SIZE.

SUPPLEMENTAL GROUND WIRE
INSTALL PER ASIC GUIDELINES

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

I-102

IR
RI

GA
TI

ON
 D

ET
AI

LS
AS

 N
OT

ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

290



2
6

2
7

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

1

2

3

4
5

6
7

2
0

2
1

2
2

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
8

2
9

3
0

3
1

3
2

3
3

3
4

3
5

4
4

4
3

8

3
6

3
7

MATCHLINE

P.O.B.

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

SIGHT DISTANCE 
TRIANGLE

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

H-100

HA
RD

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN
AS

 N
OT

ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

291



1
6

1
4

1
5

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

2
1

4
3

4
2

4
1

4
0

3
9

3
8

8
9

1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

3
6

3
7

MATCHLINE MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE
MATCHLINE

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

H-101

HA
RD

SC
AP

E 
PL

AN
AS

 N
OT

ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

292



STONE INLAY
15' O.C. WITH STACKED
PRECAST 16" COLUMN

AND PAINTED TAN.
WITH SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH
EIFS COLUMN CAPPAINTED TO MATCH 

STONE RELIEF TO BE
PRECAST WALL PANEL

BY OTHERS AND TO BE SUBMITTED WITH CONSTRUCTION PERMIT.
STRUCTURAL DETAILING OF PREFABRICATED PANELS AND PILASTERS

LEGACY HILLS

ENTRY FEATURE STONE

BORDER
CAP AND REVERSED BOTTOM 
CAST STONE SIGN WALL 

COLUM.
STONE VENEER SIGN

STUCCO FINISH 
PAINTED BEIGE

MEDIUM TEXTURE

STUCCO FINISH 
PAINTED BROWN

SAND TEXTURE

SIGN LETTERING
IN CENTURY GOTHIC

16" HIGH SILVER

FONT

30 S.F. SIGN FACE

PAINTED BROWN
PREFAB WALL BORDER

AND PAINTED TAN.
WITH SMOOTH STUCCO FINISH
EIFS COLUMN CAP

WALL BORDER
CAST STONE SIGN 

BELOW
CONTINUOUS FOOTER

ENTRY SIGN LOCATION
NATURAL GRADE AT

CAST STONE 
COLUMN CAP

LEGACY HILLS

BORDER
CAP AND REVEERSED BOTTOM 
CAST STONE SIGN WALL 

COLUMN TO MATCH
PRECAST STACKED 

STONE VENEER SIGN

STONE RELIEF

STUCCO FINISH 
PAINTED BEIGE

MEDIUM TEXTURE
STUCCO FINISH 
PAINTED BROWN

SAND TEXTURE SIGN LETTERING
IN CENTURY GOTHIC

16" HIGH SILVER

FONT

30 S.F. SIGN FACE

COLUMN TO MATCH
PRECAST STACKED 

STONE VENEER

STONE RELIEF
SIDEWALK

CURB
ROAD CURB

ROAD

SIDEWALK

BORDER AND STACKED
WITH 8" BEIGE SMOOTH
PRECAST WALL PANEL

STONE FIELD

O
W

N
ER

 N
AM

E 
AN

D
 A

D
D

RE
SS

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.

SC
AL

E

PH
AS

E

FI
LE

 N
AM

E

D
ES

CR
IP

TI
O

N
RE

V.
PR

O
JE

CT
 A

D
D

RE
SS

D
AT

E

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

CH
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

D
AT

E

SI
G

N
AT

U
RE

 A
N

D
 D

AT
ED

 S
EA

L
D

RA
W

IN
G

 T
IT

LE
CO

N
SU

LT
AN

TS

CH
RI

ST
O

PH
ER

 D
. R

IC
E

#L
A6

66
71

22

LE
G

AC
Y 

H
IL

LS
16

-1
12

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS

01
-2

6-
18

CI
TY

 O
F 

AP
O

PK
A,

 F
LO

RI
D

A

JE
L 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

 O
RL

AN
D

O
, F

L.
 3

28
04

 (4
07

) 4
18

-1
33

8
72

0 
VA

SS
AR

 S
TR

EE
T

CO
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 T

H
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

BO
RR

EL
LI

 +
 P

AR
TN

ER
S 

U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

PR
O

VI
D

ED
 

BY
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

T,
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TE
N

TS
 O

F 
TH

IS
 D

RA
W

IN
G

 A
RE

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 T
RA

N
SM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y 

O
TH

ER
 

PA
RT

Y 
EX

CE
PT

 A
S 

AG
RE

ED
 T

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
AR

CH
IT

EC
T.

 C
O

PY
RI

G
H

T 
BO

RR
EL

LI
 +

 P
AR

TN
ER

S.
 A

AC
 0

00
71

1

AC
C 

00
07

11

H-102

HA
RD

SC
AP

E 
EL

EV
AT

IO
NS

AN
D 

DE
TA

IL
S

AS
 N

OT
ED

16
-1

12

CD
R

CD
R

293



 
 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Ordinance No. 2661 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2661 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – 

FUTURE LAND USE – 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2661 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 

SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE – 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC – FROM 

AGRICULTURE TO INDUSTRIAL 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    3255 Clarcona Road LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    Sidney L Vihlen, III, c/o Vihlen & Associates, P.A. 
 
LOCATION:  3307 Clarcona Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 
EXISTING USE:   Warehousing  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL: 1 Dwelling Unit 
 
CURRENT ZONING:   Agriculture  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) (Note: this Comprehensive Plan Small 

Scale Future Land Use amendment is being processed along with a request 
to Change the Zoning from AG (Agriculture) to I-1 (Industrial) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    4.75 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING: 1 Dwelling Unit 
ZONING DISTRICT: PROPOSED: 124,146 sq. ft. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  294



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed in the city on February 21, 1996 by 

Ordinance 918.  Presently the subject property does not have “City” future land use designation or zoning 

designations assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of Industrial.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Industrial Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future 

Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support an Industrial FLUM 

designation at the subject site:  

 

Future Land Use Element, Policy 3.1.l  

 

Industrial - The primary use shall be industrial, intensive commercial, agricultural and business/research 

parks. Also allowed are public facilities and supporting infrastructure. The use of the Planned Unit 

Development process shall be encouraged. The maximum floor area ratio shall be .60. Planned Unit 

Development uses may include:  

 

(1) All primary uses  

 

(2) Other uses deemed compatible with and complimentary to the other proposed master planned uses 

and the surrounding neighborhoods. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed future land use change will not impact school-age 

population.  Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal 

Planning Agreement. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

May 25, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification (Apopka Chief, property posted, notice mailed) 

July 20, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  

295



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 

Future Land Use Designation of Industrial for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located 

at 3307 Clarcona Road.  

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 12, 2018, found the proposed Future Land Use 

amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 

areas; and unanimously recommended approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 

Agriculture to Industrial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on June 20, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2661 and 

held it over for second reading and adoption on August 1, 2018.  

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2661. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

296



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “City” Industrial “City” I-1 Industrial 

East (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Single Family Homes 

South (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Woodlands and Single Family Home 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 West Orange Trail & House of Worship 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS: 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for Industrial use, which makes the request for Industrial 
future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed above, as well as the general 
future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
The subject property is located off a major road, Clarcona Road, with an industrial use to the north. 
 
The proposed Commercial future land use designation is consistent with the general future land use character of 
the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No  
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from Clarcona Road 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed 
against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property comprises mostly of grasslands, with some tree 
cover. Additionally, the property has a single family home. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 
use designation for the property is Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR).  Based on the housing element of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs or supply as projected in 
the Comprehensive Plan.   
  

297



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 
developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary Development 
Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and submit a habitat 
management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 GPD / 
Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  7,253    GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    604  GPD 
   

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 GPD / 
Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     9,670  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   806  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 
Solid Waste 

 
1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 
2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 

Apopka 
 

298



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     97    lbs/  day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:    8    lbs /  day 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None  

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  N/A  acres 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A    acres 
 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 
 

Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide parkland 
and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 
approval. 
  

299



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

3255 Clarcona Road LLC 
4.75 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Agriculture  

To: Industrial 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: Agriculture 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

  

300



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 301



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

302



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

303



ORDINANCE NO. 2661 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM AGRICULTURE (1 DU/ 5 
AC) TO INDUSTRIAL (MAX F.A.R. 0.60) FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY LOCATED EAST OF CLARCONA ROAD AND NORTH OF 
STONE ROAD, COMPRISING 4.75 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 
OWNED BY 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2631 adopted on March 7, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2631, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) to Industrial (Max. F.A.R. 0.6), for certain real 
property located east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone Road, comprising of 4.75 acres more 
or less, (27-21-28-0000-00-045); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 

304



ORDINANCE NO. 2661 
PAGE 2 
 

Section VI. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
1st day of August, 2018 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
June 20, 2018 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
August 1, 2018 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: May 25, 2018; July 20, 2018 

 

305



ORDINANCE NO. 2661 
PAGE 3 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
3255 Clarcona Road LLC 

4.75 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Agriculture  
To: Industrial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: Agriculture 

To: I-1 
Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 

 
 

306



 
 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2662 - CHANGE OF ZONING – 3255 CLARCONA ROAD 

LLC 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2662 - CHANGE OF ZONING – 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC – FROM AGRICULTURE TO INDUSTRIAL 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    3255 Clarcona Road LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    Sidney L Vihlen, III c/o Vihlen & Associates, P.A. 
 
LOCATION:  3307 Clarcona Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 
EXISTING USE:   Warehousing  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Agriculture  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: 1 Dwelling Unit 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) (Note: this Change of Zoning 

request is being processed along with a request to amend the Future 
Land Use from Agriculture (1 du / 5 ac) to Industrial (Max. FAR 0.6) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    4.75 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 1 Dwelling Unit 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: 124,146 sq. ft. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Vihlen 
 307



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The subject parcel was annexed in the city on February 21, 1996 by 
Ordinance 918. Presently the subject property does not have “City” future land use designation or zoning 
designations assigned.  The applicant requests a future land use designation of Industrial. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to I-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with 
the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request is being 
processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from Agriculture to Industrial. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed Industrial (Max. FAR 0.6) Future Land Use designation. 
 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed change of zoning will not impact school-age population.  

Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 

Agreement. 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
May 25, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification (Apopka Chief, property posted, notice mailed) 

July 20, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) for the property owned by 3255 
Clarcona Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona Road and north of Stone Road.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 12, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture to I-1 (Restricted Industrial 
District) for the property owned by 3255 Clarcona Road LLC, and located east of Clarcona Road and north 
of Stone Road. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on June 20, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2662 and 
held it over for second reading and adoption on August 1, 2018.  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2662. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 
 
 

  
308



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “City” Industrial “City” I-1 Industrial 

East (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Single Family Homes 

South (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Woodlands and Single Family Home 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 West Orange Trail & House of Worship 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by Clarcona Road.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Industrial” (Max. FAR 0.6) and with the character 

of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use designation.   
          
ALLOWABLE USES:   

1. Any C-3 Commercial District permitted use. 
 

2. Manufacture and processing of novelties, souvenirs, bakery or 
confectionery products, garments, scientific, electrical, optical 
and precision instruments or equipment, computers, advanced 
electronics, lasers and robotics, batteries, boats, building 
products, ceramics, chemical products, dairy products, electrical 
machinery and equipment, furniture, decorating materials, 
upholstering materials, glass and glass products, metal plastic or 
cardboard containers, paint or varnish, pharmaceutical products, 
photographic equipment and supplies, shoes and leather goods, 
signs, textiles, and tires, etc. 

 
3.  Bus, cab and truck repair. 
 
4.  Dyeing, dry cleaning and laundering. 
 
5.  Machinery sales. 
 
6.  Machine shops. 
 
7.  Meat storage, cutting and distribution. 
 
8.  Adult entertainment consistent with the standards of the Apopka 

Municipal Code. 
 
9.  Bottling and distribution plants; ice cream manufacturers. 
 
10.  Warehouses. 

309



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 
11.  Testing of materials, equipment and products. 
 
12.  Cold storage and frozen food lockers. 
 
13.  Frozen food lockers. 
 
14.  Book binding, lithography and publishing plants. 
 
15. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 

permitted herein which adhere to the intent of the district and 
which are not prohibited as specified in this Code. Use 
determination shall be based upon the community development 
director's recommendation. 

 
16. Guard or custodian living quarters may be permitted as an 

accessory use when attached to one primary structure. 
 

ZONING REGULATIONS:  Minimum Site Area: 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width: 100 ft.  

Front Setback: 25 ft. 

Side Setback: 10 ft. 

Rear Setback: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential districts)  

Corner Setback: 25 ft. 

 

 

  

310



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

3255 Clarcona Road LLC 
4.75 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: Agriculture  

To: Industrial 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: Agriculture 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 

VICINITY MAP 
  

311



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 312



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC - REZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 

 

 

313



ORDINANCE NO. 2662 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM AGRICULTURE TO I-1 (RESTRICTED 
INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF CLARCONA ROAD AND NORTH OF 
STONE ROAD, COMPRISING 4.75 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 
OWNED BY 3255 CLARCONA ROAD LLC; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) zoning has been found to be 

consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 

the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

314



ORDINANCE NO. 2662 
PAGE 2 

 

Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2661. 

 
 

           Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: May 25, 2018; July 20, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  June 20, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
August 1, 2018 

 
 
 
 

 

315



ORDINANCE NO. 2662 
PAGE 2 

3255 Clarcona Road LLC 

4.75 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Agriculture  

To: Industrial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: Agriculture 

To: I-1 (Restricted Industrial District) 

Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-0000-00-045 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

316



 
 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning 

    Adjacent Uses 

    Applicant Letter 

    Ordinance No. 2633 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2663 - CHANGE OF ZONING – SUNTRUST BANK 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 2633 – CHANGE OF ZONING – SUNTRUST 

BANK – FROM C-2 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) TO C-1 

(COMMERCIAL RETAIL DISTRICT) 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:    SunTrust Bank 
 
APPLICANT:    Causseaux, Hewett, and Walpole, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:  936 E Semoran Blvd  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS:  11-21-28-0750-00-070 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant\utility easement 
 
CURRENT ZONING:   C-2  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL: 5,304 sq. ft. commercial space 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: C-1  
 
TRACT SIZE:    0.49 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 5,304 sq. ft. commercial space 
ZONING DISTRICT:                          PROPOSED: 5,304 sq. ft. commercial space 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Suntrust Easr 
  

317



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: SunTrust Bank owns three vacant parcels east-adjacent of the bank. The 
eastern-most adjacent parcel, 920 E. Semoran Boulevard was annexed in the City on April 18, 2018. The 
City Council is scheduled to vote for a Commercial future land use designation and C-1 zoning for 920 E. 
Semoran Boulevard on June 6, 2018, the two abutting parcels bordering to the west. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning for 936 E. Semoran Boulevard to C-1 is compatible to the adjacent 
zoning classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed C-1 (Commercial Retail) Future Land Use designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
  
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on May 10, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 20, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
May 22, 2018 - Public Notice and Notification (Apopka Chief, letters, posting) 

July 20, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 (Commercial Retail District) for the 
property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located at 936 E Semoran Blvd.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 12, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas; and unanimously 
recommended approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from C-2 (General Commercial District) to C-1 
(Commercial Retail District) for the property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located at 936 E Semoran Blvd. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on June 20, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2663 and 
held it over for second reading and adoption on August 1, 2018. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2663. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

318



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Commercial “County” C-3 Retail Uses 

East (City) “City” Commercial “City” C-2 Auto Parts Vendor and Utility Station 

South (City) “City” Commercial “City” C-2 Vacant  

West (City) Commercial “City” C-1 Bank and Vacant Lots 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by East Semoran Blvd. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed C-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Commercial” (Max 0.25 FAR) and with the 

character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use designation.   
      
ALLOWABLE USES: 1. Any nonresidential permitted use in the PO/I or CN districts. 

2.  Retail establishments. 

3.  Banks, savings and loan and other financial institutions. 

4. Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar 

amusement centers, provided such activities and facilities are 

enclosed within a sound-proof building. 

5.  Churches and schools. 

6.  Day nurseries, kindergartens and other child care centers. 

7.  Drive-in restaurants, with property lines no closer than 200 feet 

from any residential districts or uses. 

8.  Florist shops, the products of which are displayed and sold wholly 

within an enclosed building. 

9.  Hotels, motels, bed and breakfast facilities. 

10. Personal service establishments such as barbershops, beauty 

parlors, professional and other offices, parking garages and lots, 

laundry and dry cleaning pickup station, self-service coin-

operated laundry and dry cleaning establishments, shoe shine and 

repair, tailoring, travel services, watch and clock repair and 

locksmiths, etc. 

11. Post offices. 

12. Restaurants. 319



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

13. Theaters, enclosed in structures. 

14. Clubs and lodges. 

15. Funeral parlors, when the sole use of the facility shall be for 

funeral rites. 

16. Animal clinics for the treatment of small animals, excluding farm 

animals, but including those animals no larger than a dog, 

commonly kept as pets in a residence, provided the care, treatment 

or housing of such animals shall not be allowed on the outside. 

17. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted 

herein which adhere to the intent of the district and which are not 

prohibited as specified in this code. Use determination shall be 

based upon the community development director's 

recommendation. 

  

320



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

SunTrust Bank 

0.49 +/- acres  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: C-2 (General Commercial District) 
To: C-1 (Retail Commercial District) 
Parcel ID #: 11-21-28-0750-00-070  

 

VICINITY MAP 
  

321



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 322



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

323



 
 

 
    

June 4, 2018 
 
 
 
Mr. Bryan Nelson, Mayor 
City of Apopka City Council 
120 E Main Street 
Apopka, FL 32703 
 
RE: Ordinance Nos. 2650 and 2651 – Second Reading 
 
Dear Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council: 
 
Due to conflicting business travel commitments, I am unable to attend the second and final 
reading for Ordinance Nos. 2650 and 2651. Please accept my apologies for this absence. I 
attended the City Council first reading on May 16 to represent the Small-scale Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment (Ss-CPA) and Rezoning applications. There was no opposition in attendance 
and no major issues were raised by the City Council. The applications were unanimously 
approved by a vote of 5-0. 
 
This parcel is one of three that comprise an overall ±1.2-acre development site. The intent is to 
develop a single-story, fast causal restaurant. Adjacent parcels are within the City of Apopka 
limits and have Commercial FLU and C-1 or C-2 Zoning designations. The proposed 
applications and intended use are consistent with the non-residential development pattern along 
the East Semoran Boulevard corridor.  
 
Again, I apologize for my absence and respectfully request that you vote to approve the Ss-CPA 
and Rezoning applications, which is consistent with your professional staff’s and City of Apopka 
Planning Commission’s unanimous recommendations. I appreciate your consideration of these 
applications and we are excited about moving this project forward in the City of Apopka. 
 
Sincerely,  
CHW 

 
Craig Brashier, AICP 
Director of Planning 

 
L:\2017\17-0497\Planning\City-County\LTR_180604_Ord2650&2651_FinalReading.docx 

 

324



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2663 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM C-2 (GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) TO C-
1 (COMMERCIAL RETAIL DISTRICT) FOR CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF EAST SEMORAN 
BOULEVARD AND EAST OF SHEELER AVENUE, COMPRISING 0.49 
ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY SUNTRUST BANK; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed C-1 (Commercial Retail District) zoning has been found to be 

consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land 

Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as C-1 (Commercial Retail District) as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

325



ORDINANCE NO. 2663 

PAGE 2 

  

Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 

 
 

           Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: May 25, 2018; July 20, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  June 20, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
August 1, 2018 

 
 
 
 

 

326



ORDINANCE NO. 2663 

PAGE 3 

 

SUNTRUST BANK 
0.49 +/- acres  

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: C-2 

To: C-1 (Commercial Retail District) 
Parcel ID #: 11-21-28-0750-00-070 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

327



 

 

 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
X OTHER: Ordinance  Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Use Map 
    Ordinance No. 2666 
    Master Plan/PDP 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2666 - CHANGE OF ZONING - KELLY PARK ROAD PUBLIX 

CENTER AND ASSIGNMENT OF KPI INTERCHANGE AND VILLAGE 
CENTER OVERLAY DISTRICTS; PRESENTATION OF MASTER PLAN. 

    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2666 – CHANGE OF ZONING FROM 

“COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” KPI-MU (KELLY PARK INTERCHANGE 
MIXED USE) AND ASSIGNMENT OF KELLY PARK INTERCHANGE AND 
VILLAGE CENTER OVERLAY DISTRICT FOR THE  KELLY PARK ROAD 
PUBLIX CENTER; APPROVE THE MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND APPROVE THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:    JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust  
 
APPLICANT:    Randy Holihan, Brandon Partners  
 
LOCATION: 4966 Plymouth-Sorrento Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 13-20-27-0000-00-008 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Mixed Use Interchange (The subject site is located within the Kelly 

 Park Interchange Form-Based Code Area) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Orange County A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 68,231 square feet of commercial uses including a 46,031 square foot 

Publix supermarket following the Form-Based Code standards. 
 
TRACT SIZE:    18.13 +/- acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

328



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The owner of the subject property is requesting a rezoning of 18.13 

acres of property from Orange County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), with an 

Interchange and Village Center character zone to develop a 68,231 square foot commercial development 

including a 46,031 Publix supermarket subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form 

Based Code. The subject property is located east of SR 429 and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road, on the 

southwest side of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The owner of the 

property is JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust.   

 

A Master Plan\PDP and a Development Agreement will have a review and final action by City Council at 

the second reading of Ordinance 2666 on August 1, 2018.   City Council will only take action on the first 

reading of Ordinance 2666 at the July 18, 2018 hearing.  

 

Development Profile: 

 

Setbacks:   

 Front: Min. 8 feet – Max. 20 feet – Village Center, Min. 10 feet, Max. 20 feet - 

Interchange 

 Rear: Min. 10 feet - Village Center, Min. 10 ft. – Interchange  

 Side: Min. 0 feet – Village Center, Min. 7.5 – Interchange  

Overflow Parking None 

Driveway length: Min. 15 feet – Max. 30 ft. 

On-street parking: 9 parking spaces provided  

Maximum building height: Min. 2 stories encouraged, Max. 5 stories – Village Center, Min. N/A, Max. 

8 stories – Interchange  

Off-street parking: 293 parking spaces  

 

In accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, the owner has 

submitted a Master Plan in conjunction with the rezoning application detailing the development of the 

proposed commercial center. The property currently has a future land use designation of Mixed Use 

Interchange, which is a consistent future land use category with the KPI-MU zoning designation. The 

property is located within the one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange.   

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   A Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan is provided for presentation, 

information and discussion purposes.  At the second reading of Ordinance 2666, City Council will also 

review and take final action on a development agreement and the Master Plan\PDP. 

 

The Master Plan\PDP follows the Kelly Park Interchange Form-Based Code Requirements of the property 

with a total of 68,231 square feet of commercial uses including a 46,031 square foot Publix supermarket on 

18.13 acres. The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details design of the proposed development in 

accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and the Village Center 

and Interchange character zones, which allows commercial development as permitted uses. The surrounding 

properties currently consist primarily of agricultural uses.  

 

The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan proposes dividing the property into three blocks, labeled 

as Blocks “A”, “B”, and “C”. Block “A” will consist of a 7,200 square foot retail building, parking to serve 

the commercial uses, and a 0.9 acre outparcel labeled as “future development.” Block “B” will consist of a 

46,031 square foot Publix supermarket, and three retail buildings ranging in size from 3,000 to 6,000 square 

feet, and parking to serve the commercial uses. Block “C” is 7.33 acres and is reserved for future 329



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 3 
 

development. A temporary stormwater retention pond serving Blocks “A” and “B” will be located on Block 

“C”. The applicant proposes to assign the Village Center character zone to Blocks “A” and “B”, and the 

Interchange character zone to Block “C”.  

 

Access to the site is proposed via a full access point and a right-in/right-out located on Kelly Park Road, 

and a right-in/right-out and a full access located on Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan details the dedication of 100-feet of right-of-way in the center of the property to the City. 

This public right-of-way will facilitate the development of the internal north-south roadway to Appy Lane.  

 

The Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan details the development of this roadway within the subject 

property in accordance with street type B (Village Center Access Street) as outlined in the Kelly Park 

Interchange Form Based Code. A 9-foot wide on-street parking area, a 7-foot wide bike lane, an 8-foot wide 

sidewalk, a 12-foot wide drive lane, and an 11-foot median will be constructed on this road. A 12-foot wide 

bicycle/pedestrian trail will be provided along the eastern portion of the property abutting Kelly Park Road. 

A five foot wide sidewalk will be dedicated along Plymouth-Sorrento Road. An internal pedestrian network 

will be established within the commercial portion of the site. A landscape gateway with an entry feature and 

water feature will be provided at the main entrance to the development on Kelly Park Road. 20-percent of 

the total site area will remain as open space in accordance with the requirements of the Form Based Code.  

 

DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:  That the zoning classification of 

the following described property be designated as Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), 

Neighborhood character zone, as defined in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and with the 

following provisions: 
 

1. Development of the property is subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form 

Based Code, Neighborhood character zone.  

 

2. The architectural design of the buildings must be consistent with Section K.2.g, and Appendix A of 

the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code.  

 

3. A 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail will be constructed along the portion of the development abutting 

Plymouth-Sorrento Road to facilitate the construction of a regional trail system. (Policy 20.19, 

FLUE; Sec. Q, FBC).  The trail shall be placed in an easement or tract. 

 

4. Perpetual easements dedicated to the City of Apopka shall be provided over the internal pedestrian 

pathways and trail networks to allow public access. 

 

5. Any commercial / retail buildings in Block C that are less than 10,000 s.f. in size, except gas stations 

or convenience stores with gas pumps, shall be (i) located within 200 feet of the Thoroughfare (as 

hereinafter defined); (ii) shall be oriented toward and face the Thoroughfare; and (iii) shall have 

minimal setbacks from the Thoroughfare with either on-street parking or a single lane of off-road 

parking. 

6.  A development agreement shall address the extension of utilities, dedication of rights-of-way, and 

public access to regional trail facilities, as well as development requirements specific to the site. 

 

 
330



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 4 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Mixed-Use Interchange Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Kelly Park Interchange 

Form Based Code.   

 

TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS:  A transportation impact analysis (TIA) was conducted for this project 

to assess its impacts on the surrounding roadway segments and intersections within a one-mile radius of the 

project per the City’s adopted TIA methodology. The study evaluated the combined phases of the project 

which assumed 148,013 square feet of retail development at full buildout. Included in the analysis were 

segments of Plymouth Sorrento Road (CR 437), Jason Dwelley Parkway, Haas Road, and Kelly Park Road. 

Intersections analyzed were W. Kelly Park Road and Plymouth Sorrento Road; W. Kelly Park Road and  

Effie Drive; W. Kelly Park Road and Jason Dwelley Parkway; Plymouth Sorrento Road and Appy Lane; 

Plymouth Sorrento Road and Haas Road; and the site entrances on W. Kelly Park Road and Plymouth 

Sorrento Road. Right and left turn lane warrant studies for Lester Road at its intersection with Rogers Road 

were also conducted. 

 

The project will generate 5,180 daily and 480 P.M. Peak Hour Net New trips. The addition of these project 

trips to the study roadways and intersections will not cause the Level of Service (LOS) to fall below the 

City’s adopted LOS standard.  

 

Right and left turn warrant analyses were conducted for the site entrances on Kelly Park Road and Plymouth 

Sorrento Road. These analyses concluded that a right turn deceleration lane is warranted on Kelly Park 

Road and left turn deceleration lanes are warranted at the site entrances for both Kelly Park Road and 

Plymouth Sorrento Road by full project buildout. The applicant will be required to coordinate the timing of 

the installation of deceleration lanes/turn lanes with the City for Kelly Park Road and Orange County for 

Plymouth Sorrento Road. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

Orange County was notified on May 11, 2018.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

July 18, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading w/ Master Plan\PDP and Development Agreement 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 1, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

July 20, 2018 – Public Notice 

  

331



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 5 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use 

(KPI-MU), and assignment of a Village Center and Interchange character zones consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and recommends approval of the Kelly 

Park Publix Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 12, 2018, found the proposed zoning, overlay district 

and Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land 

Development Code; and unanimously recommended approval of the rezoning of the subject parcels from 

Orange County A-1 (ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) and assignment of the  KPC 

Village Center and Interchange Overlay Districts, and approval of the Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report, exhibits, and City Council 

approval of a Development Agreement. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on July 18, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2666 and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on August 1, 2018. 

 

Recommended Motion: (Council is requested to Make Three Motions) 

  

1.  Adopt Ordinance No. 2666 (quasi-judicial process) 

2.  Approve the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan (quasi-judicial process) 

3.  Approve the Development Agreement (legislative process) 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

332



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) 

(County) 

Rural A-1 (ZIP), A-1 Single-family residential/ Kelly Park 

Road right-of-way 

East (City) Very Low Suburban A-1 (ZIP) Plymouth-Sorrento Road, Single-

family residential  

South 

(County) 

Rural A-1 Penang Nursery  

West 

(County) 

None SR 429 right-of-way  SR 429 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento 

Road. Internal streets are public and will be owned and maintained by 
the City of Apopka. Future land use designations and zoning 
categories assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west are 
predominantly residential, and agricultural.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) zoning 

is compatible with policies set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Commercial uses as set forth within the Master Plan. 
  

333



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 7 
 

 
Project: Kelly Park Publix 

Owned by:  JD and Kathleen L. Horne Trust 

Located: East of SR 429, south of Kelly Park Road and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road 

Parcel ID#: 13-20-27-0000-00-008 

 

 VICINITY MAP 
 

   

334



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

335



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

336



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

KELLY PARK PUBLIX – CHANGE OF ZONING, PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN  
PAGE 10 
 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

337



ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (PD/ZIP) TO “CITY” KELLY 

PARK INTERCHANGE MIXED-USE (KPI-MU), AND ASSIGNING A 

KELLY PARK CROSSING INTERCHANGE AND VILLAGE CENTER 

OVERLAY DISTRICTS, FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF STATE ROAD 429 ON THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF WEST KELLY 

PARK ROAD AND PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD, COMPRISING 18.13 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JD AND KATHLEEN L 

HORNE TRUST; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 

the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust has requested a change in zoning on property 

as identified in Section II of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the subject property is located within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 

Vision Plan Area and the Kelly Park Interchange Form-Based Code Area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, if a site, or any portion of a site is located within a one mile radius of the 

interchange of Kelly Park Road and State Road 429, the entire site is subject to the form based 

standards contained within the Kelly Park Form-Based Code and within Objective 20 of the Future 

Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan; and 

  

 WHEREAS, properties within the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code Area (aka 

Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area) are required by Comprehensive Plan, Future Land 

Use Element Policy 20.21, to be rezoned to the Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) 

zoning category; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a Character Overlay District shall be assigned to properties within the Kelly 

Park Mixed-use zoning category consistent with Table 20.10, Future Land Use Element, 

Comprehensive Plan; 

 

WHEREAS, in conjunction with the rezone of property to Kelly Park Mixed Use 

Interchange, an Overlay District must be assigned to the Property described in Exhibit “A”; and  

 

338



ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 

WHERAS, JD and Kathleen L Horne Trust has requested a rezoning to Kelly Park 

Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) zoning, with the assignment of Interchange and Village Center 

character zones; and  

 

WHEREAS, the proposed Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) zoning, and 

Interchange and Village Center character zones have been found to be consistent with the City of 

Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

  

Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described Property be designated 

as Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), Interchange and Village Center character zones 

as defined in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and with the following Master Plan 

provisions:  

 

Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following Property, as described in Exhibit 

“A” being situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use 

(KPI-MU); and Kelly Park Interchange Overlay Districts of Interchange and Village Center 

Overlay Districts, as defined in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, are assigned to the 

Property. 

 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 

the City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation. 

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.  

  

339



ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

PAGE 3 

 

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 

 
 

                     
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: June 1, 2018     
    July 20, 2018  
  

 
READ FIRST TIME:  July 18, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     August 1, 2018  

340



ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

PAGE 4 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcel ID No: 13-20-27-0000-00-008 

Combined Acreage: 18.13 +/- Acres 

 

NORTH 1/2 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20S, 

RANGE 27E (LESS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY), ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 

WHICH IS ALSO DESCRIBED AS: 

 

NORTH 1/2 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20S, 

RANGE 27E (LESS ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY TAKEN PURSUANT TO (I) THAT CERTAIN 

INDENTURE RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 398, PAGE 188 AND (II) THAT CERTAIN 

STIPULATED ORDER OF TAKING AS TO PARCEL 207 RECORDED IN OFFICIAL 

RECORDS BOOK 10756, PAGE 6799 AND DOCUMENT NUMBER 20140285830), ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

ALL THE ABOVE BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF 

SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, 

TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, RUN THENCE 

NORTH 88°20'47" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4, A 

DISTANCE OF 1,357.89 FEET TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE 

RUN SOUTH 00°14'36" EAST ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 30.01 FEET TO 

THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS 

BOOK 10756, PAGE 6799, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN 

THENCE THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCE ALONG THE 

WESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY LINES OF SAID OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK: 

 

(1) SOUTH 00°14'36" EAST A DISTANCE OF 29.88 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING, 

SAID POINT BEING A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KELLY PARK 

ROAD PER SAID OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK; (2) N87°44'58"E A DISTANCE OF 561.08 

FEET; (3) N88°21'18"E A DISTANCE OF 724.60 FEET TO A NON-TANGENT POINT ON A 

CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, A CHORD 

BEARING OF S45°44'45"E, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 35.91 FEET; (4) SOUTHEASTERLY 

ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 91°48'44", A 

DISTANCE OF 40.06 FEET TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY, SAID POINT BEING A 

POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD; (5) 

S00°09'11"W ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND SAID OFFICIAL 

RECORDS BOOK A DISTANCE OF 581.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE LINE SOUTH LINE 

341



ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

PAGE 5 

 

OF THE NORTH 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID 

SECTION 13; THENCE S88°34'31"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 

1,306.99 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 13; THENCE N00°14'36"W ALONG SAID WEST 

LINE, A DISTANCE OF 596.34 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINS 789,753 SQUARE FEET OR 18.130 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

342



ORDINANCE NO. 2666 

PAGE 6 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

ASSIGNMENT OF KELLY PARK FORM-BASED CODE 

OVERLAY CHARACTER DISTRICTS 

 

 

343



KELLY PARK ROAD
(VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W)

NOT PLATTED
OWNER: CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-007
ORB 10778, PG 1273

W. LINE, NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

BAY RIDGE HEIGHTS
PB "X", PG 143

LOT 1LOT 2

30' R/W PER, DB 398, PG 188

S. LINE N. 1/2
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27
(BEARING BASIS)

E. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

N
00

°1
4'

36
"W

  5
96

.3
4'

 D
ES

C

N87°44'58"E  561.08' D&M N88°21'18"E  724.60' D&M

S0
0°

09
'1

1"
W

  5
81

.6
2'

 D
&

M

S88°34'31"W  1306.99' D&M
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

1.2'

6' CLF6' METAL FENCE

6' METAL FENCE
2.9'

0.3'E

COLUMN
(TYP)

6' CLF

CBW

CBW

1.4'

6' METAL FENCE

TRAFFIC BOX
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

POB
SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

RETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREA

RETENTION AREA

FND 4"x4" CM
RLS #1916

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

FND 4"x4" CM
NO #

N
00
°1
4'
36
"W
  5
96
.3
5'
 M
EA
S

C1

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

STOP BAR

STOP BARYELLOW LINE

YELLOW LINE
YELLOW LINE
WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

YE
LL

O
W

 L
IN

E

W
HI

TE
 L

IN
E

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

1.6'

6' CLF 6' CLF

0.9'N

CONTIGUOUS WITH
W. R/W LINE

CONTIGUOUS WITH
S. R/W LINE

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

A

B

B

N88°20'47"E
1357.89' DESC

POC
NE CORNER
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

S. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

NT

NT

N. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

L2
L3

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

O

N

L
Y

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

O
N

L
Y

O
N

L
Y

O

N

L
Y

8 spaces

10 spaces

D D

4 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

5 spaces6 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

5
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

8 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6+2 spaces

8 spaces

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

3
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

ONLY

ONLY

O
N

L
Y

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

4 10a

Overall Site
Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

SOILS LEGEND:

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (0-5%)

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (5-12%)

CHANDLER APOPKA FINE SANDS

4

5

6

SITE DATA:

Parcel I.D. #: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

Existing FLU: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Existing Zoning: A-1

Proposed Zoning: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Design District: Village Center

Allowable Uses: All uses allowed under Section F Table 2 (Village Center)

Gross Land Area:   18.13 acres

Non-Developable Area:     0.00 acres

Dedicated ROW Area:     1.39 acres

Net Developable Area:   16.74 acres

Proposed Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1A-D)

Total Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1)

Proposed Floor Area Ratio: 0.16 F.A.R.

Minimum Lot Width: 80'

Minimum Lot Depth: N/A

Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 sqft.

Maximum ISR: 90%

Minimum Open Space %: 10% (Common Open Space)

Setbacks:

Front: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Side: 0', 20'(adjacent to Neighborhood)

Side Street: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Rear: 10' Min.; 20' Max.

Kelly Park Rd.: 8' Min.; 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Plymouth Sorrento Rd.: 8' Min.' 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Additional Notes:

1.Billboards  and  pole  signs  shall  be  prohibited.

2. There are no onsite wetland areas, existing ponds are not considered surface waters.

3.All common areas to maintained by a Property Owners Association.

Off-Street Parking:

Required Parking:

Block B "Publix"

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.:  (46,031 sqft. (phase 1A))=   162

Total Required Parking:                       162

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:         230 spaces

Handicap 12X20 Parking Spaces Provided:    7 spaces

Total Parking Provided:                237 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                     7 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:             8 spaces

  Block B (Building 1)

  Restaurant Space:  4 space + 1 space per 3 Seats:  (80 seats) =   31

Total Required Parking:      31

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:       32 spaces

Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              33 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 2)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1b)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

  Block A (Building 1)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (7,200 sqft. (phase 1c)) =   26

Total Required Parking:                 26

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             27 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              29 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 3)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1d)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

Phasing:

Project will be constructed in multiple phases see phasing plan for details.

Stormwater Management:

The project will meet the requirements for the City of Apopka Code Sec. 6.05 and the

requirements of the St. Johns Rivier Water Management District.

Needed Fire Flow (NFF): (Based on FFPC 2012 Edition Chapter 18 & Annex I)

Phase 1A: 3,750 gpm (Type II 200 non-sprinklered);  1,875 gpm sprinklered

Building 1 Phase 1B: 1,500 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Building 2 Phase 1B: 2,000 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Phase 1C: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered

Phase 1D: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Trip Generation Rates:

Average Daily Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 3,164 trips/day

Phase 1B:   9,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 619 trips/day

Phase 1C:   7,200 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 495 trips/day

Phase 1D:   6,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 412 trips/day

          Total ADT = 4,690 trips/day

PM Peak Hour Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day =  279 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1B: 9,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   55 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1C: 7,200 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   44 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1D: 6,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   37 PM Peak Trips

       Total PM Peak Trips = 415 PM Peak Trips

Form Based Code Requirements:

1.Per Section 4.C of the FBC, buildings exceeding 20,000 square feet in area must be articulated to appear

as multiple buildings grouped together.

2.Per Section 7.b of the FBC, all non-residential first floor requires a minimum of 30% glazing.

3.Per Section 3 of the FBC, all building facades shall be designed with Articulation.

4.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, all building mechanical equipment shall be integrated into the overall mass of

a building by screening the equipment behind parapets or recessing equipment into hips, gables or similar

features.

5.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, shopping cart storage shall be located inside the building or shall be screened

by a 4-foot wall consistent with the building architecture and materials.

6.Per Section K.3 of the FBC, Green Building principles are encouraged for development with the FBC

boundary.

7.Per Section M of the FBC , Section 5.01.00 and Water Wise Ordinance 2069; a landscape and irrigation

plan shall be prepared by a Florida licensed Landscape Architect and submitted with the Final Development

Plan.

8.Per Section 5.01.07 of the City Code a Tree Removal and Replacement plan shall be provided with the Final

Development Plan.

9.Per Section P(e) of the FBC, a photometric plan showing light fixtures and footcandle measurements shall

be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

10. Per Section O of the FBC, all signage shall be consistent with the requirements of the FBC and a master

sign plan shall be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

5

5

5

6

BLOCK B

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 1

3,000

SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 2

6,000

SQFT.

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
3

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

0

60 60 120 24030

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

BLOCK B

TEMPORARY

RETENTION

POND

MONUMENT

SIGN

MONUMENT

SIGN

344



O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

D D

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

5 10a

Block Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

50 50 100 20025

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

NOTE:

1.  NOTE CONSTRUCTION OF BLOCK A-C MAY NOT BE IN THE SEQUENTIAL ORDER.

BLOCK A  7,200 SQFT.

BLOCK C TBD

PROJECT PHASING BREAKDOWN:

BLOCK B 61,031 SQFT.

BLOCK B

BUILDING 1

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BUILDING 2

BLOCK B

BUILDING 3

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
4

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

BLOCK A

PARCEL 1

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK ABLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

345



Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

1 10a

Coversheet

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

Coversheet
Symbols & Abbreviations
Boundary & Topographic
Overall Site Plan
Block Plan
Open Space/Ped Plan
Detailed Site Plan
Utility Plan
Paving & Drainage Plan
Preliminary Grading Plan
Turning Movement Plan
General Details
Conceptual ROW Sections

1
2
3
4
5

5a
6
7
8
9

9a
10

10a

RevisedTitleNo.

Drawing IndexProject Team Utilities Vicinity Map

Site

1" = 1,000'STR:  13, 20S, 27E

04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18
04-07-18

Owner
J D and Kathleen L Horne Trust
c/o Karen H. Morris, Trustee
P.O. Box 547727
Orlando, FL 32854
Ph:
Fx:

Developer
Publix Supermarkets, Inc.
c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL 32803
Ph: (407) 835-9000
Fx:

Surveyor
Accuright Surveyors of Orlando, Inc.
2012 E. Robinson St.
Orlando, FL 32803
Ph: (407) 894-6314
Fx:

Civil Engineer
G L Summitt Engineering, Inc.
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, FL  32746
Ph:  (407) 323-0705
Fx:  (407) 992-8650

Landscape Architect
Ravensdale Planning & Design, Inc.
703 Greens Ave.
Winter Park, FL 32789
Ph: (407) 647-1213
Fx:

Architect
Fisher and Associates, LLC.
2315 Belleair Rd.
Clearwater, FL 33764
Ph: (727) 443-4436
Fx:

Drinking Water
City of Apopka
150 East 5th St.
Orlando, FL 32703
Ph: (407) 703-1727
Fx: (407) 703-1630

Sanitary Sewer
City of Apopka
150 East 5th St.
Orlando, FL 32703
Ph: (407) 703-1727
Fx: (407) 703-1630

Garbage Disposal
City of Apopka
150 East 5th St.
Orlando, FL 32703
Ph: (407) 703-1727
Fx: (407) 703-1630

Reclaim Water
City of Apopka
150 East 5th St.
Orlando, FL 32703
Ph: (407) 703-1727
Fx: (407) 703-1630

Kelly Park Rd. Publix Center
Final Master Plan / Preliminary

Development Plan
City of Apopka Florida Parcel I.D. # 13-20-27-0000-00-008

        for     by

Publix
Supermarkets

Inc.

NOTE:

1. A PERMIT IS REQUIRED FROM FFWCC FOR REMOVAL OR

RELOCATION OF GOPHER TORTOISES PRIOR TO START OF

ANY SITE CONSTRUCTION.

2. THESE CONSTRUCTION PLANS WERE PREPARED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUAL OF UNIFORM STANDARDS

FOR DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE FOR

STREETS AND HIGHWAYS, FDOT GREEN BOOK, CITY OF

APOPKA AND THE ORANGE COUNTY ROADWAY

SPECIFICATIONS.

346



Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

2 10a

Symbols &
Abbreviations

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

WATER & REUSE WATER

M

100 LF SAN 8 PVC 0.40%

SECTIONHIGHWAY
CLASS

SECTHWY
CLS

EXTEND/EXTENSION

EXPAND/EXPANSION

EXISTING

EXCAVATE/EXCAVATION

ENDWALL

EACH WAY

ESTIMATE

EASEMENT

EQUIVALENT

EQUIPMENT

EQUAL/EQUATION

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

ENGINEER(ING)

ENCASEMENT

ELLIPSE/ELLIPTICAL

ELEVATION

ELECTRIC

ELBOW

EASEMENT LINE

EXISTING GRADE

EFFLUENT

EACH FACE

ENERGY DISSIPATOR

EDGE OF CONCRETE

EACH

EAST

DRIVEWAY

DRAWING

DRAIN

DOWN

DROP MANHOLE

DISTANCE

DISCHARGE

DUCTILE IRON PIPE

DIMENSION

DIAGONAL

DIAMETER

DUCTILE IRON

DESIGN HIGH WATER LEVEL

DETAIL

DEPARTMENT

DEFLECT(ION)

DEGREE

DOUBLE

CYLINDER

CUBIC YARD

CULVERT

CABLE TELEVISION

CENTER

COATING

CONTROL STRUCTURE

CONCRETE POWER POLE

COUPLING

CORNER

COORDINATE(S)

CONTINUOUS

CONSTRUCT(ION)

CONNECTION

CONCRETE

COMPLETE

COLUMN

CLEANOUT

COUNTY

CONDUIT

CORRUGATED METAL PIPE ARCH

CORRUGATED METAL PIPE

CONCRETE MONUMENT

EXT

EXP

EXIST

EXC

EWL

EW

EST

ESMT

EQUIV

EQUIP

EQ

EOP

ENG

ENC

ELLIP

ELEV

ELEC

ELB

E/L

EG

EFF

EF

ED

EC

EA

E

DWY

DWG

DRN

DN

DMH

DIST

DISCH

DIP

DIM

DIAG

DIA

DI

DHWL

DET

DEPT

DEFL

DEG OR °

DBL

CYL

CY

CULV

CTV

CTR

CTG

CS

CPP

CPLG

COR

COORD

CONT

CONST

CONN

CONC

COMP

COL

CO

CO.

CND

CMPA

CMP

CM

22
21

16 15

NORTHNORTH

8

8

8

8

8

8" MISC. TREE

8" PALM TREE

8" PINE TREE

8" OAK TREE

8" MAPLE TREE

DIRT ROAD

BRICK PAVERS

99.50

SPOT ELEVATION

HANDICAP PARKING

GUY WIRE

SATALITE DISH

TRANSFORMER

TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

RR CROSSING GATE

R R

RR CROSSING SIGN

DUMPSTER

MW

MONITORING WELL

W

WELL

E

T

ELECTRIC BOX /

TELEPHONE RISER

T

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

E

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

CONCRETE UTILITY POLE

SET 4x4 CM

RECOVERED IRON ROD

SET IRON ROD

CONCRETE LIGHT POLE

LIGHT POLE

B

F
P

BACKFLOW PREVENTOR

REUSE WATER MAIN

RM

D

Y

H

WV

FDOT TYPE 1 INLET 

FDOT TYPE 2 INLET 

FDOT TYPE 3 INLET

FDOT TYPE 4 INLET

FDOT TYPE 5 INLET

FDOT TYPE 6 INLET

DELTA

AT

AND

YEAR

YARD

WELDED WIRE MESH

WELDED WIRE FABRIC

WATER VALVE

WEIGHT

WET SEASON WATER TABLE

WATER SURFACE

WOOD POWER POLE

WATER/WEATHER PROOF

WITHOUT

WATER MAIN

WITH

WEST

VERTICAL POINT OF TANGENCY

VERTICAL POINT OF INTERSECTION

VERTICAL POINT OF CURVE

VERTICAL

VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE

VERTICAL CURVE

VALVE BOX

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE CABLE

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

UNDERGROUND

UNDERDRAIN

TYPICAL

TOWNSHIP

TOP OF SLOPE

TOTAL

TOE OF SLOPE

TOP OF CURB

TOP OF BANK

TERMINAL LAMPHOLE

TEMPORARY

TECHNICIAN/TECHNICAL

TOTAL DYNAMIC HEAD

TRENCH DRAIN

TIME OF CONCENTRATION

TEMPORARY BENCH MARK

TOP AND BOTTOM

TURFBLOCK

TANGENT

SYSTEM

SYMMETRICAL

SYMBOL(S)

SIDEWALK

SOUTHWEST

SERVICE

SUSPEND/SUSPENSION

SUPPORT

STORM SEWER

STRUCTURE

STEEL

STANDARD

STATION

STREET

STAINLESS STEEL

STATE ROAD

SQUARE YARD(S)

SQUARE FOOT/FEET

SQUARE INCH(ES)

SQUARE

SPECIFICATION(S)

SHEET METAL

SLOPE

SETBACK LINE

SIMILAR

SEASONAL HIGH GROUND WATER TABLE

SHEET

OVERHEAD

OVERFLOW

OUTFALL STRUCTURE

OVAL REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE

OPPOSITE

OPENING

OR EQUAL

OUTSIDE DIAMETER

ON CENTER

NORMAL WATER LEVEL

NORTHWEST

NOT TO SCALE

NOMINAL

NUMBER

NOT IN CONTRACT

NATURAL GROUND

NORTHEAST

NAIL AND CAP

NOT APPLICABLE

NORTH

MOUNTING

MEAN SEA LEVEL

MILES PER HOUR

MONUMENT

MEAN LOW WATER LEVEL

METAL LIGHT POLE

MECHANICAL JOINT

MISCELLANEOUS

MINIMUM

MEAN HIGH WATER LEVEL

MANHOLE COVER

MANHOLE

MILLION GALLONS PER DAY

MANUFACTURER

MITERED END

MECHANICAL

MAXIMUM

MATERIAL

MAINTENANCE

LOW WATER LEVEL

LEFT

LONG

LIGHT POLE

LIMIT(S)

LONG

LINEAR FEET/FOOT

POUND

LATERAL

LATITUDE

LENGTH

JOINT

JOIST

JUNCTION

JUNCTION BOX

INVERT

INTERSECT/INTERSECTION

IRON ROD

IRON PIPE

INSTALL

INSERT

INLET

INCHES

INSIDE FACE

INSIDE DIAMETER

INTERSECTION ANGLE

INTERSTATE HIGHWAY

HYDRAULIC

@

&

YR

YD

WWM

WWF

WV

WT

WSWT

WS

WPP

WP

W/O

WM

W/

W

VPT

VPI

VPC

VERT

VCP

VC

VB

UTC

UON

UG

UD

TYP

TWP

TS

TOT

TOS

TOC

TOB

TL

TEMP

TECH

TDH

TD

TC

TBM

T&B

TB

T

SYS

SYMM

SYM

SWK

SW

SVC

SUSP

SUP

STS

STR

STL

STD

STA

ST

SS

SR

SQ YD

SQ FT

SQ IN

SQ

SPEC

SM

SL

S/L

SIM

SHGWT

SH

OVHD

OVFL

OS

ORCP

OPP

OPNG

OE

OD

OC

NWL

NW

NTS

NOM

NO OR #

NIC

NG

NE

N&C

NA

N

MTG

MSL

MPH

MON

MLWL

MLP

MJ

MISC

MIN

MHWL

MHC

MH

MGD

MFR

ME

MECH

MAX

MATL

MAINT

LWL

LT

LONG

LP

LIM

LG

LF

LB

LATL

LAT

L

JT

JST

JCT

JB

INV

INT

IR

IP

INST

INS

INL

IN

IF

ID

IA

I-4

HYD

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

W/O CURB

W/CURB

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

GUY POLEBENCHMARK

RECOVERED 4x4 CM

CONCRETE

COUNTY ROADS

INTERSTATE ROADS

WOOD AND/OR METAL

MISCELLANEOUS SIGN

SECTION CORNER

STATE ROADS

520

YARD LIGHT

WOOD UTILITY POLE

95

50

HIGHWAY & UTILITIES

D

STORM DRAIN

STORM SEWER

MANHOLE

MITERED END

STORM INLET

WATER METER

WATER MAIN 6" PVC PIPE WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

6"WM

WATER & REUSE WATER

ABBREVIATIONS

BFP BACKFLOW PREVENTER

CLEAR/CLEARANCE

CONCRETE LIGHT POLE

CENTER LINE

CONSTRUCTION JOINT

CAST IRON PIPE

CAST IRON

CURB AND GUTTER

CUBIC FEET PER SECOND

CUBIC FEET PER MINUTE

CUBIC FEET

CEMENT

CENTER TO CENTER

CATCH BASIN

CAPACITY

BUTTERFLY VALVE

BOTTOM OF SLOPE

BEARING

BOTTOM

BACK OF CURB

BLOWOFF

BOUNDARY

BENCH MARK

BOULEVARD

BUILDING

BASELINE

AZIMUTH

AVERAGE

AVENUE

ASSEMBLY

ASPHALT

AIR RELEASE VACUUM VALVE

AIR RELEASE VALVE

APPROXIMATE

AMPERE(S)

BEFORE NOON

ALTERNATE

ALUMINUM

AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC

ADDITIONAL

ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE

ACRE FOOT/FEET

ACRE(S)

ABANDON(ED)

ANCHOR BOLT

AREA

CLR

CLP

C/L

CJ

CIP

CI

C&G

CFS

CFM

CF

CEM

CC

CB

CAP

BV

BS

BRG

BOT

BOC

BO

BND

BM

BLVD

BLDG

BL

AZ

AVG

AVE

ASSY

ASPH

ARVV

ARV

APPROX

AMP

AM

ALT

AL

ADT

ADDL

ACP

AC-FT

AC

ABD

AB

A

PROFILE GRADE POINTPFGP

FM

CABLE TELEVISION

UNDERGROUND

CTV

UGT

UE

GAS

OVERHEAD

TELEPHONE

OVERHEAD

ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND

ELECTRIC

TELEPHONE

8
0

L

8
1

BUILDING LINE

CONTOURS

WOOD FENCE

RAILROAD TRACKS

GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND

HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENEHDPE

SECONDS

SOUTHEAST

SHELF DRAIN

SIDE DRAIN

SCHEDULE

SPLASH BLOCK

SANITARY SEWER

SOUTH

REUSE WATER MAIN

RIGHT-OF-WAY

RELIEF VALVE

RIGHT

RAILROAD

REVOLUTIONS PER MINUTE

REVISE/REVISION

REQUIRED

REINFORCE(D)

REFERENCE

REDUCER

ROADWAY

ROAD

REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE ARCH

REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE

RADIUS

FLOW RATE

POWER

PAVEMENT

POLYVINYL CHLORIDE

POINT OF TANGENCY

POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH

POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT

POINT OF REVERSE VERTICAL CURVE

PROPOSED

PROJECT

PRESSURE

POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE

PHONE RISER

POWER POLE

PUSH ON JOINT

POINT OF BEGINNING

PROPERTY LINE

POINT OF INTERSECTION

POLYETHYLENE PIPE

POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE

POINT OF CURVATURE

HIGH WATER LEVEL

HEADWALL

HEIGHT

HOUR

HORSEPOWER

HORIZONTAL

HARDWARE

HOSE BIBB

GROUND WATER TABLE

GUY WIRE

GATE VALVE AND BOX

GATE VALVE

GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE

GROUND/GRADE

GUARD RAIL

GALLONS PER SECOND

GALLONS PER MINUTE

GALLONS PER HOUR

GALLONS PER DAY

GAS MAIN

GALVANIZED

GALLON

GAUGE

FOOTING

FEET/FOOT

FEET PER SECOND

FEET PER MINUTE

FEET PER HOUR

FOUND

FORCE MAIN

FLANGE

FLEXIBLE

FLOOR

FENCE LINE

FITTING

FINISHED

FIGURE

FURNISH AND INSTALL

FIRE HYDRANT

FINISHED GRADE

FINISHED FLOOR

OF TRANSPORTATION

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT

FOUNDATION

FLOOR DRAIN

FRAME AND COVER

SEC

SE

SDN

SD

SCH

SB

SAN

S

RWM

R/W

RV

RT

RR

RPM

REV

REQD

REINF

REF

RED

RDY

RD

RCPA

RCP

R

Q

PWR

PVMT

PVC

PT

PSI

PSF

PRVC

PROP

PROJ

PRESS

PRC

PR

PP

POJ

POB

P/L

PI

PEP

PCC

PC

HWL

HW

HT

HR

HP

HORIZ

HDW

HB

GWT

GW

GV&B

GV

GSP

GRD

GR

GPS

GPM

GPH

GPD

GM

GALV

GAL

GA

FTG

FT

FPS

FPM

FPH

FND

FM

FLG

FLEX

FLR

FL

FIT

FIN

FIG

F&I

FH

FG

FF

FDOT

FDN

FD

F&C

S

S

SANITARY SEWER LINE

CLEANOUT

FORCE MAIN

MANHOLE

SANITARY

LINES

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CENTER LINE

WIRE FENCE

EASEMENT

GUARDRAIL 

EXISTING PLATS

RETAINING WALL

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

SHORELINE

SWALE

x

x

R/W

C

x

EXISTING SYMBOLS

UNDERDRAIN CEANOUT

RECLAIMED WATER MAIN

RM

2

24

901

24

901

21

16 15

22

CHECK VALVE

WATER SERVICE

DOUBLE REUSE

TYPE A

FF=98.76

PREVENTER

BACKFLOW

SP

REUSE WATER SYSTEM

CONNECTION

SAMPLE POINT

CROSS SECTION DETAIL

SERVICE

SERVICE

100 LINEAR FEET

PAVEMENT MARKING

MIAMI CURB

TYPE F CURB & GUTTER

BLDG OR STRUCTURE

W/ FHA LOT TYPE

50

95

SILT FENCE

TRAFFIC FLOW

UTILITY POLE

520

STATE ROADS

SECTION CORNER

SIGNS

LIGHT POLE

INTERSTATE ROADS

HANDICAP PARKING

GUY POLE

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

DUMPSTER PAD

DETAIL REFERENCE

COUNTY ROADS

CONCRETE

BOUND CORNER

STORM INLET

HIGHWAY & UTILITIES

SANITARY

WM

TEE

REDUCER

METER

FIRE HYDRANT

GATE VALVE

DOUBLE WATER 

CHECK VALVE

DOUBLE DETECTOR 

CROSS

BLOWOFF

90° BEND

45° BEND

22 1/2° BEND

11 1/2° BEND

WATER MAIN 

FM

MANHOLE

FORCE MAIN

DOUBLE SANITARY 

CLEANOUT

PIPE @ 0.40% SLOPE

SANITARY 8" PVC 

TREE LINE

SWALE

SHORELINE

C

8

0

SETBACK

P/L

R/W

FOR POND SIDE SLOPE

TYPE 1

TYPE 2

TYPE 3

TYPE 4

TYPE 5

TYPE 6

100 LF STS 24 RCP @ 0.20%

SPOT ELEVATION

SLOPE DIRECTION ARROW

MITERED END SECTION

MANHOLE

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION

UNDERDRAIN 6" PVC PIPE

PIPE @ 0.20%

24" REINFORCED CONCRETE

100 LINEAR FEET STORM PIPE

STORM DRAINLINES

8

1

x

x

SETBACK LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

RETAINING WALL

PROPERTY LINE

LOT LINE

GUARDRAIL 

EASEMENT

CONTOUR

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CENTER LINE

CONSERVATION

BOUNDARY

FENCE

PROPOSED SYMBOLS

100.00

347



KELLY PARK ROAD
(VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W)

LESS R/W
SHOWN PER

ORB 10756, PG 6799

LESS R/W
SHOWN PER

ORB 10756, PG 6799

NOT PLATTED
OWNER: LO CHIA-TON TR AND LO MARY C TR

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-030
ORB 5930, PG 3942

NOT PLATTED
OWNER: CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-007
ORB 10778, PG 1273

NOT PLATTED
OWNER: CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-034
ORB 10760, PG 4066

W. LINE, NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

BAY RIDGE HEIGHTS
PB "X", PG 143

LOT 1LOT 2

30' R/W PER, DB 398, PG 188

S. LINE N. 1/2
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27
(BEARING BASIS)

E. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

CO
U

N
TY

 R
O

AD
 4

37
(P

LY
M

O
U

TH
-S

O
RR

EN
TO

 R
O

AD
)

(V
AR

IA
BL

E 
W

ID
TH

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

N
00

°1
4'

36
"W

  5
96

.3
4'

 D
ES

C

N87°44'58"E  561.08' D&M

N88°21'18"E  724.60' D&M

S0
0°

09
'1

1"
W

  5
81

.6
2'

 D
&

M

S88°34'31"W  1306.99' D&M
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

12345
6

7
8

9

10

11
1213

14

1516

1718
19

20

21
22

2324

25

26

2728

29

30
31

32

33
34
3536

3738

39

40

41

42

43
44

45

46

47
48

49

50 51

52

53

5456
5758

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

6768

697071

72

73

74

75

76

77

78
79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86
87

88
89

90

91

92

93
94

95
96

97

98
99100

101102

103

104

105

106

107

108109

11
0

111
112

113

114

115

11
6

117

118
119

120

121
122

123

124
125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133
134

135

136

137

13
8

13
9

140
141

142
143
144

145146
147

14
8

14
9

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159 160

161

162 163

164

165

166

167

168

169
170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180
181

182

183

184
185

186

187
188

189 190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198
199
200

201

202

203 204

205

UP
206

207

208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216
217

218

21
9

220
221

222

223

224

225 226227

228

229
230

231

232

233

234
235 236

237

238

239

240241

242

243

244
245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265
266

267
268

269

270

271

272

273

274
275

276

277

278 279

GV

280

281 282

283
284285

286

287

288

FH

289

290

291

292

293

294

295
296

297

298299
300

301
302

303

304

305

306

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

OW

22'

16.6'

22.7'
6'

35.3'

27.4' 27.4'
5.5' 18.7'

35.2'

44'

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

10
8.

4
10

8.
1

10
8.

8

108.6

10
7.

4

107.4

10
6.

6
10

6.
3

106.2

105.4

105.2

105.1

10
5.

9
10

5.
9

105.7

105.5

106.2

10
6.

1

107.2106.7

10
6.

7

106.2

106.6

105.7

105.9

105.7

106.0

106.3

106.4

107.5

108.4

108.2

108.5

108.1
108.3

106.5

106.6

106.5

106.4

106.2109.0

109.6

109.0

108.2

110.8

111.1

110.9

110.2

10
9.

3

10
7.

9

106.6

107.1

103.1

97.3

108.5

108.2

107.6

106.6

101.7

100.6

99.5

98.2

96.8

96.3

93.6

92.8

111.0
110.5

102.3
101.2

99.9

100.1

99.5

98.0

98.597.2

98.1

90
.1

91
.8

91
.390

.4

91.1 90.3

89.990.7

90.5
90.2

90.1 90.5 91.6

92
.4

90.4
90.5

93
.2

90
.690

.6
90

.4

90
.9

93
.7

91.9
90.5

90.1 90.8

96.8

97.8

96.6

92.6

89.4

86.4

86.4 86.7

92.791.390.2

91.590.790.9

92.3 92.2

92.1

92.6

90.8

92.6

92.4

93.7

94.1

92.6

91.4

91.1

90.891.8

92.9

91.8

92.0

90.9

90.5

92.6

93.7

94.0

94.0
96.4

94.9

93.5

95.8

92.0
89.3

95.1

90.2

91.0

91.5

101.4

100.7

94.2

95.1

95.7

96.1

96.8

98.8

99.8
99.8

100.9

100.0
100.0

102.2

100.6

102.6

103.4

104.6

100.5

103.8

104.4

103.3

105.3

107.9

104.7

106.5

10
3.

2

105.3

109.7

107.8

107.4

107.4 109.0

106.5

106.4

106.0

105.6

105.5

105.8

106.3

107.1

108.0
107.8

108.0

10
9.4

105.7

107.9

106.4

108.1
108.1

108.2

108.5
107.6

107.6

106.7
107.8

107.2 107.4

107.0

107.4

106.9

108.5

106.6

10
5.

7

103.9

99.7

99
.1

98.997.5

98
.9

98.2
86.7

88.2

89.0 89.7 91.2

87.8 88.8

91.5
91.4

91
.4

89.7 90.8

91
.6

92.9

102.4

10
1.

4

102.9 102.9

103.6 105.2

104.7

107.0

106.8
108.1

107.9
108.0

101.0
102.0 104.2

107.2

10
9.

12

10
9.

36
10

9.
21

109.33

109.20

10
8.

69
10

8.
89

10
8.

95

108.77
108.80

107.67
107.69

106.69
106.54

105.78
105.81

106.25
105.39

105.06
105.15

107.43

106.44
107.27 106.88

10
8.

19
10

8.
01 10

7.
96

108.65

108.20108.18

10
9.

12

108.31

108.12

107.72
107.75

10
8.

57

10
8.

44

108.29

10
8.

38

10
8.

41

10
9.

58

10
9.

77

11
0.

06

10
9.

00

10
8.

44
10

8.
43

10
8.

82

10
8.

13

10
8.

68
10

8.
5110

8.
12

10
8.

3710
8.

00

10
8.

33

10
7.

98

10
8.

33
10

8.
55

10
8.

23
10

8.
00

10
8.

69
10

9.
02

10
8.

61
10

8.
34

10
9.

50

10
9.

12

108.91

109.06

106.1105.6105.4
105.3105.2

105.0102.296.7
INV=96.65INV=96.05

95.6

97.64 99.44
104.28

107.01
104.47

106.76
107.44

107.68 107.78

107.56

108.02

107.73

108.32

108.06

109.23

10
8.6

5
10

8.
72

108.72INV=105.63GAS LINE MARKER

GAS LINE MARKER

G G

G G G
G G

G G

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

G GGAS LINE MARKER

INV=89.19INV=88.33

GV GAS LINE MARKER

DILAPIDATED
BARN / SHED

28
.8

'

44.5'

140.6'

141.9'

ABANDONED
MOBILE HOME

11.7' 65.2'

CONC

81.1'

62.7'

185.1'

1.2'

6' CLF6' METAL FENCE

6' METAL FENCE
2.9'

0.3'E

89
.1

100.6

BUNKER

8.9'

8.9'

8.0'

2.9'
2.4'

4.2'

2.9'
1.5'

11.4'
11.3'

ASPHALT
CONC

CC

ASPHALT
108.67

CONC
ASPHALT AS

PH
AL

TCOLUMN
(TYP)

7.8'

7.3'

23.8'

29
.8

'

MS
FFE=108.09
HEIGHT=14.0±

6' CLF

89.8

89
.0

88.6

18
.2

'8.0'
SHED

11.6'
11.1'

SHED

SHED

12.2'

24.6'

9.6'

15.7'

CONC

1 STORY BLOCK
ABANDONED
FFE=110.79
HEIGHT=15.5±
CONC DW

2.7'

2.7' 2.2' 5.9'

3.6'

CONC

365.3'

365'

CBW

CBW

1.4'

6' METAL FENCE

EP

EP

EP

W

TRAFFIC BOX

TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

CP

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

POB
SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

GAS LINE MARKER

GAS LINE MARKER

85.8 86.5
87.3

87.1186.96

86.71 86.84 87.02 87.24

87.9687.43

87.72 88.30 89.04

89.3488.61

90.00

91.6190.49

91.32
EP

EP

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

EP

EP

RETENTION AREA

RETENTION AREA
RETENTION AREA

RETENTION AREA

RETENTION AREA

87.0

499.2'

153.4'

89
.3

D
D

D

TOP=108.73
W.INV=105.80
E. INV=106.35

24" RCP

24" RCP

24" RCP24" RCP

30" RCP

D

D

TOP=85.03
W.INV=79.80

FND 4"x4" CM
RLS #1916

FND 4"x4" CM
RLS #1916

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

FND 4"x4" CM
NO #

FND 4"x4" CM
NO #

FND 5/8" IR
NO # (BENT)

SITE BENCHMARK #

ELEVATION = 
DATUM = NAVD 88

1
N&D IN ASPHALT

109.12

N
00
°1
4'
36
"W
  5
96
.3
5'
 M
EA
S

C1-CURVE DATA
Δ = 91°48'44"

R = 25.00'
L = 40.06'

CHORD
S45°44'45"E
35.91' D&M

C1

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

21.4'

46.1'

21.3'

                LINE CHART
L1 N88°34'31"E  16.51' D&M
L2 S00°14'36"E   30.01' DESC
L3  S00°14'36"E  29.88' DESC

TREE PROTECTION ZONE "A"

TREE PROTECTION ZONE "A"

TREE PROTECTION ZONE "B"

TREE PROTECTION ZONE "B"

TREE PROTECTION ZONE "C"

APPROXIMATE LOCATION
8' FLORIDA POWER AND
LIGHT EASEMENT
ORB 2179, PG 692

5

105.6106.0

105.8

105.7

106.2

106.8

106.0

105.9

106.5

106.5

108.0

109.1

108.8

108.3

109.8

109.3

100.0
97.7

98.7
100.1

99.3

95.8

96.0

98.7

86.2
85.9

86.486.3
87.8 89.0 91.5

92.7 94.5
96.9 101.3 104.3 106.6 108.6 107.9 107.2 107.4

107.5

108.1

108.1

107.00105.94102.42
98.9896.2794.2592.37

STOP BAR

STOP BARYELLOW LINE

YELLOW LINE

YELLOW LINE
WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

94.0492.37
96.03 98.43 102.55100.52

105.72

30'

30'

46.5'

109.1

109.1

106.6

107.5

107.8

109.5

109.4

107.6

105.03

104.79

108.17

107.91

108.34

87.02

87.24

10
9.

47

10
9.

18

10
9.

06

10
9.

61

10
9.

84

10
9.

20

10
9.

45

10
9.

10

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

YE
LL

O
W

 L
IN

E

W
HI

TE
 L

IN
E

58.8'

TOP=109.99
N. INV=105.79
W.INV=106.01

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

1.6'

6' CLF

6' CLF

0.9'N

D

SITE BENCHMARK #

ELEVATION = 
DATUM = NAVD 88

2
N&D IN INLET

108.80

18
" R

CP

TOP=86.33
S. INV=78.88
E. INV=79.08
W.INV=79.06

D

D

D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D

30" RCP

30
" R

CP
30

" R
CP

TOP=90.43
N. INV=78.53
S. INV=78.37

TOP=89.96
N. INV=78.52
SW INV=77.91

SD
O

SDO

SDO D D
18" RCP

36
" R

CP

TOP=88.65
W.INV=83.95

95

100

10
5

91

92

93

94

96

97

98

99

101

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
6

10
7

10
8

102
103

104 105
106

105104
106

105
106

10
0

97 98 99

10
1

95 10
0

96 97 98 99

93
949090 91 92

95

91

92

93
94

90
89

91

92

93

91 92 93

90

91

91

92

90

8687
88

8987 88 89

87

87

8787

9089 91

92

93

9593 94 96 97 100 10
5

98 99 101 102 103 10
4 106 107

108

10
510

4

10
6

10
7

10
8

10
9

95

10
0

96

97

98

99

10
1

10
2

10
3

93 94

110

10
7

108

109

107

106
107

108

108108

108

109

109

109

107

107

10
6

10
6

10
7

10
8

10
9

106

108

109

109106

107

106

108

109

10
9

10
7

106

10
8

10
8

108

102
101

102

101
102

103

104

91

108

106
107

106
107

10
8

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

G G G G G G GG G G G G G

UTILITY CONTACT LIST

SERVICE AREA CODE SERVICE AREA NAME CONTACT PHONE NUMBERS UTILITY TYPE
BH1956 CHARTER

COMMUNICATIONS
MARVIN USRY

JR
Day: (407) 532 - 8509
Alt: (407) 448 - 5506

INTERNET,
CABLE T.V.,

PHONE, FIBER
COA591 CITY OF APOPKA BRIAN BISHOP Day: (407) 703 - 1685

x515
WATER AND

SEWER
CON847 FLORIDA FIBER

NETWORKS
LARRY

ENGLISH
Day: (352) 702 - 4990
Alt: (888) 860 - 4088

CABLE
TELEVISION

FPC322 DUKE ENERGY MEGAN
VONSTETINA

Day: (727) 893 - 9394 ELECTRIC

LAN491 LAKE APOPKA
NATURAL GAS

DISTRICT

ANTONIO
GIBSON

Day: (407) 656 - 2734 NATURAL GAS
LINES

UTI297 CENTURYLINK
WINTER GARDEN

TY LESLIE Day: (407) 814 - 5293 PHONE & FIBER
OPTIC

CONTIGUOUS WITH
W. R/W LINE

CONTIGUOUS WITH
S. R/W LINE

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

POSSIBLE ENCROACHMENTS
WITHOUT EXPRESSING A LEGAL OPINION AS TO
OWNERSHIP OR NATURE, THE FOLLOWING
POSSIBLE ENCROACHMENTS ARE NOTED.
ADDITIONAL ITEMS MAY BE DEPICTED HEREON
THAT HAVE NOT BEEN INCLUDED IN THIS LIST.

- 6' METAL FENCE CROSSES EAST  PROPERTY
LINE AND CONTINUES SOUTH

- CONCRETE BLOCK WALL (CBW) 
CROSSES EAST BOUNDARY LINE

A

B

B

N88°20'47"E
1357.89' DESC

POC
NE CORNER
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

S. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

NT

NT

N. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

A

B

L2
L3

1.  BEARING STRUCTURE IS ASSUMED AND BASED ON THE MONUMENTED SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 1/2,
OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, BEING
S88°34'31"W.

2.  THIS SURVEY WAS MADE ON THE GROUND. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED
FROM FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION AS LOCATED BY SUNSHINE UTILITIES LOCATING SERVICE TICKET NO'S.
080701047, 080701111  AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR
ABANDONED. THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE
IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED ALTHOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY ARE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS
POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED THE UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES.

3.  THIS BUILDING/LOT LIES IN ZONE "X", BASED ON FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 12095C0050F,
COMMUNITY NO. 120179, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.

4.  ACCORDING TO FLORIDA STATUTES, CHAPTER 472.025, A LAND SURVEYOR SHALL NOT AFFIX HIS SEAL OR
NAME TO ANY PLAN OR DRAWING WHICH DEPICTS WORK WHICH HE IS NOT LICENSED TO PERFORM OR WHICH
IS BEYOND HIS PROFESSION OR SPECIALTY THEREIN. THEREFORE, WE ARE UNABLE TO CERTIFY AS TO MUNICIPAL
ZONING COMPLIANCE, INTERPRETATION OF ZONING CODES OR THE DETERMINATION OF VIOLATIONS THEREOF.

5.  THIS SURVEY WAS MADE WITH BENEFIT OF OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY'S
COMMITMENT FUND FILE NO. 406442 A1, DATED FEBRUARY 3, 2017.

6.  THIS SURVEY IS VALID ONLY FOR THE PARTIES TO WHOM IT IS CERTIFIED.

7.  THIS SURVEY EXCEEDS THE ACCURACY REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN FLORIDA STATUTES.

8.  ZONING INFORMATION WAS NOT PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF SURVEY.

9.  SUBJECT PROPERTY CONTAINS NO STRIPED PARKING SPACES.

10.  NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION OR ADDITIONS WAS
OBSERVED.

11.  BASED ON AERIAL PHOTOS FROM ORANGE COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER AND GOOGLE EARTH THERE
HAS BEEN RECENT CONSTRUCTION ON PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD AND KELLY PARK ROAD.

12.  NO DELINEATED WETLANDS WERE OBSERVED.

13.  ELEVATIONS BASED ON ORANGE COUNTY BENCHMARK #S1374031, HAVING AN ELEVATION OF 77.776
FEET (NAVD 88).

14. TREE PROTECTION ZONES ARE DEFINED IN SECTION 15-301(E) OF ORANGE COUNTY TREE PROTECTION
AND REMOVAL ORDINANCE 2001-19.

15. BASED ON A SURFACE INSPECTION ALL UTILITIES APPEAR TO ENTER THE PROPERTY THROUGH A PUBLIC
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

NOTES

NORTH 1/2 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20S, RANGE 27E (LESS ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY), ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.

WHICH IS ALSO DESCRIBED AS:

NORTH 1/2 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20S, RANGE 27E (LESS ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY TAKEN PURSUANT TO (I) THAT CERTAIN INDENTURE RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 398, PAGE 188
AND (II) THAT CERTAIN STIPULATED ORDER OF TAKING AS TO PARCEL 207 RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS
BOOK 10756, PAGE 6799 AND DOCUMENT NUMBER 20140285830), ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ALL THE ABOVE BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20
SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE
27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, RUN THENCE NORTH 88°20'47" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
NORTHEAST 1/4, A DISTANCE OF 1,357.89 FEET TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST
1/4 OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4; THENCE DEPARTING SAID NORTH LINE RUN SOUTH 00°14'36" EAST ALONG SAID
WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 30.01 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL
RECORDS BOOK 10756, PAGE 6799, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN THENCE THE
FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES AND DISTANCE ALONG THE WESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY LINES OF SAID OFFICIAL
RECORDS BOOK:

(1) SOUTH 00°14'36" EAST A DISTANCE OF 29.88 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING A POINT
ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KELLY PARK ROAD PER SAID OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK; (2) N87°44'58"E A
DISTANCE OF 561.08 FEET; (3) N88°21'18"E A DISTANCE OF 724.60 FEET TO A NON-TANGENT POINT ON A CURVE
CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, A CHORD BEARING OF S45°44'45"E, A CHORD
DISTANCE OF 35.91 FEET; (4) SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
91°48'44", A DISTANCE OF 40.06 FEET TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY, SAID POINT BEING A POINT ON THE WEST
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD; (5) S00°09'11"W ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
AND SAID OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK A DISTANCE OF 581.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE LINE SOUTH LINE OF THE
NORTH 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 13; THENCE S88°34'31"W ALONG
SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1,306.99 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 13; THENCE N00°14'36"W ALONG SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 596.34
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINS 789,753 SQUARE FEET OR 18.130 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

COPYRIGHT © 1986 - 2016, ACCURIGHT SURVEYSD:\JOBS\Kelly Park Publix\survey\13-20-27PARCEL-8-ALTA-EMAIL.dwg - Apr 10, 2018

ACCURIGHT  SURVEYS OF ORLANDO INC., LB 4475
2012 E. Robinson Street, Orlando, Florida 32803

www.AccurightSurveys.net
ACCU@AccurightSurveys.net

PHONE: (407) 894-6314

ACCURIGHT
DRAWN BY: 
JOB #46608

SUBDIVISION NAME:

CF#SCALE:  1" = 
FIELD DATE:  4/17/17
PREPARED FOR:

LOCATION:

13-20-27PARCEL-8-ALTA-EMAIL

PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS INC.

BY:REVISIONDATE: JOB #

4/17/17BOUNDARY  SURVEY  DATE:
per 5J-17.051(3)(b)3 Florida Administrative Code

TSB
TR

UP

T

TP
TB - TOP OF BANK

- TRAFFIC POLE
- TRAFFIC SIGN
- TRANSFORMER/JUNCTION BOX
- TELEPHONE RISER
- TRAFFIC SIGNAL BOX

TSW - TRAFFIC SIGNAL WIRE

-T- - UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE
- STORM INLET

- STORM MANHOLE

-S- - SANITARY LINE
SDO - SHOWN FOR DIRECTION ONLY

- SANITARY MANHOLE

RCP - REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
R/W - RIGHT OF WAY

CO

FH

EM
EB

TV

GM

BB - BOTTOM OF BANK
BC - BACK OF CURB

- BACK FLOW PREVENTER
- BENCHMARK

-E- - BURIED ELECTRIC
BWF - BARBED WIRE FENCE

- CABLE TV RISER
-C- - BURIED CABLE TV
CALC - CALCULATED
C&M - CALCULATED & MEASURED
Δ - CENTRAL ANGLE
CBW - CONCRETE BLOCK WALL
CC - COVERED CONCRETE
CF - CONCRETE FLUME
CHW - CONCRETE HEAD WALL
CLF - CHAIN LINK FENCE - MITERED END SECTION

- DOT INLET

LEGEND

MF - METAL FENCE
ML - METAL LID
MS - METAL SHED

DP - DUMPSTER PAD
DW - DRIVEWAY

- EASEMENT NUMBER

SV

#

- CENTERLINE
CM - CONCRETE MONUMENT
CMP - CORRUGATED METAL PIPE

- CLEAN OUT
CONC - CONCRETE
COVD - COVERED
CP - CONCRETE PAD
CW - CONCRETE WALKWAY
D&M - DEED/DESC & MEASURED
DE - DRAINAGE EASEMENT
DESC - DESCRIPTION

- ELECTRIC METER
- ELECTRICAL BOX

EL - ELEVATION
ESMT - EASEMENT
EP - EDGE OF PAVEMENT
FIRM - FLOOD INSURANCE

  RATE MAP
FFE - FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

- FIRE HYDRANT
-FM- - FORCE MAIN
FND - FOUND
FOC - FIBER OPTIC UTILITY BOX
-F- - FIBER OPTIC CABLE LINE
-G- - GAS LINE

- GAS METER
     - GUY WIRE ANCHOR

- HANDICAP PARKING
HDPE - HIGH DENSITY

  POLYETHYLENE
INV - INVERT ELEVATION
IP - IRON PIPE
IR - IRON ROD
L - ARC LENGTH
LB - LICENSED BUSINESS

- LIGHT POLE
LS - LICENSE SURVEYOR
LSA - LANDSCAPED AREA
MEAS - MEASURED

- MONITORING WELL
N&D - NAIL & DISK
NAVD - NORTH AMERICAN

  VERTICAL DATUM
NGVD - NATIONAL GEODETIC

  VERTICAL DATUM
NTS - NOT TO SCALE
OHE - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC
ORB - OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK
-OW- - OVERHEAD WIRE
PB - PLAT BOOK
PC - POINT OF CURVATURE
PEP - PER ENGINEERING PLANS
PG - PAGE
PI - POINT OF INTERSECTION
P&M - PLAT & MEASURED

POB - POINT OF BEGINNING
POC - POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
PRC - POINT OF REVERSE

  CURVATURE
# PS - PARKING SPACES
PSM - PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR

  AND MAPPER
POT - POINT OF TANGENCY
PVC - PLASTIC PIPE
R - CURVE RADIUS

SN - SIGN
SWF - STOCK WIRE FENCE
x00.00 - SPOT ELEVATION
-D- - STORM/DRAIN LINE
 - SEWER VALVE

TYP - TYPICAL
UE - UTILITY EASEMENT

- UTILITY POLE
-W- - WATER LINE
WF - WOOD FENCE
WS - WOOD SHED

- WATER VALVE
- WATER METER

PARCEL 8
SECTION 13-20-27

4966 PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD, APOPKA, FLORIDA

N

E

S

W

120'

GRAPHIC SCALE

1" = 
60' 180'30'0'

60'

BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC AND TREE SURVEY

SHEET 1 OF 1

VICINITY MAP (NOT TO SCALE)

N

E

S

W

THIS SURVEY MEETS THE "STANDARDS OF PRACTICE" AS
REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 5J-17 FLORIDA BOARD OF LAND
SURVEYORS, PURSUANT TO SECTION 472.027 OF THE
FLORIDA STATUTES.

JAMES D. BRAY, PSM 6507
"NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL RAISED
SEAL OF THIS FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER."

OR

THE DIGITAL SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS
AUTHORIZED BY JAMES D. BRAY, PSM 6507 ON 5/2/2017.

ALTA/NSPS  LAND  TITLE  SURVEY

TO:  PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS, INC., A FLORIDA CORPORATION; OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL
TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE
MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2016 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS,
AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A)(B1)(C), 8, 9, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18 AND 19
OF TABLE A THEREOF.  THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON APRIL 17, 2017.

________________________

DATE:  ___________________

5.  EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION CONTAINED IN INSTRUMENT
RECORDED AUGUST 10, 1976, UNDER O.R. BOOK 2719, PAGE 692, PUBLIC RECORDS OF
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  (SUBORDINATION OF EASEMENTS AGREEMENT RECORDED IN
O.R. BOOK 10755, PAGE 9) (SHOWN HEREON.)

60'

SCHEDULE B-2 - EXCEPTIONS

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

1 - 31" OAK
2 - 15" OAK
3 - 36" OAK
4 - 30" OAK
5 - 17" OAK
6 - 12" CAMPHOR
7 - 13" CAMPHOR
8 - 16" CAMPHOR
9 - 13" CAMPHOR
10 - 12" CAMPHOR
11 - 20" CAMPHOR
12 - 30" OAK
13 - 38" OAK
14 - 18" CAMPHOR
15 - 30" OAK
16 - 10" CAMPHOR
17 - 23" OAK
18 - 18" OAK
19 - 56" OAK
20 - 27" OAK
21 - 24" OAK
22 - 24" OAK
23 - 27" OAK
24 - 26" OAK
25 - 10" PALM
26 - 30" OAK
27 - 27" OAK
28 - 48" OAK
29 - 35" OAK
30 - 27" OAK

31 - 26" OAK
32 - 3-30" OAK
33 - 26" OAK
34 - 16" CAMPHOR
35 - 18" CAMPHOR
36 - 2-18" OAK
37 - 26" OAK
38 - 22" OAK
39 - 38" OAK
40 - 3-24" OAK
41 - 23" OAK
42 - 50" OAK
43 - 40" OAK
44 - 12" PALM
45 - 15" PALM
46 - 15" PALM
47 - 40" OAK
48 - 45" OAK
49 - 30" CAMPHOR
50 - 36" CAMPHOR
51 - 22" CAMPHOR
52 - 27" OAK
53 - 20" OAK
54 - 36" OAK
55 - INTENTIONALLY OMITTED
56 - 18" OAK
57 - 2-15" OAK
58 - 20" OAK
59 - 34" OAK
60 - 34" OAK

61 - 34" OAK
62 - 26" OAK
63 - 26" OAK
64 - 2-24" OAK
65 - 2-26" OAK
66 - 36" OAK
67 - 32" OAK
68 - 36" CAMPHOR
69 - 48" OAK
70 - 26" OAK
71 - 26" OAK
72 - 35" OAK
73 - 37" OAK
74 - 42" OAK
75 - 33" OAK
76 - 12" UNIDENTIFIED TREE
77 - 26" OAK
78 - 24" OAK
79 - 20" OAK
80 - 34" OAK
81 - 28" OAK
82 - 30" OAK
83 - 30" OAK
84 - 24" OAK
85 - 36" OAK
86 - 13" OAK
87 - 10" OAK
88 - 24" OAK
89 - 25" OAK
90 - 12" OAK

91 - 32" OAK
92 - 12" OAK
93 - 20" OAK
94 - 22" OAK
95 - 16" OAK
96 - 10" OAK
97 - 32" OAK
98 - 17" OAK
99 - 13" OAK
100 - 16" OAK
101 - 34" OAK
102 - 10" OAK
103 - 44" OAK
104 - 26" OAK
105 - 24" OAK
106 - 2-24" OAK
107 - 14" UNIDENTIFIED TREE
108 - 2-16" OAK
109 - 10" OAK
110 - 14" OAK
111 - 15" OAK
112 - 2-26" OAK
113 - 35" OAK
114 - 17" OAK
115 - 12" OAK
116 - 18" OAK
117 - 12" OAK
118 - 14" OAK
119 - 10" OAK
120 - 10" CAMPHOR

121 - 18" OAK
122 - 20" OAK
123 - 32" OAK
124 - 26" OAK
125 - 16" OAK
126 - 33" OAK
127 - 12" OAK
128 - 20" UNIDENTIFIED TREE
129 - 14" OAK
130 - 23" OAK
131 - 22" OAK
132 - 36" OAK
133 - 31" OAK
134 - 38" OAK
135 - 28" OAK
136 - 10" UNIDENTIFIED TREE
137 - 12" OAK
138 - 16" OAK
139 - 15-" CAMPHOR
140 - 10" OAK
141 - 30" OAK
142 - 10" OAK
143 - 24" OAK
144 - 13" OAK
145 - 20" OAK
146 - 10" OAK
147 - 15" OAK
148 - 2-20" OAK
149 - 18" OAK
150 - 12" OAK

151 - 10" OAK
152 - 2-10O-" CAMPHOR
153 - 25" OAK
154 - 32" OAK
155 - 16" OAK
156 - 16" OAK
157 - 40" OAK
158 - 16" UNIDENTIFIED TREE
159 - 12" OAK
160 - 10" OAK
161 - 26" OAK
162 - 24" OAK
163 - 36" OAK
164 - 34" OAK
165 - 24" OAK
166 - 12" OAK
167 - 18" OAK
168 - 20" PINE
169 - 17" OAK
170 - 26" OAK
171 - 20" OAK
172 - 37" OAK
173 - 18" OAK
174 - 10" OAK
175 - 24" PINE
176 - 48" OAK
177 - 27" OAK
178 - 24" OAK
179 - 11" OAK
180 - 14" OAK

181 - 13" OAK
182 - 21" OAK
183 - 14" PINE
184 - 27" OAK
185 - 17" OAK
186 - 20" OAK
187 - 16" PINE
188 - 19" OAK
189 - 15" PINE
190 - 14" OAK
191 - 40" OAK
192 - 28" OAK
193 - 20" OAK
194 - 60" OAK
195 - 29" OAK
196 - 32" OAK
197 - 13" OAK
198 - 10" OAK
199 - 23" OAK
200 - 13" OAK
201 - 20" OAK
202 - 20" OAK
203 - 21" OAK
204 - 17" PINE
205 - 14" OAK
206 - 20" OAK
207 - 12" CAMPHOR
208 - 2-24" OAK
209 - 21" OAK
210 - 23" OAK

211 - 28" OAK
212 - 35" OAK
213 - 26" OAK
214 - 58" OAK
215 - 27" OAK
216 - 27" OAK
217 - 24" OAK
218 - 32" OAK
219 - 19" OAK
220 - 31" OAK
221 - 35" OAK
222 - 2-24" OAK
223 - 3-23" OAK
224 - 29" OAK
225 - 27" OAK
226 - 21" OAK
227 - 19" OAK
228 - 3-18" OAK
229 - 11" UNIDENTIFIED TREE
230 - 28" OAK
231 - 28" OAK
232 - 36" OAK
233 - 2-24" OAK
234 - 34" OAK
235 - 29" OAK
236 - 35" OAK
237 - 2-28" OAK
238 - 32" OAK
239 - 24" OAK
240 - 48" OAK

241 - 36" OAK
242 - 38" OAK
243 - 30" OAK
244 - 19" OAK
245 - 34" OAK
246 - 25" OAK
247 - 31" OAK
248 - 46" OAK
249 - 28" OAK
250 - 2-30" OAK
251 - 25" OAK
252 - 11" UNIDENTIFIED TREE
253 - 40" OAK
254 - 42" OAK
255 - 3-19" OAK
256 - 33" OAK
257 - 30" OAK
258 - 25" OAK
259 - 26" OAK
260 - 30" OAK
261 - 19" OAK
262 - 2-22" OAK
263 - 28" OAK
264 - 22" OAK
265 - 14" OAK
266 - 36" OAK
267 - 26" OAK
268 - 15" OAK
269 - 26" OAK
270 - 19" OAK

271 - 12" PALM
272 - 32" OAK
273 - 34" CAMPHOR
274 - 36" OAK
275 - 23" OAK
276 - 52" OAK
277 - 43" OAK
278 - 26" OAK
279 - 34" OAK
280 - 58" OAK
281 - 15" PINE
282 - 13" PINE
283 - 32" OAK
284 - 40" OAK
285 - 26" OAK
286 - 14" PALM
287 - 14" PALM
288 - 11" CHINA
289 - 49" OAK
290 - 60" OAK
291 - 26" OAK
292 - 20" ELM
293 - 16" CAMPHOR
294 - 16" PALM
295 - 14" PALM
296 - 40" OAK
297 - 14" PALM
298 - 9" PALM
299 - 15" PALM
300 - 12" PALM

301 - 24" OAK
302 - 48" OAK
303 - 12" PALM
304 - 28" OAK
305 - 42" OAK
306 - 16" PALM

TREE CHART

W. KELLY PARK ROAD

PL
YM

O
U

TH
 S

O
RR

EN
TO

 R
O

AD

42
9

SITE

CLIENT COMMENTS5/25/17 46608
CLIENT COMMENTS6/12/17 46608

348



KELLY PARK ROAD
(VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W)

NOT PLATTED
OWNER: CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-007
ORB 10778, PG 1273

W. LINE, NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

BAY RIDGE HEIGHTS
PB "X", PG 143

LOT 1LOT 2

30' R/W PER, DB 398, PG 188

S. LINE N. 1/2
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27
(BEARING BASIS)

E. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

N
00

°1
4'

36
"W

  5
96

.3
4'

 D
ES

C

N87°44'58"E  561.08' D&M N88°21'18"E  724.60' D&M

S0
0°

09
'1

1"
W

  5
81

.6
2'

 D
&

M

S88°34'31"W  1306.99' D&M
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

1.2'

6' CLF6' METAL FENCE

6' METAL FENCE
2.9'

0.3'E

COLUMN
(TYP)

6' CLF

CBW

CBW

1.4'

6' METAL FENCE

TRAFFIC BOX
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

POB
SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

RETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREA

RETENTION AREA

FND 4"x4" CM
RLS #1916

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

FND 4"x4" CM
NO #

N
00
°1
4'
36
"W
  5
96
.3
5'
 M
EA
S

C1

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

STOP BAR

STOP BARYELLOW LINE

YELLOW LINE
YELLOW LINE
WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

YE
LL

O
W

 L
IN

E

W
HI

TE
 L

IN
E

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

1.6'

6' CLF 6' CLF

0.9'N

CONTIGUOUS WITH
W. R/W LINE

CONTIGUOUS WITH
S. R/W LINE

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

A

B

B

N88°20'47"E
1357.89' DESC

POC
NE CORNER
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

S. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

NT

NT

N. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

L2
L3

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

O

N

L
Y

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

O
N

L
Y

O
N

L
Y

O

N

L
Y

8 spaces

10 spaces

D D

4 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

5 spaces6 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

5
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

8 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6+2 spaces

8 spaces

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

3
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

ONLY

ONLY

O
N

L
Y

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

4 10a

Overall Site
Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

SOILS LEGEND:

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (0-5%)

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (5-12%)

CHANDLER APOPKA FINE SANDS

4

5

6

SITE DATA:

Parcel I.D. #: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

Existing FLU: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Existing Zoning: A-1

Proposed Zoning: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Design District: Village Center

Allowable Uses: All uses allowed under Section F Table 2 (Village Center)

Gross Land Area:   18.13 acres

Non-Developable Area:     0.00 acres

Dedicated ROW Area:     1.39 acres

Net Developable Area:   16.74 acres

Proposed Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1A-D)

Total Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1)

Proposed Floor Area Ratio: 0.16 F.A.R.

Minimum Lot Width: 80'

Minimum Lot Depth: N/A

Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 sqft.

Maximum ISR: 90%

Minimum Open Space %: 10% (Common Open Space)

Setbacks:

Front: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Side: 0', 20'(adjacent to Neighborhood)

Side Street: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Rear: 10' Min.; 20' Max.

Kelly Park Rd.: 8' Min.; 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Plymouth Sorrento Rd.: 8' Min.' 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Additional Notes:

1.Billboards  and  pole  signs  shall  be  prohibited.

2. There are no onsite wetland areas, existing ponds are not considered surface waters.

3.All common areas to maintained by a Property Owners Association.

Off-Street Parking:

Required Parking:

Block B "Publix"

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.:  (46,031 sqft. (phase 1A))=   162

Total Required Parking:                       162

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:         230 spaces

Handicap 12X20 Parking Spaces Provided:    7 spaces

Total Parking Provided:                237 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                     7 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:             8 spaces

  Block B (Building 1)

  Restaurant Space:  4 space + 1 space per 3 Seats:  (80 seats) =   31

Total Required Parking:      31

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:       32 spaces

Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              33 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 2)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1b)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

  Block A (Building 1)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (7,200 sqft. (phase 1c)) =   26

Total Required Parking:                 26

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             27 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              29 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 3)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1d)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

Phasing:

Project will be constructed in multiple phases see phasing plan for details.

Stormwater Management:

The project will meet the requirements for the City of Apopka Code Sec. 6.05 and the

requirements of the St. Johns Rivier Water Management District.

Needed Fire Flow (NFF): (Based on FFPC 2012 Edition Chapter 18 & Annex I)

Phase 1A: 3,750 gpm (Type II 200 non-sprinklered);  1,875 gpm sprinklered

Building 1 Phase 1B: 1,500 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Building 2 Phase 1B: 2,000 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Phase 1C: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered

Phase 1D: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Trip Generation Rates:

Average Daily Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 3,164 trips/day

Phase 1B:   9,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 619 trips/day

Phase 1C:   7,200 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 495 trips/day

Phase 1D:   6,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 412 trips/day

          Total ADT = 4,690 trips/day

PM Peak Hour Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day =  279 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1B: 9,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   55 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1C: 7,200 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   44 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1D: 6,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   37 PM Peak Trips

       Total PM Peak Trips = 415 PM Peak Trips

Form Based Code Requirements:

1.Per Section 4.C of the FBC, buildings exceeding 20,000 square feet in area must be articulated to appear

as multiple buildings grouped together.

2.Per Section 7.b of the FBC, all non-residential first floor requires a minimum of 30% glazing.

3.Per Section 3 of the FBC, all building facades shall be designed with Articulation.

4.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, all building mechanical equipment shall be integrated into the overall mass of

a building by screening the equipment behind parapets or recessing equipment into hips, gables or similar

features.

5.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, shopping cart storage shall be located inside the building or shall be screened

by a 4-foot wall consistent with the building architecture and materials.

6.Per Section K.3 of the FBC, Green Building principles are encouraged for development with the FBC

boundary.

7.Per Section M of the FBC , Section 5.01.00 and Water Wise Ordinance 2069; a landscape and irrigation

plan shall be prepared by a Florida licensed Landscape Architect and submitted with the Final Development

Plan.

8.Per Section 5.01.07 of the City Code a Tree Removal and Replacement plan shall be provided with the Final

Development Plan.

9.Per Section P(e) of the FBC, a photometric plan showing light fixtures and footcandle measurements shall

be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

10. Per Section O of the FBC, all signage shall be consistent with the requirements of the FBC and a master

sign plan shall be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

5

5

5

6

BLOCK B

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 1

3,000

SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 2

6,000

SQFT.

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
3

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

0

60 60 120 24030

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

BLOCK B

TEMPORARY

RETENTION

POND

MONUMENT

SIGN

MONUMENT

SIGN

349



O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

D D

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

5 10a

Block Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

50 50 100 20025

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

NOTE:

1.  NOTE CONSTRUCTION OF BLOCK A-C MAY NOT BE IN THE SEQUENTIAL ORDER.

BLOCK A  7,200 SQFT.

BLOCK C TBD

PROJECT PHASING BREAKDOWN:

BLOCK B 61,031 SQFT.

BLOCK B

BUILDING 1

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BUILDING 2

BLOCK B

BUILDING 3

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
4

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

BLOCK A

PARCEL 1

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK ABLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

350



O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

D D

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

5a 10a

Open Space &
Ped Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

50 50 100 20025

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

NOTE:

1.  PER THE DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY THE GATEWAY FEATURE PROPOSED FOR THE

NORTH/SOUTH ROAD WILL CONSTITUTE THE REQUIRED 10% OPEN SPACE FOR PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2

SHALL BE DETERMINED AT THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR PHASE 2.

PLAZA  1.06 AC.

PED & BICYCLE ACCESS

PROJECT OPEN SPACE/PEDISTRIAN

LEGEND:

GENERAL  0.75 AC.

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

PARCEL 1

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK ABLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

0.26 ac.

0.34 ac.

0.34 ac.

0.13 ac.

0.13 ac.

0.46 ac.

0.46 ac.

0.46 ac.

0.46 ac.

BIKE RACK

BIKE

RACK

BIKE RACK

12' BIKE/PED TRAIL

5' PEDESTRIAN SIDEWALK

DEDICATED BIKE

LANE

DEDICATED BIKE

LANE

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

351



X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

O

N

L
Y

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

O
N

L
Y

O
N

L
Y

O

N

L
Y

8 spaces

10 spaces

D D

4 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

5 spaces

6 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

5
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

8 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6+2 spaces

8 spaces

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

3
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9

6

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9

6

.

0

0

9
9
.0

0

9

5

.

0

0
9

7

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
8
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9
9
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9

7

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
7
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9
9
.
0
0

1
0
0
.
0
0

1
0
1
.
0
0

9
4
.0

0

9
7
.0

0

9
3
.0

0

9
8
.
0
0

9
5
.0

0

1
0
1
.0

0

9
6
.0

0

9
9
.
0
0

1
0
0
.0

0

9
9
.
0
0

9
9
.0

0

9
7
.
0
0

1
0
2
.0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
9
.0

0

9
5
.
0
0

9
3
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
3
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

1
0
1
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

1
0
0
.
0
0

9
8
.
0
0

9
7
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

ONLY

ONLY

O
N

L
Y

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

6 10a

Detailed Site
Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

40 40 80 16020

GATEWAY PLAZA ENTRY

FEATURE

GATEWAY PLAZA ENTRY

FEATURE

100.0'

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PHASE 1A

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 1

3,000

SQFT.

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 2

6,000

SQFT.

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
D

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
C

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
A

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

PHASE 1

TEMPORARY

RETENTION

POND

60.0

120.0

50.0

120.0

8.0

241.0

191.0

128.3' TRUCK DOCK AREA

75.3' SETBACK

60.0

50.0

60.0

60.0

30.0'

 DRIVE AISLE

MONUMENT SIGN

176.9

219.9

15.0'

PARKING SETBACK

12.0'

SIDEWALK

12.0' TURN LANE

269' TURN LANE

10.0

30.0'

DRIVE AISLE

24.0'

DRIVE AISLE

18.0

10.0

17.3'

DRIVE AISLE

6.0'

SIDEWALK

6.0'

SIDEWALK

30.5'

SETBACK

PHARMACY

DRIVE-THRU

24.0

13.8

30.0'

DRIVE AISLE

12.0

10.0

5.0'

SIDEWALK

22.0

18.0

24.0'

DRIVE AISLE

24.0'

DRIVE AISLE

10.0

18.0

12.0

30.0'

DRIVE AISLE

18.0

30.0'

DRIVE AISLE

30.0'

DRIVE AISLE

8.0'

SIDEWALK

12.0

5.0

10.0'

ENTRY WALK

24.0'

DRIVE

AISLE

18.0

22.0'

DRIVE

AISLE

10.0

10.0

24.0'

DRIVE

AISLE

10.0

18.0

18.0

10.0

18.0

10.0

30.0'

DRIVE

AISLE

9.5

19.0'

PAVEMENT

8.0'

SIDEWALK

3.0

10.0

18.0

12.0

5.0

5.0'

SIDEWALK

6.0'

SIDEWALK

18.0

10.0

10.0'

SETBACK

8.0'

SIDEWALK

16.0'

FUTURE

PAVEMENT

16.0'

FUTURE

PAVEMENT

8.0'

FUTURE

SIDEWALK

100.0'

RIGHT-OF-WAY

10.0'

SIDEWALK

R10.0

R10.0

R15.0

R3.0

R3.0

R35.0

R35.0

R5.0

R10.0

R5.0

R3.0

R10.0

R5.0

R10.0

R15.0

R10.0

R50.0

R50.0

R50.0

R5.0

R15.0

R10.0

R10.0

R15.0

R15.0

R5.0

R3.0

R10.0

R35.0

R35.0

R3.0

R3.0

R49.0

R35.0

R35.0

R3.0

R3.0

R10.0

R10.0

R5.0

R10.0

R10.0

R3.0

R3.0

R10.0

R2.0

R10.0

R150.0

R150.0

R22.0

R150.0

R235.0

R265.0

R150.0

R15.0

R15.0

R15.0 R10.0

R50.0

TRASH COMPACTOR

TRUCK DOCK

EMERGENCY GENERATOR

PAD

DOUBLE DUMPSTER

LOCATION

DOUBLE

DUMPSTER

30" KNEE

WALL

MONUMENT

SIGN

30" KNEE

WALL

30" KNEE

WALL

31.0'

PAVEMENT

R250.0

R250.0

R35.0

R35.0

R35.0

R35.0

R50.0

5.0'

SIDEWALK

5.0'

SIDEWALK

7.0'

LANDSCAPE

ISLAND

9.0'

PARALLEL

PARKING

R5.0

R6.0

7.5

12.0

12.0'

7.0'

BIKE

LANE

22.0

CART

CORRAL

BICYCLE

RACK

5.0'

SIDEWALK

352



X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

F
M

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

1

2

W

M

1

2

W

M

1

2

W

M

12WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8SAN

8SAN

8SAN

8SAN

8SAN

8SAN

8SAN

8SAN

8SAN

D
D

D D

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2

W

M

2

W

M

4
S
A
N

M

8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN

8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN8SAN

2WM

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

M

6WM6WM

8

S

A

N

8WM

8WM

M

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

4
W

M
4
W

M

4WM 4WM

M

M

M

2WM

2WM

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

4WM 4WM

M

4
W

M

4
W

M

2WM

2WM

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

4WM 4WM

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

4
W

M
4
W

M
4
W

M
4
W

M
4
W

M
4
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

M

4WM 4WM

M

4
W

M

4
W

M

2WM

2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM2WM

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

4
W

M

4WM

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

M

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

6

W

M

6

W

M

6

W

M

6

W

M

6

W

M

6

W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M

8

S

A

N

8

S

A

N

8

S

A

N

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

6SAN

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

8
S
A
N

4SAN

4SAN

4SAN

4SAN

4SAN

4SAN

F

M

FM

FM

FM

FM

12WM

FM

FM

4WM

4
S
A
N

4
S
A
N

4
S
A
N

4
S
A
N

4
W

M

4WM

4
W

M

6WM 6WM 6WM

6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM

6WM6WM6WM

4
W

M

4
W

M

4WM

4WM

4WM

4WM

4WM

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

7 10a

Utility Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

40 40 80 16020

GATEWAY PLAZA ENTRY

FEATURE

PHASE 1A

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 1

3,000

SQFT.

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 2

6,000

SQFT.

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
D

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
C

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
A

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
A

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

MONUMENT SIGN

CONNECT TO EXISTING

WATERMAIN ON KELLY

PARK ROAD: WATER LINE WILL

NEED TO BE EXTENDED TO PLYMOUTH

SORRENTO RD IF THE CITY HAS NOT

CONSTRUCTED THE EXTENSION PRIOR

TO CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIX CENTER

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEM.

NEW FORCEMAIN

TO BE SIZED BY

CITY OF APOPKA

NEW FORCEMAIN

CONNECTION: FORCEMAIN

WILL NEED TO BE EXTENDED TO

PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD AND POSSIBILY

SOUTH DOWN PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD TO BERRY

OAK DR. IF THE CITY HAS NOT CONSTRUCTED

THE PROPOSED EXTENSION DOWN KELLY PARK RD.

NEW WATERMAIN

TO BE SIZED BY

CITY OF APOPKA

2" WATER

SERVICE

METER BANK

SANITARY

MANHOLE

8" GRAVITY

MAIN

2" WATER

SERVICE

METER BANK

2" WATER

SERVICE

METER BANK

8" FIRE MAIN

FIRE HYDRANT

ASSEM.

SANITARY

MANHOLE

8" GRAVITY

MAIN

2" WATER

SERVICE

SPRINKLER

SERVICE

W/ FDC AND

POST INDICATOR

VALVE

2-1,250 GAL.

GREASE TRAPS

SANITARY

MANHOLE

8" GRAVITY MAIN

8" FIRE MAIN

SANITARY MANHOLE

SANITARY

MANHOLE

SPRINKLER SERVICE

WITH FDC AND POST

INDICATOR VALVE

6" WASTE

LINE

6" WASTE

LINE

6" GREASE

LINE

2-1,250 GAL.

GREASE TRAPS

8" FIRE MAIN

2" WATER

SERVICE

METER BANK

12" FIRE LINE

W/DDCV AND

BYPASS METER

FIRE HYDRANT

ASSEM.

2" WATER

SERVICES

NEW PRIVATE

LIFT STATION

NEW FORCEMAIN

TO BE SIZED BY

CITY OF APOPKA

NEW WATERMAIN

TO BE SIZED BY

CITY OF APOPKA

CONNECT TO EXISTING

RECLAIM ON KELLY

PARK ROAD

353



X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

95

100

10
5

94

96

97

98

99

101

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
6

10
7

108

102
103

104 105

106

105104

106

105
106

10
099

10
1

9089 91

92

93

9593 94 96 97 100 10
5

98 99 101 102 103

10
4 106 107

108

10
5

10
4

10
6

10
7

10
8

10
9

95

10
0

96

97

98

99

10
1

10
2

10
3

93 94

110

10
7

10
8

109

107

106

107

108

108
108

108

109

109

109

107

107

10
6

106

10
7

10
8

10
9

106

108

109

109
106

107

106

108

109

10
9

10
7

106

10
8

10
8

108

102

101
102

101

102

103

104

108

106

107

106
107

10
8

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

D D

9

6

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9

6

.

0

0

9
9
.0

0

9

5

.

0

0
9

7

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
8
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9
9
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9

7

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
7
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9
9
.
0
0

1
0
0
.
0
0

1
0
1
.
0
0

9
4
.0

0

9
7
.0

0

9
3
.0

0

9
8
.
0
0

9
5
.0

0

1
0
1
.0

0

9
6
.0

0

9
9
.
0
0

1
0
0
.0

0

9
9
.
0
0

9
9
.0

0

9
7
.
0
0

1
0
2
.0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
9
.0

0

9
5
.
0
0

9
3
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
3
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

1
0
1
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

1
0
0
.
0
0

9
8
.
0
0

9
7
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

8 10a

Paving &
Drainage Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

40 40 80 16020

GATEWAY PLAZA ENTRY

FEATURE

GATEWAY PLAZA ENTRY

FEATURE

PHASE 1A

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 1

3,000

SQFT.

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 2

6,000

SQFT.

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
D

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
C

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
A

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
A

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

PHASE 1

TEMPORARY

RETENTION

POND

105
9

DRY POND

SECTION

103
9

THOROUGHFARE

ROADWAY SECTION

100
9

PARKING AREA

SECTION

101
9

ACCESS ROAD

SECTION

STORM INLET

STORM PIPE

STORM INLET

STORM STUB

TO OUTPARCEL

STORM STUB

TO OUTPARCEL

STORM INLET

STORM PIPE

STORM

INLET

STORM

INLET

STORM

PIPE

STORM INLET

STORM

MANHOLE

STORM PIPE

M.E.S.

DISCHARGE

WEIR

M.E.S.

STORM

INLET

STORM

MANHOLE

STORM

INLET

STORM MANHOLE

STORM INLET

STORM INLET

STORM PIPE

STORM MANHOLE

STORM PIPE

354



X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

95

100

10
5

94

96

97

98

99

101

10
2

10
3

10
4

10
6

10
7

108

102
103

104 105

106

105104

106

105
106

10
099

10
1

9089 91

92

93

9593 94 96 97 100 10
5

98 99 101 102 103

10
4 106 107

108

10
5

10
4

10
6

10
7

10
8

10
9

95

10
0

96

97

98

99

10
1

10
2

10
3

93 94

110

10
7

10
8

109

107

106

107

108

108
108

108

109

109

109

107

107

10
6

106

10
7

10
8

10
9

106

108

109

109
106

107

106

108

109

10
9

10
7

106

10
8

10
8

108

102

101
102

101

102

103

104

108

106

107

106
107

10
8

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

D D

9

6

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9

6

.

0

0

9
9
.0

0

9

5

.

0

0
9

7

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
8
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9
9
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9

7

.

0

0

9
3
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
7
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9
9
.
0
0

1
0
0
.
0
0

1
0
1
.
0
0

9
4
.0

0

9
7
.0

0

9
3
.0

0

9
8
.
0
0

9
5
.0

0

1
0
1
.0

0

9
6
.0

0

9
9
.
0
0

1
0
0
.0

0

9
9
.
0
0

9
9
.0

0

9
7
.
0
0

1
0
2
.0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9

8

.

0

0

9
4
.
0
0

9
9
.0

0

9
5
.
0
0

9
3
.
0
0

9
4
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
3
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

1
0
1
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

1
0
0
.
0
0

9
8
.
0
0

9
7
.
0
0

9
9
.
0
0

9

5

.

0

0

9

7

.

0

0

9
7
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
5
.
0
0

9
6
.
0
0

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

9 10a

Preliminary
Grading Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

40 40 80 16020

GATEWAY PLAZA ENTRY

FEATURE

GATEWAY PLAZA ENTRY

FEATURE

PHASE 1A

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

PRELIM. F.F. = 109.00

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 1

3,000

SQFT.

PRELIM. F.F.

108.00

PHASE 1B

 BUILDING 2

6,000

SQFT.

PRELIM. F.F.

108.00

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
D

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

P
R
E
L
I
M

.
 
F
.
F
.
 
=

 
1
0
7
.
0
0

P
H

A
S
E
 
1
C

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

P
R
E
L
I
M

.
 
F
.
F
.
 
=

 
1
0
6
.
0
0

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
A

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
A

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

PHASE 1

TEMPORARY

RETENTION

POND

355



O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

W
M

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

1

2

W

M

1

2

W

M

12WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8
W

M

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

8WM

D
D

D D

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2

W

M

2

W

M

M

2WM

2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

M

6WM6WM

M

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

4
W

M

4WM 4WM

M

M

M

2WM

2WM

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM

4WM 4WM

M

4
W

M

2WM

2
W

M

2WM

4WM 4WM

M

2
W

M

2WM

M

2WM

2WM

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

4
W

M

4
W

M

4
W

M

4
W

M
4
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

M

4WM 4WM

M

4
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

2
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M

2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM2WM

4WM

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

M

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2
W

M

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

2WM

6

W

M

6

W

M

6

W

M

6

W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M

6
W

M
6
W

M
6
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M
2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M

2
W

M
2
W

M

8
W

M

12WM

4WM

4WM

6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM 6WM

6WM6WM

4
W

M

4WM

4WM

4WM

4WM

Sm
ea

l A
er

ia
l M

M
 1

00
ft

TS
EX

T 
- E

m
er

ge
nc

y

Smeal Aerial MM 100ft
TSEXT - Emergency

Smeal Aerial MM 100ft
TSEXT - Emergency

Sm
eal A

erial M
M

 100ft
TSEX

T - Em
ergency

Sm
eal A

erial M
M

 100ft
TSEX

T - Em
ergency

Smeal Aerial MM 100ft
TSEXT - Emergency

Walker Foodliner Tank Trailer
TSEXT - Tankers

Walker Foodliner Tank Trailer
TSEXT - Tankers

Walker Foodliner Tank Trailer
TSEXT - Tankers

W
alker Foodliner Tank Trailer

TSEX
T - Tankers

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE
DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

9a 10a

Turning
Movement Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

50 50 100 20025

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

BLOCK B

BUILDING 1

BLOCK B

BUILDING 2

BLOCK B

BUILDING 3

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
4

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

BLOCK A

PARCEL 1

NOTE:

1.  TURNING ANALYSIS IS BASED ON 100' AERIAL TRUCK W/SPEED

BASED ON 5 MPH.

2.  HOSE LAY DIMENSIONING SHOWN BASED ON ALLOWABLE 400'

HOSE LAY DISTANCE SINCE ALL BUILDINGS ARE SPRINKLED.

3.  FIRE FLOWS ARE ASSUMED TO BE 2,000 GPM FOR SPRINKLERED

BUILDINGS.

FDC LOCATION

FDC LOCATION

FDC LOCATION

FDC LOCATION

FDC LOCATION

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

356



Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

10 10a

General Details 1

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

N.T.S.

PARKING AREA SECTION

100

-

5.00'

71-89'

173'

5'

1%

71-89'

8"
8"

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE

TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

1-1/2" TYPS S-III

ASPHALT

8" CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE MIN 98%

STANDARD PROCTOR DRY (T-180)

DENSITY.

VARIES

SIDEWALK

TYPE 'D' CURB

FDOT INDEX

#300D

DRIVE AISLE & PARKING
DRIVE AISLE & PARKING

SIDEWALK

THOROUGHFARE ROADWAY SECTION DETAIL103
- N.T.S. (DESIGN SPEED: 30 MPH POSTED 20 MPH)

3'

GRASS

N.T.S.

ACCESS ROAD SECTION101

-

15'

31'-4"

1%

15'

8"
8"

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE

TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

1-1/2" TYPS S-III

ASPHALT

8" CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE MIN 98%

STANDARD PROCTOR DRY (T-180)

DENSITY.

VARIES

TYPE 'D' CURB

FDOT INDEX

#300D

DRIVE AISLEDRIVE AISLE

DRY RETENTION  POND CROSS SECTION105
- N.T.S.

POND BOTTOM

1

6

99.00 99.00

93.00

SEED & MULCH

POND BOTTOM

10yr.24hr. ELEV. = TBD

25yr.24hr. ELEV. = TBD

100yr.24hr. ELEV. = TBD

1

6

1

4

D
R
A
I
N

A
G

E
 
E
A
S
E
M

E
N

T
 
L
I
M

I
T
S

25yr.96hr. ELEV. = TBD

MEAN ANNUAL ELEV. = TBD

1

4

R
O

W
 
L
I
N

E

63.00

SLOPE TO

BE SODDED

SLOPES TO BE

SODDED

SLOPE TO BE

SODDED

100' BOTTOM WIDTH

140' TOP WIDTH5' POND BERM

5' POND BERM

N.T.S.

STOP SIGN, STOP BAR & CROSSWALK

104

-

DOUBLE YELLOW

PLASTIC STOP BAR

24" WHITE THERMO-

5
0
'

4"

4" 4"

6'

1'

STOP SIGN

30" HI INTENSITY

5' CONCRETE SIDEWALK

4'

6'

RADIUS

CENTER OF

3'

N.T.S.

HANDICAP PARKING DETAILS
102

-

BL

100'

TYPE 'E' CURB
& GUTTER

2%

2'-3"

2%

2'-3"

2.5" TYPE SP9.5
ASPHALT

2%

R
.O

.W
.

6'
SOD

2'

2% 2%

PARALLEL
PARKING

9' 2'
SOD

6'

R
.O

.W
.

SIDEWALK
8'

50' 50'

TYPE 'F' CURB
& GUTTER

2' CURB
& GUTTER

10" CRUSHED CONCRETE/LIMEROCK
BASE.  MIN. LBR 100
 98% MIN. AASHTO T-180 DENSITY

12" STABLIZED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

AND MIN. 50 FBV12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

2%2%

SIDEWALK
8' 3.75'

2%

PGL

BIKE LANE
7'

DRIVE ISLE
12'

PARALLEL
PARKING

9'
BIKE LANE

7'
DRIVE ISLE

12'

TYPE 'F' CURB
& GUTTER

MEDIAN
3.75'

MEDIAN

C

1/4" FIBERGLASS

SKIMMER

CENTERLINE OF BERM

POND

RETENTION

ENKAMAT TYPE 7012

DRAINAGE

A

C

L

EASEMENT

SECTION B-B

1'

SECTION A-A

TOP OF SKIMMER 98.50

BOTTOM OF SKIMMER 97.00

20' - POND 1

SKIMMER

WEIR ELEV = 97.50 POND 1

B

11.5'  POND 1

ENKAMAT TYPE 7012

4.25'

4" THICK 4000 PSI CONC

CENTERLINE OF BERM

1

TOP OF BERM ELEV = 99.00 POND 1

BOTTOM OF

SKIMMER

6"

6

6.00'-POND 1

1

4

4

LIMITS OF 4"

W/ENKAMAT

THICK CONC

ENKAMAT TYPE 7012

L

C

L

B

OVERLAP

A

1

MATCH EXISTING

4" THICK 4000 PSI CONC

6.00'-POND 1

GRADE

1

4

BROAD-CRESTED WEIR DETAIL106
- N.T.S.

4" THICK 4000 PSI CONC

357



Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master/Preliminary
Development Plan

10a 10a

Kelly Park
Plymouth
Sorrento
Sections

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

PLYMOUTH SORRENTO RD.  PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONBB
- N.T.S.

KELLY PARK RD.  PROPOSED CROSS SECTIONAA
- N.T.S.

PROPOSED KNEE WALL CONCEPTUAL PLAN VIEW DETAIL-
- N.T.S.

358



 

 1 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

After recording a copy should 

be returned to: 

 

Miranda F. Fitzgerald, Esq. 

Lowndes, Drosdick, Doster, 

Kantor & Reed, P.A. 

215 N. Eola Drive 

Post Office Box 2809 

Orlando, FL 32802 

Execution Version  
 

PUBLIX/KELLY PARK DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS PUBLIX/KELLY PARK DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this 

“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between PUBLIX SUPERMARKETS, INC., a 

Florida Corporation whose address is 3300 Publix Corporate Parkway, Lakeland, FL 33811 

(“Developer”); and the CITY OF APOPKA, a municipality organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of Florida, whose address is 120 E. Main Street, Apopka, FL 32703 (“City”).  

Developer and the City are sometimes together referred to herein as the “Parties,” and separately 

as the “Party,” as the context requires. 

R E C I T A L S: 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain parcels of real property bearing Orange 

County Tax Parcel Identification Number 13-20-27-0000-00-008 located in the City of Apopka, 

Orange County, Florida (the “Property”), which is approximately 18.129 total acres in size and is 

more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 

reference; which is proposed for development as a mixed-use project (the “Project”); and  

WHEREAS, Developer is processing certain land use and zoning approvals with the City, 

including a Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan (collectively, the “Approvals”) with 

respect to the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Developer desires to develop the Property and to receive assurances from 

City, as set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, City desires that Developer develop the Property in accordance with the 

City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, its Land Development Code, and the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2017, City adopted (i) Ordinance No. 2576 amending the Apopka 

Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II – “Land Use Type Density, 

Intensity” to create a new Section 2.02.21 governing the Mixed-Use Kelly Park Interchange 

Zoning District (the “MU-KPI Zoning District”) and (ii) the Kelly Park Interchange KPI Form-

Based Code (the “KPI Form-Based Code”); and 

WHEREAS, the Property is subject to the City’s Land Development Code and the KPI 

Form-Based Code in effect as of the Effective Date of this Development Agreement as hereinafter 

defined; and 

359



 

 2 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

WHEREAS, the Property currently has a Mixed Use-Interchange Future Land Use 

Designation, has a Village Center Overlay zoning designation on generally the eastern half of the 

Property, has an Interchange Overlay zoning designation on generally the western half of the 

Property within the MU-KPI Zoning District, and is subject to the KPI Form-Based Code; and  

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2576 establishes the uses allowed in the MU-KPI Zoning 

District and requires compliance with the KPI Form-Based Code that includes a separate list of 

permitted and special exception land uses within the MU-KPI Zoning District, as well as specific 

building design standards; and  

WHEREAS, Section 12.02.04 of the City’s Land Development Code requires any 

development within the City to obtain approval of both a preliminary development plan and a final 

development plan and establishes time frames for obtaining these approvals; and 

WHEREAS, Section 12.02.04.C of the City’s Land Development Code sets forth the 

identical requirements for preliminary and final development plans (the “Development Plan 

Requirements”); and 

WHEREAS, Developer and the City agreed upon which of the Development Plan 

Requirements were to be included in the preliminary development plan for the Property and which 

of the Development Plan Requirements could be deferred to the final development plan for the 

Property; and  

WHEREAS, for purposes of this Agreement, the Master Plan submitted to comply with 

the requirements of the MU-KPI Zoning District is also the preliminary development plan required 

by the KPI Form-Based Code for the Property and will be referred to herein as the “Master Plan 

/ Preliminary Development Plan”; and 

WHEREAS, Developer agrees to develop the Project upon the Property in accordance 

with and subject to the terms of this Agreement for the uses substantially as depicted on the Master 

Plan / Preliminary Development Plan, all of which shall constitute the “Development 

Improvements” as defined and described below; and 

WHEREAS, the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan is consistent with and meets 

the intent of the MU-KPI Zoning District and the KPI Form-Based Code; and  

WHEREAS, City is authorized by home-rule powers to enter into agreements regarding 

the development and redevelopment of property; and  

WHEREAS, the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan, a reduced copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “B,”1 is in compliance with the requirements of Section 12.02.04.C. of 

the City’s Land Development Code; and   

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to (i) facilitate development of 

the Project in accordance with the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan in a manner that 

                                                 
1 The original approved full-sized version of the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan is on file with the City’s Community Development 

Department. 

360



 

 3 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

is mutually agreeable, (ii) resolve inconsistencies in applicable provisions of the Ordinance, the 

KPI Form-Based Code, and the City’s Land Development Code; and (iii) set forth the agreements 

and conditions that shall be applicable through the buildout of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement are consistent with and 

further the goals, objectives, and policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to approve the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan 

and enter into this Agreement to provide the citizens of City a quality development in the form of 

the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to incorporate this Agreement into the Master Plan 

/ Preliminary Development Plan pursuant to Section 12.02.04.E.2.A of the City’s Land 

Development Code; and  

WHEREAS, Developer hereby affirms and acknowledges that everything contracted for, 

negotiated, acknowledged and affirmed herein by Developer is done freely and voluntarily; and 

WHEREAS, the City confirms that this Agreement is consistent with and an exercise of 

the City’s powers under the Municipal Home Rule Powers Act; Article VIII, Section 2(b) of the 

Constitution of the State of Florida; Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; all City Rules; other controlling 

law; and the City’s police powers, and is a non-statutory Development Agreement which is not 

subject to or enacted pursuant to the provisions of Sections 163.3220-163.3243, Florida Statutes. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein, and other good and valuable considerations, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.  Each and all of the foregoing Recitals are 

declared to be true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.  All Exhibits to this 

Agreement are incorporated by reference herein and form a material part of this Agreement.   

2. Project Specifications.  The Project consists of the following: 

Total Acreage: 18.13 ± acres, more or less. 

 

Village Center 

Overlay 

 

10.80 ± acres (Blocks A and B as depicted on the Master 

Plan / Preliminary Development Plan) 

 

Interchange 

Overlay 

 

7.33± acres (Block C as depicted on the Master Plan / 

Preliminary Development Plan) 

  

Land Use: The Project is a mixed-use development located within the 

City limits in the MU-KPI Zoning District.   

 

Phasing: 

 

The Project shall be developed in two (2) phases, with Phase 

1 being the eastern 10.80 acres of the Property that will be 

developed in two Blocks (Block A and Block B) with an 

361



 

 4 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

anticipated total of six (6) buildings, and Phase 2 being the 

western 7.33 acres of the Property that will be planned and 

developed in the future as Block C, following 

commencement of the Phase 1 uses.  Proposed development 

within each Phase of the Project shall not exceed the Floor 

Area Ratio (“FAR”) standards included in the KPI Form-

Based Code applicable to the particular Phase.   

3. Permitted Uses.  The permitted uses allowed for Master Plan Blocks A and B shall be all 

of the uses allowed in the Village Center Overlay as set forth in the KPI Form-Based Code as of 

the effective date of this Agreement.  The permitted uses allowed for Master Plan Block C shall 

be all of the uses allowed in the Interchange Overlay as set forth in the KPI Form-Based Code as 

of the effective date of this Agreement. 

4. Prohibited Uses.  The prohibited uses in Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan for 

Blocks A, B and C shall be as specified by the KPI Form-Based Code. 

5. Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan.  The Master Plan / Preliminary 

Development Plan complies with the applicable provisions of the KPI Form-Based Code.   

6. Specific Requirements for Final Development Plan.  The City hereby agrees that the 

following plans need not be submitted until the Final Development Plan is submitted for the Phase 

1 Parcel: 

(a) A landscape and irrigation plan shall be prepared by a Florida licensed Landscape 

Architect consistent with the requirements of Section 5.01.00 of the City Code and Water Wise 

Ordinance 2069;   

(b) A tree removal and replacement plan consistent with the requirements in Section 

5.01.07 of the City Code; 

(c) A photometric plan showing light fixtures and foot candle measurements consistent 

with the requirements of Subsection P.4.e of the KPI Form-Based Code; 

(d) A master sign plan that includes signage consistent with the requirements of the 

KPI Form-Based Code.   

7. Applicable Development Standards and Process.  The development standards included 

in the KPI Form-Based Code shall govern development of the Project.  The following clarifications 

and additions are provided: 

(a) Pursuant to Table 13 in Section Q of the KPI Form-Based Code, the Required Civic 

Space Acreage (minimum acreage of open space required; % of character zone area) for the Project 

is ten percent (10%) in the Village Center Overlay portion of the Property (Phase 1) and fifteen 

percent (15%) in the Interchange Overlay portion of the Property (Phase 2).  Phase 1 requirements 

will be satisfied by the installation of the gateway feature depicted on the Master Plan / Preliminary 

Development Plan having at least four (4) of the design elements listed in Subsection J.3.v.b of 

362



 

 5 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

the KPI Form-Based Code.  A sheet depicting open space within Phase 1 is included in the Master 

Plan / Preliminary Development Plan.   

(b) A revised Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan (the “Revised Master Plan 

/ Preliminary Development Plan”) must be submitted when additional details are available about 

the development that will be proposed in Phase 2, Block C.  Civic and open space requirements 

for Phase 2, Block C, will be addressed at the time the Revised Master Plan / Preliminary 

Development Plan is submitted; provided, however, the landscaping features that run along the 

northern boundary of the Phase 1 Parcel shall be substantially replicated on the northern boundary 

of Phase 2, Block C.  In addition any commercial / retail buildings in Phase 2, Block C, that are 

less than 10,000 s.f. in size, except gas stations or convenience stores with gas pumps, shall be (i) 

located within 200 feet of the Thoroughfare (as hereinafter defined); (ii) shall be oriented toward 

and face the Thoroughfare; and (iii) shall have minimal setbacks from the Thoroughfare with either 

on-street parking or a single lane of off-road parking.   

8. Right-of-Way Dedications.  It is the obligation of Developer to make the following right-

of-way dedications to the City at the times noted in Subparagraphs (a), (b) and (c) below; provided, 

however, if Developer sells or otherwise transfers any right, title or interest in any portion of the 

Property to an unrelated third party purchaser or lessee prior to the Right-of-Way Conveyance 

Date, as defined herein, the obligation for all of the right-of-way dedications specified in 

Subparagraphs (a), (b) and (c) below will be triggered immediately and must be completed within 

six (6) months following date of the transfer to the unrelated third party or no further approvals or 

permits will be issued by the City until the right-of-way conveyances to the City have been 

completed, and this timing will supersede the timing in the provisions of Subparagraphs (a), (b) 

and (c) below.   

(a) Developer will apply for a lot split (the “Lot Split”) within one hundred eighty 

(180) days following the Effective Date of this Agreement to create two (2) separate legal 

development parcels for Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Property, a depiction of which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “C.”  Within eighteen (18) months following approval of the Lot Split (the 

“Right-of-Way Conveyance Date”), Developer shall convey to the City by Special Warranty 

Deed right-of-way for the north-south road (the “Thoroughfare”) that will extend from the 

northern boundary of the Property to Kelly Park Road.  The right-of-way for the Thoroughfare 

shall be not less than one hundred (100) feet in width which is sufficient to allow the construction 

of a two-lane divided road that conforms with the cross-section requirements set forth in Table 12, 

Section P, of the KPI Form-Based Code for Street Standard Type B (V.C. Access Street) in the 

location depicted on the Master Plan - Preliminary Development Plan.  If, prior to the Right-of-

Way Conveyance Date, the City conducts a traffic study for an area of the City that includes the 

Property, and determines that a different cross-section design is needed for the Thoroughfare 

comprising not more than a one hundred (100) foot wide right-of-way, then the City may give 

notice to Developer of the new cross-section design that will be required for the Thoroughfare.  

City and Developer shall cooperate in implementing the new cross-section design for the 

Thoroughfare and may extend the Right-of-Way Conveyance Date if necessary.  Prior to the Right-

of-Way Conveyance Date, Developer and City shall determine the location of any utility easement, 

slope easement, temporary construction easement and/or right-of-way maintenance easement that 

may also need to be granted to the City.   

363



 

 6 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

(b) Within one hundred twenty (120) days following approval of the Lot Split, 

Developer shall convey to the City by Special Warranty Deed a twelve (12) foot wide right-of-

way along West Kelly Park Road (as shown in the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan) 

for a pedestrian / bike trail.   

(c) At the time a Final Development Plan is submitted for Block A, Parcel 1, or the 

portion of Block B that fronts on Plymouth-Sorrento Road, whichever occurs first, Developer and 

the City shall determine the timing and means of conveyance of a five (5) foot wide strip of land 

along Plymouth-Sorrento Road to be used for construction of a sidewalk.  If property located north 

or south of the Property on the west side of Plymouth-Sorrento Road is proceeding with 

development that includes a sidewalk along Plymouth-Sorrento Road before Developer submits a 

Final Development Plan for either Block A, Parcel 1, or the portion of Block B that fronts on 

Plymouth-Sorrento Road, then the City may send a notice to Developer advancing the discussions 

on the timing and means of conveying the land for the sidewalk along Plymouth Sorrento Road.   

9. Thoroughfare, Trail and Sidewalk Construction. 

(a) The approved cross-section for the Thoroughfare is Street Standard Type B (V.C. 

Access Street) attached hereto as Exhibit “D.”  Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for 

the first building within the Property, Developer shall construct the entire Thoroughfare in 

accordance with the cross-section design shown on Exhibit “D.”  Developer shall also install utility 

lines sized appropriately for the anticipated full development of the Property simultaneously with 

its construction of the Thoroughfare as specified herein.   

(b) Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the first building in Block B, 

Developer shall construct the twelve (12) foot wide trail along Kelly Park Road within the existing 

right-of-way and adjacent to Block B in the location depicted on the Master Plan / Preliminary 

Development Plan.  The western limit of the trail construction in Block B shall be the western limit 

of paving within the Thoroughfare right-of-way.  If property located east of the Property is 

proceeding with development that includes a trail along Plymouth-Sorrento Road before 

Developer initiates site work in Block B, then the City may send a notice to Developer to initiate 

discussions on the timing of construction of the trail within the Block B.   

(c) Developer shall install a five (5) foot wide sidewalk along Plymouth-Sorrento Road 

prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for, whichever develops first, a building in Block 

A, Parcel 1, or Building 2 in Block B that is located adjacent to Plymouth-Sorrento Road, as 

depicted on the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan, if a sidewalk has been constructed 

or is planned for construction along Plymouth-Sorrento Road through the properties located on the 

west side of Plymouth-Sorrento Road either north or south of the Property.  If the City desires to 

advance the timing of the sidewalk construction along Plymouth-Sorrento Road, then the City may 

send a notice to Developer to initiate discussions on the timing of construction of the sidewalk 

along Plymouth-Sorrento Road.  Developer shall be allowed to contribute the cost of the proposed 

sidewalk along Plymouth-Sorrento Road through the Property to a sidewalk fund in lieu of 

constructing the sidewalk if the sidewalk is required by the City in advance of the Developer 

submitting construction plans for a building in Block A, Parcel 1, or Building 2 in Block B.    

364



 

 7 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

10. Transportation Impact Fee Credits.   

(a) In consideration of Developer’s conveyance, at no cost to the City, of more right-

of way for the Thoroughfare than is needed for the anticipated development of the Property, and 

in consideration of Developer’s construction of the right-of-way to serve areas south of the 

Property, as authorized by Sections 26-81(a) and (e) of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, the City 

agrees to award Developer transportation impact fee credits (“Credits”) equal to one hundred 

percent (100%) of all reasonably necessary costs incurred for design, engineering, permitting, 

environmental mitigation (if any) and construction of the Thoroughfare consistent with the cross-

section depicted on Exhibit “D.”  To be eligible for reimbursement through the Credits, Developer 

shall submit proposed Thoroughfare expenditures to the City for prior approval by the City 

Administrator or his/her designee before incurring said expenditures.  Such proposed expenditures 

shall include sufficient documentation establishing that each proposed cost is reasonably necessary 

for the construction of the Thoroughfare consistent with Exhibit “D.”  The City shall approve, 

approve in part, or deny such request in writing within thirty (30) days.   

(b) The Credits shall be awarded within thirty (30) days following the City’s receipt of 

a request for Credits (“Request for Credits”) from Developer with adequate documentation to 

show costs expended to the date of the Request for Credits, and all information described in Section 

26-81(f) of the Apopka Code of Ordinances.  Developer shall be allowed to submit a Request for 

Credits at various stages in the design, engineering permitting and construction of the 

Thoroughfare; provided, however, that no Request for Credits shall be submitted to the City sooner 

than one hundred twenty days (120) following the submittal of an earlier Request for Credits.  Any 

Credits awarded pursuant to this Agreement may be used by Developer in the development of the 

Property to offset transportation impact fees assessed by the City.  In addition, Developer is 

permitted to sell or assign any Credits to other property owners or developers with property located 

within the area subject to the KPI Form-Based Code, as they may exist at the time the credits are 

proposed for sale or assignment, for use to offset transportation impact fees assessed by the City 

for the development of their property. The Credits cannot be used for any purpose other than 

offsetting transportation impact fees assessed by the City, and cannot be converted to U.S. currency 

or any other form except as otherwise provided herein.  Nothing in this section addresses or affects 

any claims for impact fee credits related to any stormwater improvements. 

11. Utility Line Construction & Reimbursal for Upsizing.   

(a)  Developer shall install utility lines needed to serve the Property at the time it is 

constructing all or a portion of the Thoroughfare as provided in Paragraph 8(a) above.  If the City 

desires to have any of the utility lines oversized to accommodate capacity for other developments 

in the MU-KPI Zoning District, the City shall give Developer notice of any oversizing requirement 

that has been approved by the City Engineer prior to City Council’s consideration of a Final 

Development Plan for any portion of the Property.  Developer shall provide City with a good faith 

estimate of the City Material Cost (i.e., the differential in the cost of materials related to oversizing 

such utility lines) for approval by City Council in conjunction with City Council’s consideration 

of a Final Development Plan.   

(b)  Following City’s final inspection of the utility lines and Developer’s receipt of 

written notification from City that the utility lines have been completed in conformance with the 

365



 

 8 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

permitted construction plans and any other applicable construction, permitting or engineering 

requirements, Developer shall convey the utility lines to the City.  Such conveyance shall be free 

and clear of any liens, charges, claims or other encumbrances against title to the utility lines.   

(c)  Upon Developer’s receipt of written notification from City that the utility lines have 

been completed in conformance with the permitted construction plans and any other applicable 

construction, permitting or engineering requirements, Developer shall provide the City with a 

detailed accounting of the total actual costs incurred by Developer for utility materials with 

supporting documentation for all such costs and a calculation of the actual City Material Cost for 

oversizing.   

(d)  Within thirty (30) days of City’s receipt of such accounting, City will reimburse 

Developer for the actual City Material Cost up to the amount stated in the good faith estimate of 

same previously approved by City Council.  If the actual City Materials Cost exceeds the good 

faith estimate, then City Council, at its next regular meeting following City’s receipt from 

Developer of calculations required above, shall review such calculations and may accept or dispute 

the portion of the actual City Materials Cost that exceeds the good faith estimate of same.  If the 

dispute is not resolved within the next two regular City Council meetings following Developer’s 

receipt of notice of such dispute, then Developer shall be free to seek resolution by a court of 

competent jurisdiction.  The Parties shall adjust the calculations at the time any such dispute is 

resolved in accordance with the terms of such resolution.   

12. Stormwater Management.  Developer shall design a stormwater management system for 

the Property that is capable of serving both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Property.  The design of 

the stormwater management system shall comply with requirements of the St. Johns River Water 

Management District (“SJRWMD”) and the City.  Only dry stormwater ponds will be constructed. 

13. Phase 2 Signage.  Developer shall have the discretion to use the same signage theme for 

the Phase 2 Parcel as approved for the Phase 1 Parcel or, alternatively, submit a Master Sign Plan 

for the Phase 2 Parcel that is distinct from the signage in Phase 1.   

14. Development Approvals.  This Agreement shall in no manner constitute a development 

approval regarding the Property or Project.  Developer must comply with all applicable provisions 

of the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Land Development Code regarding the 

development of the Property and the Project. 

(a) Development Review for Subject Property.  A Final Development Plan submittal 

will require review and approval by City in accordance with the processes specified in the Land 

Development Code and shall be consistent with the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan, 

the KPI Form-Based Code in effect as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and the terms of 

this Agreement.  Any substantial changes from the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan 

that are included in the proposed Final Development Plan will require the Final Development Plan 

to be reviewed by, and final action taken by, the Planning Commission and City Council.  

Developer shall provide all information on the Property necessary for the required development 

reviews.  City shall process any other applications, licenses, and permits so long as Developer has 

substantially complied with the approved Final Development Plan and the application 

requirements for each process as set forth in the Land Development Code.   

366



 

 9 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

15. Development of Subject Property.  Except as otherwise set forth herein as the 

responsibility of the City, Developer shall design, permit and construct, at its own cost and 

expense, all Development Improvements related to the Project. 

(a) The Development Improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the 

construction plans approved by City through its standard plans review process. 

(b) At the time of issuance of any building permits for the Project, Developer shall pay 

all applicable impact fees in amounts which are in effect at the time of building permit issuance. 

16. Consistency with City’s Comprehensive Development Plan (“CDP”).  City hereby 

finds that this Agreement is consistent with the CDP and other City governing documents, and is 

a legislative act of the City Council.  City further finds that this Agreement promotes the public 

health, safety, and welfare, and is consistent with, and a proper exercise of, City’s powers under 

the Municipal Home Rule Powers Act, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Florida 

Constitution, Chapter 166.021, Florida Statutes, and City’s police powers. 

17. Amendments and Adjustments to Approved Master Plan / Preliminary Development 

Plan. 

(a) The Parties agree that a Project of this type requires ongoing day-to-day decisions 

that may result in minor or insignificant changes to the Project (in addition to Administrative 

Adjustments).  Such “Minor Adjustments” are those which do not materially affect or modify 

the Project and are typical of developments of this type.  No such Minor Adjustment may modify 

or otherwise adversely impact the criteria outlined in the approved Master Plan / Preliminary 

Development Plan.  Developer is authorized to make such Minor Adjustments as are necessary in 

its professional discretion and in the ordinary course of business with approval of City or the City 

Designee.  If Developer is in doubt as to whether a matter is a Minor Adjustment, Developer may 

from time to time request the concurrence of the City Designee that a particular matter involves a 

Minor Adjustment, which request for concurrence shall be in writing, and which concurrence shall 

also be in writing, shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, and shall be binding 

upon City and the Developer. 

(b) In the event that Orange County determines that additional right-of-way is needed 

for Plymouth-Sorrento Road that encroaches by more than five (5) feet into the approved Master 

Plan / Preliminary Development Plan, the, resulting change to the Master Plan / Preliminary 

Development Plan will be deemed to be a Substantial Change, and Developer will need to resubmit 

Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan to the City for further staff review and for approval 

by the Planning Commission and City Council.   

18. Obligation to Adhere to Requirements of Law.  Developer and City agree that each Party 

and its respective successors and assigns will be bound by the provisions of this Agreement, as 

well as all applicable Federal, State and local laws, as the same may be amended or created from 

time to time.  No clause or provision of this Agreement shall be construed or excuse the observance 

of any requirement of any law by Developer or City.  Failure of this Agreement to address a 

particular permit, condition, term, or restriction shall not relieve Developer or City of the necessity 

of complying with the law governing said permitting requirements, conditions, term, or restriction. 

367



 

 10 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

19. Covenants and Terms. 

The conditions and covenants set forth herein shall be construed as covenants running with the 

Property which shall survive any termination of this Agreement unless otherwise specifically 

stated herein, and shall be binding upon Developer, City and their assigns and successors in 

interest, and shall inure to the benefit of Developer, City and their assigns and successors in 

interest, but shall not be deemed to extend private rights to any person or entity other than the 

Parties hereto and their successors and assigns.  City enters this Agreement based, in part, upon 

Developer’s experience, reputation and expertise.  This Agreement shall not be assignable by 

Developer without City’s prior written approval, which City may provide or withhold in its sole 

discretion.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a Project mortgagee (or its nominee) 

shall acquire title to the Property through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure, such affiliate 

of Developer or Project mortgagee (or its nominee) shall be deemed a permitted assignee under 

this Agreement, provided such assignee gives City prompt notice of the acquisition thereby of the 

Property, and such assignee agrees to assume and timely perform all of the covenants and 

obligations of Developer under this Agreement accruing from and after the date of such acquisition 

of title.  This Agreement shall be effective for a period of twenty (20) years following the Effective 

Date unless sooner terminated by Developer or City pursuant to a specific right of termination set 

forth in this Agreement.  Once the Project has been completed and all obligations herein satisfied, 

this Agreement shall be deemed terminated except as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Within 

fifteen (15) days following the written request of Developer, City shall execute an instrument in 

recordable form acknowledging that the any and all obligations under and pursuant to this 

Agreement have been fully satisfied and performed, and that this Agreement has terminated, or if 

termination has not then occurred, specifying which, if any, obligations under this Agreement 

remain unsatisfied or unperformed, and Developer may record any such instrument in the Public 

Records of Orange County, Florida. 

20. Cooperation.  Developer and City shall reasonably cooperate with each other and act in 

good faith to achieve the terms, conditions, and intentions of this Agreement, particularly with 

regard to specific dates set forth herein.  In connection with Developer’s applications for City 

development licenses, permits and approvals necessary to construct the Project and Development 

Improvements in accordance with the final development plan, City agrees to process and review 

any and all applications associated with Developer’s licenses, permits (including building permits) 

and approvals in good faith and in a prompt and diligent manner.  However, Developer recognizes 

and concedes that, in the exercise of its regulatory police power, City must review and act upon 

Developer’s permit applications in substantially the same manner as in the case of applications for 

all other property owners, and City’s decision-making in the course of exercising its police power 

cannot be waived, divested, or otherwise diminished by contract.  City further agrees to formally 

designate the City Administrator or his designee to facilitate approvals, expedite permits and to 

act as liaison between City and Developer. 

21. Amendments.  This Agreement may not be amended, unless evidenced in writing and 

executed by all Parties hereto. 

22. Indemnification.  Developer shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless City from and 

against any and all suits, claims, damages, losses, liabilities, reasonable costs and expenses 

whatsoever (including attorneys’ fees), which City may incur (or which may be claimed against 

368



 

 11 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

City by any party whomsoever) by reasons of or in connection with the design, construction or 

maintenance of the Development Improvements and public infrastructure.  Nothing herein shall 

require Developer to indemnify City or its agents for their own negligence.  This Paragraph 22 

shall survive expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

23. Default.  Failure by either Party to perform any of its obligations hereunder, including the 

failure of Developer to diligently prosecute or perform its obligations hereunder, shall constitute a 

default, entitling any non-defaulting Party to pursue such remedies as may be available to it under 

Florida law or equity, including, without limitation, an action for specific performance and/or 

injunctive relief or termination hereof.  Prior to termination of this Agreement or either Party filing 

an action as a result of a default under this Agreement, the non-defaulting Party shall first provide 

the defaulting Party with written notice of said default.  Upon receipt of said notice, the defaulting 

Party shall be provided a thirty (30) day opportunity in which to cure the default, except where 

otherwise provided herein. 

24. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of default, the prevailing Party shall have the right to recover 

all reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs incurred as a result thereof, in addition to all other 

remedies provided herein. 

25. Bankruptcy.  In the event (a) an order or decree is entered appointing a receiver for 

Developer or its assets or (b) a petition is filed by Developer for relief under federal bankruptcy 

laws or any other similar law or statute of the United States, which action is not dismissed, vacated 

or discharged within sixty (60) days after the filing thereof, then City shall have the right to 

terminate immediately this Agreement and accelerate, making immediately due and payable, all 

sums levied against the Property at the time of the occurrence of an event described in (a) or (b) 

above.  The occurrence of an event described in (a) or (b) above shall not afford any person the 

right to refuse, discontinue or defer payment of said sums or to challenge their validity. 

26. No Liability or Monetary Remedy.  Developer hereby acknowledges and agrees that it 

is sophisticated and prudent in business transactions and proceeds at its own risk under advice of 

its own counsel and advisors and without reliance on City, and that City bears no liability for 

direct, indirect or consequential damages.  The only remedy available to Developer for any breach 

by the City is one of mandamus to require City’s specific performance under the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 

27. Force Majeure.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, no Party shall 

be liable for any breach of this Agreement for any delay or failure of performance resulting from 

any cause beyond such Party’s reasonable control, including but not limited to the weather, strikes 

or labor disputes, adverse rulings in third-party lawsuits, casualty, war, terrorist acts, riots or civil 

disturbances, acts of civil or military authorities, or acts of God (individually, a “force majeure”) 

provided the Party affected takes all reasonably necessary steps to resume full performance; 

provided however, that if any such force majeure shall continue for three hundred sixty-five (365) 

consecutive days, any Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without incurring any 

penalty. 

28. Gender, Number and Subtitles.  As used in this Agreement, the plural includes the 

singular, and the singular includes the plural.  Use of one gender includes all genders.  Subtitles of 

369



 

 12 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

Paragraphs used in this Agreement are for convenient reference only and shall not limit, define or 

otherwise affect the substance or construction of provisions of this Agreement. 

29. Notice.  Any notice required or allowed to be delivered hereunder shall be in writing and 

shall be: (a) hand delivered to the official hereinafter designated, effective upon such delivery; (b) 

deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered mail, return receipt 

requested, effective upon receipt of such notice; (c) deposited with a nationally recognized 

overnight courier service (e.g., Federal Express, United Parcel Service, Purolator, Airborne, 

Express Mail, etc.), effective one (1) business day after such deposit; or (d) delivered by  facsimile 

(fax) transmission, effective upon confirmed transmission; addressed to a Party at the address 

specified below, or such other address as from time to time may be provided by written notice: 

City: Edward Bass, City Administrator 

120 East Main Street 

Apopka, Florida 32703 

Telephone: (407) 703-1712 

 

Copy to: Cliff Shepard, Esq. 

Shepard, Smith, Kohlmyer & Hand, P.A. 

2300 Maitland Center Parkway, Suite 100 

Maitland, Florida 32751 

Telephone:  (407) 622-1772 

 

Copy to: Linda Goff, City Clerk 

120 East Main Street 

Apopka, Florida 32703 

Telephone:  (407) 703-1704 

  

Copy to: James Hitt, Community Development Director 

120 East Main Street 

Apopka, Florida 32703 

Telephone:  (407) 703-1712 

  

Developer: Publix Supermarkets, Inc.  

3300 Publix Corporate Parkway 

Lakeland, FL 33811 

Attention:  Vice President, Real Estate 

 

Copy to: Publix Super Markets, Inc.  

Office of the General Counsel 

3300 Publix Corporate Parkway 

Lakeland, FL 33811 

 

30. Severability.  Invalidation of any word, clause, sentence, or section contained herein due 

to illegality, unconstitutionality, or for any other reason and as determined by a court of competent 

jurisdiction shall not act to cause this entire Agreement to be found to be invalid, illegal or 

370



 

 13 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

unconstitutional, and said documents shall be read without such invalid, illegal or unconstitutional 

word, clause, sentence or section. 

31. Recording in Public Records.  A memorandum of this Agreement, executed by both 

Parties shall be recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida.  The City Clerk shall 

ensure the proper recording is accomplished within fourteen (14) days after the execution of this 

Agreement by the Parties. 

32. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 

which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall together 

constitute on and the same instrument. 

33. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties 

with respect to the specific matters contained herein and supersedes all previous discussions, 

understandings, and agreements.  Amendment to or waivers of the provisions herein shall be made 

by the Parties in writing. 

34. Negotiation.  Each Party hereto hereby acknowledges that it was properly represented in 

the negotiation of this Agreement and this Agreement shall not be more strictly construed against 

one Party or the other as a result of such Party’s participation in the drafting of this Agreement. 

35. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties 

signing hereto and their successors and assigns, and no right, nor any cause of action, shall accrue 

to or for the benefit of any third party. 

36. Relationship of the Parties.  This Agreement does not evidence the creation of, nor shall 

it be construed as creating, a partnership or joint venture between City and Developer.  Developer 

cannot create any obligation or responsibility on behalf of City or bind City in any manner.  Each 

Party is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions to enter into this 

Agreement and as to whether the same is appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment 

and upon advice from such advisers as it has deemed necessary.  Each Party acknowledges that 

none of the other Parties hereto is acting as a fiduciary for or an adviser to it in respect of this 

Agreement or any responsibility or obligation contemplated herein.  Developer further represents 

and acknowledges that no one was paid a fee, commission, gift or other consideration by Developer 

as an inducement to entering into this Agreement. 

37. Controlling Law.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall be construed, 

controlled, and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Florida, and all duly adopted 

ordinances, regulations and policies of the City now in effect and those hereinafter adopted. 

38. Venue.  The location for settlement of any and all claims, controversies, or disputes, arising 

out of or relating to any part of this Agreement, or any breach hereof, shall be Orange County, 

Florida. 

39. Personal Liability.  No provision of this Agreement is intended, nor shall any be 

construed, as a covenant of any official (either elected or appointed), director, employee or agent 

of City in an individual capacity and neither shall any such individuals be subject to personal 

liability by reason of any covenant or obligation of City hereunder. 

371



 

 14 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

40. No General Obligation.  In no event shall any obligation of City under this Agreement be 

or constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of City, a pledge of the ad valorem taxing power 

of City, or a general obligation or indebtedness of City within the meaning of the Constitution of 

the State of Florida or any other applicable laws, but shall be payable solely from legally available 

revenues and funds.  Neither Developer nor any other beneficiary of this Agreement shall ever 

have the right to compel the exercise of the ad valorem taxing power of City or any other 

governmental entity or taxation in any form on any real or personal property to pay City’s 

obligations or undertakings hereunder. 

41. Agency.  Developer and City, and their agents, contractors or subcontractors, shall perform 

all activities described in this Agreement as independent entities and not as agents of each other. 

42. Sovereign Immunity.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver 

of City’s right to sovereign immunity for tort claims under and subject to §768.28, Florida 

Statutes. 

43. City’s Police Power and Regulatory Powers.  City hereby reserves all police and 

regulatory powers granted to City by law.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, 

nothing herein shall be construed as City’s bargaining away, surrendering, or in any way 

diminishing its police or regulatory powers. 

44. Interpretation.  The Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that each has participated 

equally in the drafting of this Agreement, and no Party shall be favored or disfavored regarding 

the interpretation of this Agreement in the event of a dispute between the Parties. 

45. Compliance with Public Records Law.  Pursuant to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, 

when the Developer provides services to the City by constructing public infrastructure or 

improving City property under the terms of the Agreement, Developer shall comply with the public 

records laws set forth in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and any successor statute.  Specifically, 

the Developer shall: 

(a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required 

by City in order to perform the service provided to the City; 

(b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions 

that the City would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in 

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or otherwise provided by law; 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 

records disclosure requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law; 

(d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no costs to the 

City, all public records in possession of Developer upon completion, inspection, and issuance of a 

certificate of completion for the completed services on City property, and destroy any duplicate 

public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 

requirements.  All records stored electronically must be provided to City in a format that is 

compatible with the information technology systems of the City 

372



 

 15 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

(e) Upon request of City, Developer shall promptly provide the City with copies of 

public records which pertain to this Agreement. 

(f) In the event that Developer receives a request from any person or entity other than 

the City for a document, computerized information, audio or videotape, CD, DVD, or any other 

record in Developer’s possession pursuant to this Agreement, Developer may notify the City 

immediately and submit the request to the City for direction on how to comply with Florida’s 

Public Records Law.  Developer shall allow the City to inspect the requested record to advise 

Developer if any material therein is exempt or confidential and therefore subject to redaction. 

46. Condemnation.  If, prior to obtaining all necessary permits and approvals to construct the 

Public Infrastructure and/or Development Improvements, all or any part of the Property is 

subjected to a bona fide threat of condemnation by a body having the power of eminent domain or 

is taken by eminent domain or condemnation (or sale in lieu thereof), or if City and/or Developer 

has received written notice that any condemnation action or proceeding with respect to the Property 

is contemplated by a body having the power of eminent domain, each shall give the other 

immediate written notice of such threatened or contemplated condemnation or of such taking or 

sale, and each may, by written notice to the other, given within thirty (30) days after the receipt of 

such notice, elect to cancel this Agreement as it relates to the portion of the Property affected by 

such condemnation.  Further, City agrees not to use its powers of eminent domain in any way 

which would modify or alter the Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan, provided that this 

Paragraph 45 shall not abrogate City’s police powers. 

47. Effective Date.  The “Effective Date” of this Agreement is the date when the 

memorandum of this Agreement is duly recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 

 

 

 

(Signatures on Following Pages) 

373



 

 16 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year approved and signed. 

 

 

Witnesses: 

 

  

Print Name  

 

  

Print Name  

PUBLIX SUPERMARKETS, INC., a Florida 

Corporation  

 

By:   

Print Name:   

Title:  

  

 Dated:  _____________________ 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF __________________ 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of 

_____________________, 2018, by _____________________, as ________ of 

_____________________, a _____________________, on behalf of said entity.  He/She is 

personally known to me or who has produced ___________________________ as identification. 

 

   

Notary Public 

Name:  

(Printed or Typed) 

Commission No.  

My Commission Expires:  

 

  

(Signatures Continued on Next Page) 

  

374



 

 17 
0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

  

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

ACCEPTED BY THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

BY:  

 Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

 

Dated:  

 

  

Approved as to form for use and 

reliance upon by the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 

  

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

  

375



 

 

0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

EXHIBIT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

NORTH 1/2 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20S, RANGE 27E (LESS 

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY), ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

 

WHICH IS ALSO DESCRIBED AS: 

 

NORTH 1/2 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20S, RANGE 27E (LESS 

ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY TAKEN PURSUANT TO (I) THAT CERTAIN INDENTURE RECORDED IN DEED 

BOOK 398, PAGE 188 AND (II) THAT CERTAIN STIPULATED ORDER OF TAKING AS TO PARCEL 207 

RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 10756, PAGE 6799 AND DOCUMENT NUMBER 20140285830), 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

ALL THE ABOVE BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, 

TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 20 

SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, RUN THENCE NORTH 88°20'47" EAST ALONG 

THE NORTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4, A DISTANCE OF 1,357.89 FEET TO ITS INTERSECTION 

WITH THE WEST LINE OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4; THENCE DEPARTING SAID 

NORTH LINE RUN SOUTH 00°14'36" EAST ALONG SAID WEST LINE A DISTANCE OF 30.01 FEET TO THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 10756, PAGE 6799, 

PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; RUN THENCE THE FOLLOWING FIVE (5) COURSES 

AND DISTANCE ALONG THE WESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY LINES OF SAID OFFICIAL RECORDS 

BOOK:  

 

(1) SOUTH 00°14'36" EAST A DISTANCE OF 29.88 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID POINT BEING 

A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KELLY PARK ROAD PER SAID OFFICIAL RECORDS 

BOOK; (2) N87°44'58"E A DISTANCE OF 561.08 FEET; (3) N88°21'18"E A DISTANCE OF 724.60 FEET TO A 

NON-TANGENT POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, 

A CHORD BEARING OF S45°44'45"E, A CHORD DISTANCE OF 35.91 FEET; (4) SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG 

THE ARC OF SAID CURVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 91°48'44", A DISTANCE OF 40.06 FEET TO 

A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY, SAID POINT BEING A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 

PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD; (5) S00°09'11"W ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND SAID 

OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK A DISTANCE OF 581.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE LINE SOUTH LINE OF 

THE NORTH 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 13; THENCE 

S88°34'31"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1,306.99 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE 

OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 13; THENCE N00°14'36"W ALONG 

SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 596.34 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINS 789,753 SQUARE FEET OR 18.130 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-008 

376



 

 

0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

EXHIBIT “B” 

MASTER PLAN / PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

377



KELLY PARK ROAD
(VARIABLE WIDTH PUBLIC R/W)

NOT PLATTED
OWNER: CENTRAL FLORIDA
EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-007
ORB 10778, PG 1273

W. LINE, NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

BAY RIDGE HEIGHTS
PB "X", PG 143

LOT 1LOT 2

30' R/W PER, DB 398, PG 188

S. LINE N. 1/2
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27
(BEARING BASIS)

E. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

N
00

°1
4'

36
"W

  5
96

.3
4'

 D
ES

C

N87°44'58"E  561.08' D&M
N88°21'18"E  724.60' D&M

S0
0°

09
'1

1"
W

  5
81

.6
2'

 D
&

M

S88°34'31"W  1306.99' D&M
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

OW

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

1.2'

6' CLF6' METAL FENCE

6' METAL FENCE
2.9'

0.3'E

COLUMN
(TYP)

6' CLF

CBW

CBW

1.4'

6' METAL FENCE

TRAFFIC BOX
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

POB
SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

RETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREARETENTION AREA

RETENTION AREA

FND 4"x4" CM
RLS #1916

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

FND 4"x4" CM
NO #

N
00
°1
4'
36
"W
  5
96
.3
5'
 M
EA
S

C1

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

SET 1/2" IR
LB #4475

STOP BAR

STOP BARYELLOW LINE

YELLOW LINE
YELLOW LINE
WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

WHITE LINE

YE
LL

O
W

 L
IN

E

W
HI

TE
 L

IN
E

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

1.6'

6' CLF 6' CLF

0.9'N

CONTIGUOUS WITH
W. R/W LINE

CONTIGUOUS WITH
S. R/W LINE

PARCEL ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

A

B

B

N88°20'47"E
1357.89' DESC

POC
NE CORNER
NE 1/4, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

S. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

W. LINE
ORB 10756, PG 6799

NT

NT

N. LINE, NE 1/4
SECTION 13-20-27

L2
L3

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

R
E
U

S
E

D
D

O

N

L
Y

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

O
N

L
Y

O
N

L
Y

O

N

L
Y

8 spaces

10 spaces

D D

4 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
+

1
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

5 spaces

6 spaces

9
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8 spaces

5
+

2
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

7 spaces

8 spaces

1
0
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

6+2 spaces

8 spaces

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

3
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

8
 
s
p
a
c
e
s

ONLY

ONLY

O
N

L
Y

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 
S

U
M

M
IT

T
, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master Plan/Preliminary
Development Plan

4 10a

Overall Site
Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p
ri

l 
8
, 
2
0
1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

SOILS LEGEND:

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (0-5%)

CHANDLER FINE SANDS (5-12%)

CHANDLER APOPKA FINE SANDS

4

5

6

SITE DATA:

Parcel I.D. #: 13-20-27-0000-00-008

Existing FLU: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Existing Zoning: A-1

Proposed Zoning: Wekiva Parkway Interchange Mixed-Use (MU-WPI)

Design District: Village Center

Allowable Uses: All uses allowed under Section F Table 2 (Village Center)

Gross Land Area:   18.13 acres

Non-Developable Area:     0.00 acres

Dedicated ROW Area:     1.39 acres

Net Developable Area:   16.74 acres

Proposed Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1A-D)

Total Commercial Sqft.: 68,231 sqft. (phase 1)

Proposed Floor Area Ratio: 0.16 F.A.R.

Minimum Lot Width: 80'

Minimum Lot Depth: N/A

Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 sqft.

Maximum ISR: 90%

Minimum Open Space %: 10% (Common Open Space)

Setbacks:

Front: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Side: 0', 20'(adjacent to Neighborhood)

Side Street: 8' Min.; 20' Max.

Rear: 10' Min.; 20' Max.

Kelly Park Rd.: 8' Min.; 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Plymouth Sorrento Rd.: 8' Min.' 20' Max. (from ROW line)

Additional Notes:

1.Billboards  and  pole  signs  shall  be  prohibited.

2.There are no onsite wetland areas, existing ponds are not considered surface waters.

3.All common areas to maintained by a Property Owners Association.

Off-Street Parking:

Required Parking:

Block B "Publix"

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.:  (46,031 sqft. (phase 1A))=   162

Total Required Parking:                       162

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:         230 spaces

Handicap 12X20 Parking Spaces Provided:    7 spaces

Total Parking Provided:                237 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                     7 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:             8 spaces

  Block B (Building 1)

  Restaurant Space:  4 space + 1 space per 3 Seats:  (80 seats) =   31

Total Required Parking:      31

Provided Parking:

Surface 10X18 Parking Spaces Provided:       32 spaces

Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              33 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 2)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1b)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

  Block A (Building 1)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (7,200 sqft. (phase 1c)) =   26

Total Required Parking:                 26

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             27 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 2 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              29 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 2 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         2 spaces

  Block B (Building 3)

Commercial Retail Space:  3.5spaces per 1,000 sqft.: (6,000 sqft. (phase 1d)) =   21

Total Required Parking:                 21

Provided Parking:

Surface 9X18 Parking Spaces Provided:             22 spaces

  Handicap 12X18 Parking Spaces Provided: 1 spaces

Total Parking Provided:              23 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Required:                 1 spaces

Total Handicap Parking Provided:         1 spaces

Phasing:

Project will be constructed in multiple phases see phasing plan for details.

Stormwater Management:

The project will meet the requirements for the City of Apopka Code Sec. 6.05 and the

requirements of the St. Johns Rivier Water Management District.

Needed Fire Flow (NFF): (Based on FFPC 2012 Edition Chapter 18 & Annex I)

Phase 1A: 3,750 gpm (Type II 200 non-sprinklered);  1,875 gpm sprinklered

Building 1 Phase 1B: 1,500 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Building 2 Phase 1B: 2,000 gpm (Type V 200 non-sprinklered);   1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Phase 1C: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered

Phase 1D: 1,750 gpm (Type III 200 non-sprinklered); 1,000 gpm sprinklered)

Trip Generation Rates:

Average Daily Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 3,164 trips/day

Phase 1B:   9,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 619 trips/day

Phase 1C:   7,200 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 495 trips/day

Phase 1D:   6,000 sqft x 68.73 trips/1,000sqft. x day = 412 trips/day

          Total ADT = 4,690 trips/day

PM Peak Hour Trips: Phase 1A: 46,031 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day =  279 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1B: 9,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   55 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1C: 7,200 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   44 PM Peak Trips

Phase 1D: 6,000 sqft x 6.06 trips/1,000 sqft. x day   =   37 PM Peak Trips

       Total PM Peak Trips = 415 PM Peak Trips

Form Based Code Requirements:

1.Per Section 4.C of the FBC, buildings exceeding 20,000 square feet in area must be articulated to appear

as multiple buildings grouped together.

2.Per Section 7.b of the FBC, all non-residential first floor requires a minimum of 30% glazing.

3.Per Section 3 of the FBC, all building facades shall be designed with Articulation.

4.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, all building mechanical equipment shall be integrated into the overall mass of

a building by screening the equipment behind parapets or recessing equipment into hips, gables or similar

features.

5.Per Section K.11 of the FBC, shopping cart storage shall be located inside the building or shall be screened

by a 4-foot wall consistent with the building architecture and materials.

6.Per Section K.3 of the FBC, Green Building principles are encouraged for development with the FBC

boundary.

7.Per Section M of the FBC , Section 5.01.00 and Water Wise Ordinance 2069; a landscape and irrigation

plan shall be prepared by a Florida licensed Landscape Architect and submitted with the Final Development

Plan.

8.Per Section 5.01.07 of the City Code a Tree Removal and Replacement plan shall be provided with the Final

Development Plan.

9.Per Section P(e) of the FBC, a photometric plan showing light fixtures and footcandle measurements shall

be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

10. Per Section O of the FBC, all signage shall be consistent with the requirements of the FBC and a master

sign plan shall be submitted with the Final Development Plan.

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

5

5

5

6

BLOCK B

PUBLIX

SUPERMARKET

 BUILDING 1

46,031 SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 2

3,000

SQFT.

BLOCK B

 BUILDING 3

6,000

SQFT.

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
4

6
,
0
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

 
B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

7
,
2
0
0
 
S
Q

F
T
.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

BLOCK C

 FUTURE DEVELOPEMNT

7.33 AC.

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

S
T
R
E
E
T
 
T
Y
P
E
 
B

T
H

O
R
O

U
G

H
F
A
R
E

(
1
0
0
'
 
R
O

W
)

OUTPARCEL

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

 0.90 AC.

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

LANDSCAPE GATEWAY

ENTRY FEATURE W/

WATER FEATURE

100.0'

(PUBLIC ROW)

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

0

60 60 120 24030

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: NURSERY

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
S
I
N

G
L
E
-
F
A
M

I
L
Y
 
 
R
E
S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A
L

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL (COUNTY)

 ZONING: A-1

EXISTING USE: SINGLE-FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL

F
U

T
U

R
E
 
L
A
N

D
 
U

S
E
:
 
R
U

R
A
L
 
(
C
O

U
N

T
Y
)

Z
O

N
I
N

G
:
 
A
-
1

E
X
I
S
T
I
N

G
 
U

S
E
:
 
W

E
K
I
V
A
 
P
A
R
K
W

A
Y

(
S
.
R
.
 
4
2
9
)

BLOCK B

TEMPORARY

RETENTION

POND

MONUMENT

SIGN

MONUMENT

SIGN

378



 

 

0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

EXHIBIT “C”  

CONFIGURATION OF PHASE 1 AND PHASE 2 PARCELS FOLLOWING LOT SPLIT 

 

379



O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

O
W

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

D
D

D D

Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746
phone:  407-323-0705
fax:  407-992-8650

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

Revisions

P
la

n
s 

n
o

t 
v

al
id

 u
n

le
ss

 S
ig

n
ed

,
D

at
ed

 a
n

d
 S

ea
le

d
 b

el
o

w
.

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

D
at

e:
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
F

L
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 #
5

8
7

7
5

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

 o
f 

A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 #

2
9

6
6

5

G
E

O
F

F
R

E
Y

 L
. 

S
U

M
M

IT
T

, 
P

.E
.

OF

c/o Pasadena Capital, Inc.
200 Pasadena Place
Orlando, FL  32803

(407) 835-9000
----

Kelly Park Rd.
Publix Center

City of Apopka, Florida
Final Master Plan/Preliminary
Development Plan

- 10a

Zoning Overlay
Plan

Publix Supermarkets, Inc.

A
p

ri
l 

8
, 

2
0

1
8

01/18 Initial Plans Release

Revised For City Of Apopka Comments04-18

--------

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

----

----

----

####

####

####

####

0

50 50 100 20025

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

KELLY PARK ROAD (ROW VARIES)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

C
.
R
.
4
3
7

P
L
Y
M

O
U

T
H

 
S
O

R
R
E
N

T
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
R
O

W
 
V
A
R
I
E
S
)

KPI VILLAGE CENTER OVERLAY 10.80 AC.

KPI INTERCHANGE OVERLAY  7.33 AC.

ZONING OVERLAY HATCH/AREA LEGEND:

BLOCK B

BUILDING 1

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK B

BUILDING 2

BLOCK B

BUILDING 3

B
L
O

C
K
 
B

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
4

B
L
O

C
K
 
A

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
1

BLOCK A

PARCEL 1

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK C

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK A

BLOCK ABLOCK A

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

BLOCK B

380



 

 

0058683\174922\5389849.v17 

EXHIBIT “D” 

APPROVED THOROUGHFARE CROSS-SECTION 

 

 

 

381



Office:  Lake Mary
3667 Simonton Place
Lake Mary, Florida  32746

THOROUGHFARE ROADWAY SECTION DETAIL103
- N.T.S. (DESIGN SPEED: 30 MPH POSTED 20 MPH)

BL

100'

TYPE 'E' CURB
& GUTTER

2%

2'-3"

2%

2'-3"

2.5" TYPE SP9.5
ASPHALT

2%

R
.O

.W
.

6'
SOD

2'

2% 2%

PARALLEL
PARKING

9' 2'
SOD

6'

R
.O

.W
.

SIDEWALK
8'

50' 50'

TYPE 'F' CURB
& GUTTER

2' CURB
& GUTTER

10" CRUSHED CONCRETE/LIMEROCK
BASE.  MIN. LBR 100
 98% MIN. AASHTO T-180 DENSITY

12" STABLIZED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

AND MIN. 50 FBV12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

2%2%

SIDEWALK
8' 3.75'

2%

PGL

BIKE LANE
7'

DRIVE ISLE
12'

PARALLEL
PARKING

9'
BIKE LANE

7'
DRIVE ISLE

12'

TYPE 'F' CURB
& GUTTER

MEDIAN
3.75'

MEDIAN

382



 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Aerial Map 

    Ordinance No. 2667 

    PUD Master Plan/PDP 

    Architectural Elevations 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2667 – CHANGE OF ZONING – VISTA RESERVE 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2667 - CHANGE OF ZONING –FROM 

R-1AA (RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY DISTRICT) TO PUD (PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT); AND APPROVAL OF THE PUD MASTER 

PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR VISTA RESERVE. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNERS:    Mikhail Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, Wafeek 

Abdelsayed Wafeek 
 
APPLICANT:    Pulte Home Corporation  
 
LOCATION: East side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the 

intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Low Density Residential 
 
CURRENT ZONING: R-1AA (Residential Single Family District)  
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 153 single family homes; developed in one phase 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    61.1 +/- acres 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
 

383



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

SUMMARY:  The subject property is approximately 61.1 acres in size and is zoned R-1AA (Residential 

Single Family District) and has a future land use designation of Low Density Residential. The subject 

property is located on the east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection 

of Rogers Road and Lester Road. The proposed change of zoning to PUD (Planned Unit Development) is 

being requested by the prospective developer, Pulte Homes, who proposes to construct 153 single-family 

units in one phase on the property. The subdivision is proposed to be developed at a density of 2.53 dwelling 

units per acre. The Low Density Residential future land use designation permits up to 3.5 dwelling units 

per acre.  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   The Master Plan proposes 153 lots consistent of 140 65-foot wide lots and 

13 90-foot wide lots, a community park with a swimming pool and cabana and tot-lot, and a buffer tract 

along the entire perimeter of the community.  Further, access occurs via Rogers Road. The surrounding 

properties consist primarily of single-family residential subdivisions and include the Carriage Hills 

subdivision located to the south, which is currently under construction; Oak Hill Reserve to the south and 

east; and Wekiva Run to the west. Average lot widths in the Carriage Hills subdivision is 75-feet, Oak Hill 

Reserve is 95-feet, and 95-feet in Wekiva Run.  

 

A.  Lot Size. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

While a PUD zoning requires a minimum lot width of 70 feet with a minimum lot area of 7,500 sq. ft., Vista 

Reserve proposes 65-foot and 90-foot wide lots with a minimum average lot area of 8,125 square feet for 

the 65-foot wide lots and 11,250 square feet for the 90-foot wide lots, contained within an open space tract 

not less than 15 feet wide on the north, east, and south project lines and 10 feet wide on the western project 

line abutting Rogers Road. The minimum lot depth is proposed at 125-feet.  

 

The minimum living area is proposed at 2,190 square feet. The subdivision will be accessed via Rogers 

Road. Rogers Road will terminate at the main entrance of the development. The developer will be dedicating 

a 0.68 acre portion of right-of-way along Rogers Road to the City. The subdivision will consist of public 

roads and infrastructure that is owned and maintained by the City. Vehicular and pedestrian connections are 

provided to the property to the north and to the Carriage Hills subdivision located to the south. A continuous 

open space tract is provided around the perimeter of the subdivision to buffer the homes from the 

surrounding existing subdivisions. Thirty percent of the site, or 18.13 acres of open space is provided, and 

will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. Two tracts located on the northwestern and 

northeastern corners of the site are reserved for stormwater retention. The stormwater retention areas will 

be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. A 1.67 acre tract is reserved for the community 

recreation facility that will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association. Included within the 

recreation facility is a picnic area, pool, pool cabana building, play structure, open play area, bicycle 

parking, and a parking area for 8 cars.    

 

 

Typical Lot 

Width 
Number of units 

Percentage of 

development 

Typical lot area 

(minimum size) 

65-feet 140 91.5% 8,125 square feet 

90-feet 13 8.5% 11,250 square feet 

Total 153            100%  

384



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

B. Deviations. The applicant is requesting one deviation to the City’s required development standards.  For 

a PUD Master Plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a variance 

but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned Unit 

Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land Development Code 

unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development 

guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  Any deviations must be 

consistent with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. Typical Lot Width Standard, Land Development Code Section 2.02.18.D.11. requires a minimum 

lot size within a PUD to be 70-feet in width, and to have a minimum site area of 7,500 square feet. 

The developer is proposing 140, 65-foot and 13, 90-foot wide lots with minimum lots sizes of 8,125 

square feet and 11,250 square feet respectively. These lot sizes exceed the required single-family 

minimum lot area of 7,500 square feet.  

 

C. Justification for Deviations/Development Standard.  The following justifications are provided for the 

three deviations that are proposed. 

 

1. Reduced Density. The future land use designation of the property is Low Density Residential which 

allows up to 3.5 dwelling units per acre. The PUD Master Plan proposes a density of 2.53 dwelling 

units per acre, which is 0.97 dwelling units per acre less than the maximum density permitted in the 

Low Density Residential future land use category. 

 

2. Dedication of right-of-way for the extension of Rogers Road. The PUD Master Plan proposes the 

dedication to the City of a 0.68 acre tract for right-of-way for Rogers Road. This will allow for the 

future extension of Rogers Road to the north to allow Rogers Road to serve as a future connector 

road between Ponkan Road and Lester Road.  

 

3. An improved recreation amenities package is proposed. The recreation package will consist of a 

picnic area, pool, pool cabana building, play structure, open play area, bicycle parking, and a parking 

area for 8 cars. The recreation area is proposed at 1.67 acres in size, which is in excess of the 1.43 

acres required by code.  

 

4. Preservation of Open Space.  The PUD master plan provides a continuous open space tract is around 

the perimeter of the subdivision to buffer the homes from the surrounding existing subdivisions. 

This area will consist of Bahia sod and Live Oak and Magnolia trees, which upon maturity is 

anticipated to ensure the homes within the development are not visible from the surrounding existing 

residential subdivisions.  

 

5. Increased minimum living area size. The applicant is proposing a minimum living area of 2,190 

square feet. The R-1AA zoning district requires a minimum living area of 1,700 square feet.  Also, 

the larger lots, the 90-foot width, are located on the eastern project perimeter consistent with lot 

width and size occurring in the Oak Hill Reserve community abutting to the east. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 

with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

385



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 
 
B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 

these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 

the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Low Density Residential Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Land Development Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Per Orange County Public Schools, the project is vested to satisfy 

capacity, however there are outstanding concurrency issues that will be required to be satisfied prior to 

approval of a plat.  

 

TRANSPORTATION IMPACTS:  A transportation impact analysis (TIA) was conducted for this project 

to assess its impacts on the surrounding roadway segments and intersections within a one-mile radius of the 

project per the City’s adopted TIA methodology. Included in the analysis were segments of Ponkan Road, 

Lester Road, Vick Road, and Plymouth Sorrento Road (CR 437). Intersections analyzed were Lester Road 

and Rogers Road; Plymouth Sorrento Road and Lester Road; Lester Road and Schopke Lester Road; Vick 

Road and Lester Road; and the site entrance on Rogers Road. Right and left turn lane warrant studies for 

Lester Road at its intersection with Rogers Road were also conducted. 

 

The project will generate 1,511 daily trips and 150 P.M. Peak Hour trips. The addition of these project trips 

to the study roadways will not cause the Level of Service (LOS) to fall below the City’s adopted LOS. The 

existing conditions analysis of the intersection of Lester Road and Vick Road, with committed trips included 

(background conditions) indicates that the northbound approach in the P.M. peak hour is failing.  The 

project traffic does not cause this failure and only represents approximately 6% of total P.M. peak hour 

intersection traffic volumes (84 project trips/1,391 total trips).   

 

Right and left turn warrant analyses were conducted on Lester Road to Rogers Road. The analysis concludes 

that deceleration and turn lanes are not needed to accommodate the project trips. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

notification to Orange County is not required for a rezoning application as the subject parcels are not 

adjacent to unincorporated Orange County.  

  

386



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

June 12, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

July 18, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 1, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 1, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

July 20, 2018 – Public Notice 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development (PUD), 

PUD Master Plan, and the Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Vista Reserve Planned Unit Development Master 

Plan and Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on June 12, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan; and unanimously recommend approval of the proposed Change of Zoning 

from R-1AA (Residential Single Family District) to PUD (Planned Unit Development); and approval of the 

PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff 

report and exhibits for the property owned by Mikhail Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, and 

Wafeek Abdelsayed and located east side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the 

intersection of Rogers Road and Lester Road. 

  

The City Council, at its meeting on July 18, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2667 and 

the Vista Reserve Master Plan and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on August 1, 2018.  

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2667; and approve the PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan based on the 

findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

387



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant, Lake Merril 

East (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) PUD  Oak Hill Reserve subdivision  

South (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA, R-1 Carriage Hills subdivision (under 

construction), Vacant property 

West (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Wekiva Run subdivision  

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Rogers Road. Internal streets are public 

and will be owned and maintained by the City of Apopka. Future land 
use designations and zoning categories assigned to properties to the 
north, south, east, and west are predominantly residential.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan. 
  

388



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 
Project: VISTA RESERVE 

Owned by:  Mikhail Wafaa, Abdelsayed George, Abdelsayed Lucy, Abdelsayed Wafeek 
Located:         East side of Rogers Road, approximately one half mile north of the intersection of  

Rogers Road and Lester Road 
Parcel ID#: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 

 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

389



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

390



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 

VISTA RESERVE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 
 

 

391



ORDINANCE NO. 2667 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL SINGLE-FAMILY DISTRICT (R-1AA) TO 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD), FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF ROGERS 

ROAD, APPROXIMATELY ONE-HALF MILE NORTH OF THE 

INTERSECTION OF ROGERS ROAD AND LESTER ROAD, COMPRISING 

61.1 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY MIKHAIL WAFAA, 

GEORGE ABDELSAYED, LUCY ABDELSAYED, AND WAFEEK 

ABDELSAYED; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  Mikhail Wafaa, George Abdelsayed, Lucy Abdelsayed, and Wafeek 
Abdelsayed have requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in Section I of this 
ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following property described in Exhibit “A” 
is designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development 
Code, and with the following Master Site Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated 
accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and development standards 
established for the PUD district except where otherwise addressed in this ordinance and 
the Master Site Plan. 

 
B.   Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth in 

Exhibit “B”.  If a development standard or zoning regulation is not addressed within 
Exhibit “B”, development shall comply with the PUD zoning standards set forth in the 
Land Development Code.  Where any development standard conflicts between the Vista 
Reserve Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan and the Land Development Code, the 
Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall prevail.  Any proposed revision to the 
Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall be evaluated and processed pursuant to 
Section 2.02.18.N. (Master Plan revision), LDC. 

 
C.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by 

the City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of 
the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan provisions will expire. At such time, the 
City Council may: 

 
 

392



ORDINANCE NO. 2667 

PAGE 2 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 
Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 
new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 
3.  Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 

in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD) as defined in the Apopka 
Land Development Code. 
 

Legal Description:  Exhibit “A” 
 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 
City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 
authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 
include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                     
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: June 1, 2018; July 20, 2018 
      
  

 
READ FIRST TIME:  July 18, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     August 1, 2018 

393



ORDINANCE NO. 2667 

PAGE 3 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcel ID: 29-20-28-0000-00-003 
Combined Acreage: 61.1 +/- Acres 

 

 
 

 

394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



410



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: August 1, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 

    Ordinance No. 2345 

    Ordinance No. 2668 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2668 TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2345, TO ALLOW 

A MAXIMUM OF 92 CAMPGROUND SITES AT THE ORANGE 

BLOSSOM APOPKA RV RESORT 

    

REQUEST:  SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2668 TO AMEND 

ORDINANCE NO. 2345, TO ALLOW A MAXIMUM OF 92 CAMPGROUND 

SITES AT THE ORANGE BLOSSOM APOPKA RV RESORT. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort Inc., c/o Robert Vesely 
 
LOCATION: 3800 W. Orange Blossom Trail 

 

PARCEL ID #:  36-20-27-0000-00-020 
 

LAND USE:   Mixed Use 
 
ZONING:   PUD   
 
EXISTING USE:  RV Resort Park (Caravan Park) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Maintain existing RV Resort Park, with 81 approved lots, and add 11 lots. 
 
TOTAL ACRES:  10.2 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  

441



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL APOPKA KOA CAMPGROUND PUD AMENDMENT  
PAGE 2 
 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural P-D Woodlands 

East (City) Industrial ZIP Warehouse 

South (City) Agriculture and Mixed Use AG, ZIP, I-1 Greenhouse, Outdoor Storage, and 
Single Family Homes 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Greenhouse 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject property is located at 3800 West Orange Blossom Trail. 
Annexed on January 16, 2008, via Ordinance number 2006, the site comprised of a RV Resort Park. On 
January 15, 2014, the subject area was assigned PUD zoning, via Ordinance number 2345. 
 
Ordinance 2345 permits 81 campground sites for recreation vehicles, campers, or manufactured homes for 
commercial temporary lodging and associated accessory uses or structures. Any additional campground 
sites must be approved by City Council. The applicant proposes 11 additional sites along the southern 
boundary line. Parallel to the southern boundary line is a solid, opaque fence and Fudge Road. The 
predominant uses south of Fudge Road are mostly agriculture and industrial oriented. Due to the 
surrounding uses, staff does not object to 11 additional campground sites along the southern border.  
 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance:  The proposed amendment to Ordinance 2345 is consistent with the City’s 
Mixed Use Future Land Use category. Development plans shall not exceed the intensity allowed under the 
adopted Mixed Use Future Land Use designation. 
 
Land Use Compatibility:  The Property is located on a major arterial road (West Orange Blossom Trail).The 
proposed amendment to Ordinance 2345 will not create any land use or traffic compatibility issues with adjacent 
uses. Development of the site must occur consistent with standards set forth in the Land Development Code and 
Development Design Guidelines unless otherwise approved within the PUD master plan. 
 
PROPOSED PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: The PUD recommendations are that the zoning 
classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as 
defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions: 
 
Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master 
Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district are: 
 

 A maximum of 92 81 campground sites for recreation vehicles, campers, or manufactured homes 
for commercial temporary lodging and associated accessory uses or structures. Any additional 
campground sites must be approved by the City Council. 

 
 One permanent single family residential structure or manufacture home for the campground 

operator. 
 

 Outdoor storage of recreation vehicles or campers, boats, and boat trailers, and outdoor recreational 
motor craft. Outdoor storage of automobiles, commercial trucks and trailers, and other large vehicles 
is not allowed. 

442



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL APOPKA KOA CAMPGROUND PUD AMENDMENT  
PAGE 3 
 

 

 Any use or activity allowed within the C-1 commercial zoning category. Development standards 
and setbacks shall comply with those established for the C-1 zoning category unless otherwise 
approved by the City Council within the Master Plan. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission – July 10, 2018, 5:30 p.m. 
City Council – July 18, 2018, 7:00 p.m. – First Reading 
City Council – August 1, 2018, 1:30 p.m. – Second Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 22, 2018 - Public Notice (Apopka Chief Letter, Poster) 

July 20, 2018 - Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the amendment to Ordinance 2345, 
for the property owned by Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort Inc., located at 3800 West Orange Blossom 
Trail, subject to PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 10, 2018, found the proposed PUD amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and unanimously recommended 
approval to amend Ordinance 2345, to allow a maximum of 92 campground sites at the Orange Blossom 
Apopka RV Resort owned by Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort, Inc., located at 3800 West Orange 
Blossom Trail. 

The City Council, at its meeting on July 18, 2018, accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2668 and 
held it over for second reading and adoption on August 1, 2018. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2668. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

443



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL APOPKA KOA CAMPGROUND PUD AMENDMENT  
PAGE 4 
 

 

Application:  PUD Master Plan Amendment   

Owner/Applicant: Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort Inc., c/o Robert Vesely 

Parcel ID Nos.:   36-20-27-0000-00-020 

Total Acres:  10.2 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
444



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL APOPKA KOA CAMPGROUND PUD AMENDMENT  
PAGE 5 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

445



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 1, 2018 
ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL APOPKA KOA CAMPGROUND PUD AMENDMENT  
PAGE 6 
 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

446



2 

5 

4 

3 

1 

8 

9 

11 

10 

7 

6 X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

447



448



449



450



ORDINANCE NO. 2668 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE 2345, WHICH AMENDS THE ADOPTED “KOA 

CAMPGROUND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER 

PLAN” FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3800 WEST 

ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 10.2 ACRES MORE OR 

LESS; OWNED BY ORANGE BLOSSOM APOPKA RV RESORT INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, to manage growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 

public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, Robert Vesely, property owner, has requested to amend, repeal and replace 

Ordinance 2345, adopted on January 15, 2014, with Ordinance 2668. 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2668 has been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 

as follows: 

 

Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 

Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 

the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: 

 

1. A maximum of ninety-two (92) campground sites for recreational vehicles, campers, 

or manufactured homes for commercial temporary lodging and associated accessory 

uses or structures. Any additional campground sites must be approved by City Council. 

 

2. One permanent single family residential structure or manufacture home for the 

campground operator. 

 

3. Outdoor storage of recreation vehicles or campers, boats and boat trailers, and outdoor 

recreational motor craft. Outdoor storage of automobiles, commercial trucks and 

trailers, and other large vehicles is not allowed. 

 

4. Any use or activity allowed within the C-1 commercial zoning category. Development 

standards and setbacks shall comply with those established for the C-1 zoning category 

unless otherwise approved by the City Council within the Master Site Plan. 

 

B. Master Plan requirements, as enumerated in Section 2.02.18 K. of the Apopka Land 

Development Code, not addressed herein are hereby deferred until the submittal and review 

of the Preliminary or Final Development Plan or Redevelopment Plan submitted in 

association with the PUD district. 
451



ORDINANCE NO. 2668 

PAGE 2 

 

 

C. Unless otherwise approved by City Council through an alternative development guideline 

for the master site plan, the C-1 zoning standards shall apply to the development of the 

subject property. 

 

D. The campground must follow the Florida Fire Prevention Code regarding "open fires." All 

open fires on the campground property shall be contained in a metal type fire pit with a 

screen placed on the top. Any fire, regardless of type, shall not be placed under any type of 

canopy overhang. A barbeque grill shall not be placed closer than ten (10) feet from any 

mobile or fixed structure. Any deviation from these conditions addressing the location of 

open fires or grills must be approved by the Apopka Fire Chief on a case-by-case basis. 

 

Section II. That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 

in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD - 

Campground/Commercial) as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

Legal Description: 

 

The Southwest of the Southwest of Section 36, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, 

Orange County, Florida, lying South of the Railroad right-of-way LESS the 

following: Begin at the Southeast comer of the said Southwest of the Southwest 

1/4, and run North 158.5 feet to  the S.A.L. right-of-way, thence North 70°07' West 

323.2 feet along the South line of said right-of way of said Railroad, Thence South 

268.5 feet to the South line of the Southwest of the Southwest  of said section, 

Thence East along section line 304 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

ALSO: The Southernmost 25 feet of Seaboard Coast Line Railroad Company's 

main track right of-way, which right-of-way is 100 feet wide, i.e. 5.0 feet wide on 

each side of the centerline of Seaboard Coast Line Railroad Company's main track; 

said parcel of land beginning at the West line of Section 36 and Extending 

Eastwardly, 1,058 feet to a point located 1,600 feet West of Seaboard Coast Line 

Railroad Company's Mile post ST-798 as measured along said centerline; the East 

line of said strip of land Herein conveyed being parallel with said West line of 

Section 36, being shown on print of Seaboard Coast Line Railroad Company's 

Division Engineer's Drawing No. 3053-100, dated May 19, 1978, last Revised 

December 19,1978. 

 

Together with an access easement lying over, upon and through the following 

described parcel of land: 

 

Commence at the Southeast comer of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest of Section 

36, Township 20 South, Range 27 East, in Orange County, Florida, and run North 

89°58'16" West along the South Line of the Southwest. a distance of 304.00 feet; 

thence North 00°02'37"   East, 230.47 feet to a point on the Southerly right-of-way 

line of the S.A.L. Railroad; thence South 70°00'41" East along said right-of-way 

9,6.42 feet to the point of beginning of this easement description; from said point 

of beginning, continue South 70°00'4 l" East along said right-of-way, 70.20 feet; 

thence South 00°04'10" West, 36.71 feet; thence North 89°55'50" West, 66.00 feet; 
452



ORDINANCE NO. 2668 

PAGE 3 

 

thence North 70°00'41" West, 96.40 feet; Thence North 00°02'37" East, 23.40 feet; 

thence South 70°00'41" East, 67.80 feet; thence North 81°41'30" East, 27.19 feet; 

thence North 00°04'10" East, 23.52 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

 

Parcel ID No.: 36-20-27-0000-00-020 TOTAL ACREAGE: 10 +/-Acres 

 

Section III. That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida, 

 

Section IV. That the Community Development Director, or  the  Director's  designee,  is  

hereby  authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official  zoning maps of the City of Apopka,  

Florida,  to include  said designation. 

 

Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 

be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

Section VI.  Ordinance No. 2345 is repealed and replaced by Ordinance Number 2668, and 

that all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

Section VII. That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  July 18, 2018 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     

 

 

August 1, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

            Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Cliff Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  June 22, 2018; July 20, 2018  

 

453



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services   

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Ordinance No. 2669 

  X  OTHER: ORDINANCE  
  

 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2669 – AMENDING MUNICIPAL REFUSE COLLECTION 

SERVICE 

 

REQUEST: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 2669 – AMENDING MUNICIPAL REFUSE 

COLLECTION SERVICE – ESTABLISHING A BEAR MANAGEMENT AREA 

AND REFUSE COLLECTION PROCEDURES 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

According to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), Apopka borders one of the 

most abundant black bear populations in the State and rates Orange County as reporting the 7
th

 highest 

number of human-bear conflicts in 2017. The FWC attributes a large percentage of these conflicts to bears 

looking for food sources including food in garbage cans, pet food and bird feeders. These human-bear 

conflicts have been dangerous or fatal to humans and bears and the risk of conflicts increases with a 

growing City and bear population. In an effort to help reduce the number of human-bear conflicts, Staff 

consulted with FWC and recommends the changes to the City Code listed in Ordinance 2669, which 

establishes a Bear Management Area and a bear resistant refuse container program, The Ordinance also 

restricts the hours refuse containers can be placed at the curb, within the bear management area and where 

the refuse container is stored unless a bear resistant refuse container is used. It also requires bird feeders 

and pet food to be kept inaccessible to bears. By enacting these ordinance changes, the City also increases 

its chances to receive 2018 FWC grant funding for bear resistant refuse containers, two thirds of which 

will be reserved for municipalities with bear ordinances in place. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2669 and hold over for a second reading on August 15, 2018. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

454



ORDINANCE NO. 2669 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 66 “SOLID WASTE” 

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, BY AMENDING ARTICLE II, DIVISION 

1, SECTION 66-36 “DEFINITIONS;” SECTION 66-37 “AUTHORITY OF PUBLIC SERVICES DIRECTOR;” 

SECTION 66-40 “SPECIAL COLLECTION PROBLEMS;” SECTION 66-65 “PREPARATION OF 

METERIALS FOR COLLECTION;” SECTION 66-66 “PLACEMENT OF MATERIALS FOR 

COLLECTION;” SECTION 66-68 “FEE SCHEDULE – RESIDENTIAL;” AND SECTION 66-90 

“PREPARATION OF MATERIALS FOR COLLECTION;” AND; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR APPLICABILITY;  PROVIDING FOR A BEAR MANAGEMENT AREA; PROVIDING 

FOR ENFORCEMENT AND FINES; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 

SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII, Section 1 of the Florida Constitution and Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, the City of 

Apopka is authorized to protect the public health, safety, and welfare of its residents, and has the power and authority to enact 

regulations for valid government purposes that are not inconsistent with general or special law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, according to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), black bears have recovered from 

population declines and are a conservation success story for Florida and the FWC; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a consequence of this conservation success is an increase in human-bear conflicts within urban area; and  

 

 WHEREAS, black bears are attracted to unsecured refuse at residences and businesses found in bear range areas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the majority of human-bear conflicts within urban areas are associated with unsecured refuse, and some of those 

conflicts have resulted in injury to humans; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2017, Orange County reported the seventh highest number of human-bear conflicts in the State; and 

 

WHEREAS, according to the FWC, the City of Apopka borders one of the most abundant black bear populations in the State; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the incidence of bears entering populated areas of the City of Apopka to 

forage for food in refuse containers, and from other sources, is increasing and has reached a level that poses a threat to the health, 

safety, and welfare of the citizens and visitors to the City. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I. That Chapter 66, Article II, of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amended in its entirety with the provisions stated below: 

 

ARTICLE II.  MUNICIPAL REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICE 

 

Section 66-36.  Definitions. 

For the purpose of this Article the following terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall have the meaning given herein. 

When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural include the 

singular, and words in the singular include the plural.  

(a) “Bear Management Area” means an area within the City of Apopkain which there is a high incidence rate of human-

bear interactions recorded by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC), occurring at a level 

that poses a potential threat to the health, safety, and welfare to the citizens, employees and visitors of the City and is 

designated as such by the Director. 

(b) "Bear Resistant Household Garbage Container" means a City approved residential household garbage container 

with a locking mechanism that prevents access to the contents by bears. 

(c) “Secured Structure" means a structure in which refuse is stored in such a manner as to minimize the attraction of 

bears and to serve as a bear resistant barrier during the interim between refuse discard, collection and disposal.  A 

screened enclosure does not qualify as a secured structure.  

 

Section 66-37.  Authority of the Public Services Director.  

 

(b) A Bear Management Program is hereby established, which provides for a container replacement program to 

reduce the human-bear interactions, which will be implemented within the City limits of Apopka, applying 

additional restrictions within the Bear Management Area as designated by the Public Services Director, following 

consultation with the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC). 

(c) Within the Bear Management Area, responsible parties are required to comply with the following best 

management practices when the failure to do so creates, or would reasonably be expected to create, a lure or 

enticement for bears: 

a. Bird Feeders: Bird and hummingbird feeders are allowed, however, feeders must be suspended on a 

cable or other device so that they are inaccessible to bears, and the area below the feeders must be kept 

free from the accumulation of seed debris. 

b. Pet Food:  Pet food or food bowls may not be left out overnight or unattended, unless kept in a secured 

enclosed kennel with a roof.  If possible, pets are to be fed indoors.  Pet food must be stored in a 

secured structure or other means that prevents access by bears.  A screened enclosure does not qualify 

as a secured structure. 

 

Section 66-40. Special Collection Problems. 

 
455



ORDINANCE NO. 2669 

Page 2 of 3 

(a) Collection from location other than curbside.  The Public Services Director or designee shall visit any residence to determine if 

curbside placement of City approved containers is impossible.  A verification by a medical doctor that the resident is unable to 

physically place the containers may be required.  Disabled Service.  A resident certifies that all occupants of the residence over 

the age of 18 are physically incapable of placing the City approved garbage and recycling containers at the curb for collection 

may request pickup at an alternate location which is agreeable to the resident and the Public Services Director.  Verification 

from a medical doctor must be included with the certification.  This service is not available for yard trash or bulky pickups. 

 

(g) Non-Compliant Pick Up.  For any violation of this Chapter regarding any pick up of solid waste or material referenced in this 

Chapter, including, but not limited to, early placement, mixing garbage with yard trash or recycling, unauthorized 

accumulation or scattering of solid waste or other material, the Pubic Services Director shall have the authority to assess an 

administrative charge for the actual cost of labor, vehicles and other materials necessary to properly transport the solid waste 

or other materials away from the customer’s residential or commercial premises.  For any and all successive non-compliant 

pick-ups during any twelve (12) month period, the Public Services Director, in addition to the administrative charge, shall 

have the authority to assess an administrative fee, up to and including, one hundred dollars ($100.00), commensurate with the 

reasonably estimated other costs associated with addressing the violations. 

 

 

 

 

 

Section 66-65.  Preparation of materials for collection. 

 

(g) Containers for recyclable materials Recycling.  All recyclable material shall be placed in the City approved recycling container 

furnished by the City to the residential user; if more recyclable storage is needed, the City will provide, at no cost, a sticker with 

the letter “R” that may be placed on the City approved household trash container identifying its use for recyclable material.  

Material shall be placed in the designated City approved recycling container with the lid completely closed, and shall not be 

bagged.  Materials placed for recycling shall only include items designated by the City.  Mixing of non-designated items, garbage 

or yard trash with recycling will be subject to refusal by the solid waste collector and may incur costs and fees in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 66-40(g).  The recycling container must be free of garbage, and recyclable items in the recycling 

container must be sufficiently free of food waste, so it does not attract bears. 

 

Section 66-66.  Placement of materials for collection. 

 

(b) Additional Restrictions within Bear Management Areas.  Garbage containers containing household garbage must be 

maintained in a secured structure, inaccessible to bears, such as a garage or bear proof enclosure.  The containers must be 

placed at the curb or the point designated by the Public Services Director for collection, no earlier than 5:00 a.m. and not later 

than 7:00 a.m. on collection day.  As an alternative, residents may use a City approved bear resistant household garbage 

container in place of the standard garbage container, in which case the additional restrictions in this Section may be avoided. 

 

 

Section 66-68.  Fee Schedule - Residential. 

 

(i) Disable Service.  No additional charges, if the requirements of Section 66-40(a) are satisfied. 

 

Section 66-90.  Preparation of materials for collection. 

 

(h) Additional Restrictions within Bear Management Areas.  Commercial garbage collection customers which are located within 

designated Bear Management Areas are required to report any incidence of a bear accessing or attempting to access refuse 

containers on the customer’s property to the City of Apopka Public Services Department within 48 hours. 

 

 

SECTION II.  Public Employees 

 

That no provision of this chapter designating the duties of any City officer or employee shall be so construed as to make such officer 

or employee liable for any fine or penalty for failure to perform such duty. 

 

SECTION III.  Penalty: 

 

Violations of this Ordinance shall be prosecuted in the manner provided by general law and the Apopka Code of Ordinances. 

 

SECTION IV.  Conflicts: 

 

All ordinances and resolutions, or parts of ordinances and resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION V.  Severability: 

 

If any section, or portion of a section or subsection, of this ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be 

held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

SECTION VI.  Effective Date: 

 

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

  

 

      FIRST READING: _________________________ 

 

      SECOND READING 

    and ADOPTION: ________________________ 

 

 456



ORDINANCE NO. 2669 

Page 3 of 3 

   

     _________________________________________ 

                     Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: ________________  

457



 

 

 CITY OF APOPKA  

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 1, 2018  

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Finance Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Exhibit A 

  X  OTHER: Resolution No. 2018-12  
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 – AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 
 

REQUEST: REQUEST COUNCIL ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 TOTALING $28.521.00 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On September 27, 2017, by Resolution No. 2017-17, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal 

year 2017/2018.  The City has committed to expenditures and has experienced unanticipated 

revenues/expenditures through the current fiscal year that need to be reflected in the current budget.  

Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body amend the budget in the same manner as 

the original budget is adopted. 

 

Exhibit A – This amendment includes changes for the funding and appropriation of Danus Utilities to 

perform the emergency piping repairs in the amount of $28,521.00.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

The approved FY 2017 - 2018 Budgets for the Utility Enterprise Funds will be increased to include the 

amounts included in Exhibit A.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-12 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

458



Date : _______________ Date Entered:
Prepared by: _________  Entered By:
Approved by: _________      Batch #:
Entry Code: __________   Posted By:

ACCOUNT NUMBER J/E DESCRIPTION TO FROM
401-389-0010 BUDGET AMENDMENT FROM RESERVES 28,521.00        
401-3191-535-4600 REPAIR & MAINT.-BLDG & EQUIPMENT 28,521.00        

TOTAL 28,521.00        28,521.00        

COMMENTS: RESOLUTION 2018-12

Establishing funding from reserves and appropriations for Danus Utilities to perform the emergency piping repairs.  
Approval was on today's 08/01/2018 consent agenda.

EXHIBIT A
CITY OF APOPKA

BUDGET AMENDMENT
08/01/2018

459



 RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017 AND ENDING 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018, PROVIDING FOR A BUDGET 

AMENDMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, has determined that 

the Budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 should be amended; and 

WHEREAS, Florida Statutes, Section 166.241(4) requires the governing body 

amend the budgets in the same manner as the original budget is adopted; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the final budgets for fiscal year 2017/2018 

through resolution on September 27, 2017.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: That the Budget for the City of Apopka, Florida, and Fiscal Year 

2017/2018 is hereby amended as indicated in Exhibit A – with an amendment totaling 

$28,521.00 which are hereby attached and made part of this Resolution by reference thereto. 

SECTION 2: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect upon final 

passage and adoption. 

ADOPTED THIS 1
st
 DAY OF August, 2018 

 

      

 CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 

______________________________                                      
                      BRYAN NELSON, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
LINDA F. GOFF, CITY CLERK 
 

460


	Top
	1. 08-01-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 7/18/18
	07-18-18 draft.docx

	1. 08-01-18 - CC - Presentations - FBI
	1. 08-01-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - AHS Academic Donation
	PD - AHS Academic Donation.docx
	AHS Academic Donation MEMO - 2018.docx

	2. 08-01-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - AHS Local Youth Sports Donation
	PD - AHS Youth Sports Donation.docx
	AHS Youth Sports Memo 2018.docx

	3. 08-01-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - APD Public Outreach
	PD - Outdoor Cinema System Donation.docx
	APD Public Outreach MEMO - 2018.docx

	4. 08-01-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement - Lakeside Ph. 1
	CD - Sewer &amp; Water Agreement - Lakeside Phase I.docx
	Vicinity Map.docx
	2 Lakeside Phase I Capacity Agreement.pdf

	5. 08-01-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Emergency Repairs to Bradshaw Rd. Regional Lift Station #77
	PS - Bradshaw Lift Station Piping Repairs.docx

	1. 08-01-18 - CC - Business - Fireworks Sunday Fun Day.
	Agenda - Staff Report Sunday Fun Day.docx
	September Event Tentative Budget.pdf

	2. 08-01-18 - CC - Business - Preliminary Development Plan - Fairfield Inn &amp; Self-Storage
	1 Fairfield Inn &amp;amp; Self Storage PDP CC 8 01 18.pdf
	2 Fairfield Inn &amp;amp; Self Storage PDP 6-27-18.pdf
	3 Fairfield Inn &amp;amp; Self Storage PDP Elevations.pdf
	4 Farish Special Exception  Site Plan Building Height 12 13 16.pdf

	3. 08-01-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Lakeshore at Wekiva (FKA Sandpiper Road Subdivision)
	1 Lakeshore of Wekiva FDP CC 8.1.2018.pdf
	2 Sandpiper Road FDP Revised  05-15-18.pdf
	3 Lakeshore Compensating Storage Area Expansion-Location.pdf

	4. 08-01-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Dollar General Store (Michael Gladden Blvd,)
	1 Dollar General FDP CC 08 01 18.pdf
	2 Dollar General Apopka FDP Site Plan 3-12-18.pdf
	3 Dollar General Apopka-ELEVATIONS-Color 5.7.2018.pdf
	4 Dollar General Apopka TIA 121117.pdf
	Dollar General Technical Memorandum Review of TIA 7-25-2018.docx

	5. 08-01-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Greater Faith World Center, Inc.
	1 Greater Faith CC 08-1-18.pdf
	3 Architectural Elevation.pdf
	2 Final Development Plan.pdf

	1. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2654 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning - JTD Land at Rogers Road LLC
	1 JTD Land at Rogers Road 2 CC2 Rd 08-01-18.pdf
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2654.pdf

	2. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2660 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning - JEL Land Development, LLC - Legacy Hills
	1 Legacy Hills RZ CC2 08-01-2018.pdf
	2 Ordinance 2660.pdf
	3 Ex. A Ord 2660  Legacy Hills  Master Plan.pdf

	3. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2661 - 2nd Rd - Comp Plan - Small Scale - FLUM - 3255 Clarcona Road LLC
	1 3255 Clarcona FLU CC2 08-01-2018.pdf
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2661.pdf

	4. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2662 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning - 3255 Clarcona Road LLC
	1 Randall Mechanical RZ CC2 8-1-2018.pdf
	2 ORDINANCE NO 2662.pdf

	5. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2663 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning - SunTrust Bank
	1 SunTrust East RZ CC2 8-1-2018.pdf
	2 Letter from Applicant.pdf
	3 ORDINANCE NO 2663.pdf

	6. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2666 - 2nd Reading - Change of Zoning/Master Plan/Development Agreement - Kelly Park Road Publix
	1  KP Publix Rezoning_Master Plan_PDP DA.pdf
	2 Ord  2666 - Kelly Park Publix.pdf
	3 Kelly Park Publix Master Plan_PDP.pdf
	4 Kelly Park Publix PDP full set.pdf
	5 Kelly Park  Publix Development Agreement.pdf

	7. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2667 - 2nd Rd - Change of Zoning/PUD MP/PDP - Vista Reserve
	1 CC Staff Report Vista Reserve PUD - ZON - CC 08 1 18.pdf
	2 Ord  2667 - Vista Reserve PUD.pdf
	3 Exhibit b Ord 2667 Vista Reserve - Master Plan PDP.pdf
	4 Architectural Elevations.pdf

	8. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2668 - 2nd Rd - PUD Master Plan - Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort, Inc.
	1 KOA PUD AMEND CC2 8-1-2018.pdf
	2 Site Plan.pdf
	3 Ord 2345 - Orange Blossom Apopka RV Resort- Zoning -Signed.pdf
	4 Ordinance No. 2668.pdf

	9. 08-01-18 - CC - Ordinance 2669 - Bear Mgmt &amp; Container
	PS - Bear Mgmt. Ordinance.docx
	Ordinance 2669.pdf

	10. 07-18-18 - CC - Resolution - 2018-12 - Budget Amendment
	Staff Report - 4th Budget Amendment Resolution 2018-12.docx
	Budget Amendment #4 08-01-18.pdf
	Budget Amendment Resolution 2018-12.docx

	Bottom

